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Foreword by The Chairperson

01

O
nce again, it is our greatest pleasure 
to present the Annual Report by the 
current members of the Commission  
Chief Executive Officer, and CGE 
staff to the Speaker of the National 

Assembly, Ms Baleka Mbete and His Excellency the 
State President of the Republic of South Africa, Mr 
Jacob Zuma, as required by CGE act no 39 of 1996 as 
amended. 

Over this period, CGE discharged its mandate 
and achieved  approximately 80 percent of its 
planned activities that were mapped out in the 
Annual Performance Plan.  In discharging our 
work, CGE’s work ethic and philosophy has been 
largely influenced by the founding values of the 
Constitution. These are:  

• Human dignity, the achievement of  equality 
and the advancement of human rights

• Non-racialism

• Non-sexism  

• Supremacy of the Constitution and the rule 
of law.   

The current financial year was engulfed by a 
barrage of 20 years’ celebration of South Africa’s 
democracy. As part of these events, CGE organised 
a gender summit which highlighted the country’s 
achievements in promoting gender equality, 
challenges, lessons, mistakes, strengths and 
weaknesses, as well as mapping out strategies to 
deal with the challenges and weaknesses. 
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The national general elections took place in May 2014 as expected, and the president appointed 
a new cabinet; as a result, the Department of Women, Children and People with Disabilities was 
disbanded and was replaced by The Ministry for Women, situated in the Presidency.  This meant 
that CGE had to engage various ministers and stakeholders about the role of CGE in society and 
how these stakeholders should continue mainstreaming gender equality across programmes. 

It is important to point out that CGE has successfully worked  with the following stakeholders:  
Parliament,  Civil society organisations, Traditional leaders, Faith-based organisations, the private  
sector, all structures and spheres of government,  and nternational organisations, including the 
United Nations Commission on the Status of Women,  and African Union Agencies.   

CGE is committed to the highest levels of corporate governance and in keeping with this 
commitment; the Commission complies with the relevant statutory and governance provisions of 
the CGE’s governance policies.  CGE Commissioners continue to pay special attention to, and focus 
on, the governance of risk management within the organisation.  

I am pleased to announce that an unqualified audit opinion was achieved for the current financial 
year. Commissioners continue to provide valuable oversight through various CGE internal structures. 
Participation, oversight and attendance in CGE internal structures and plenary meetings were of 
a high standard.  

During the current financial year, CGE has undertaken the African gender development index 
project, which is part of CGE’s vision to ensure that our African international instruments are 
properly implemented by our government and other associated structures. 

CGE has signed Memorandums of Understanding with various organisations with the view to 
ensuring that gender equality information is disseminated to all corners of South Africa.  The MoU 
with traditional leaders has immensely assisted CGE to access rural areas and work with people 
residing in these  communities. 

CGE has also heightened its engagements with men’s organisations which is a deliberate attempt 
to ensure that men become part of the solution in the fight against gender-based violence and 
violence against women.
 
Domestic violence and gender-based violence are pervasive in our society. Women and young girls 
have experienced intimate-partner violence in their lifetime. Additionally, a very high proportion 
of women and young girls have suffered various forms of childhood abuse. Research findings 
show that the domestic sphere, which should be an arena of protection and safety for women and 
children, is one of the most dangerous places.  All structures should work together to eradicate 
all this violence. 

Work on gender-based violence has been  treated only indirectly by some provincial governments 
and municipalities as a national competency and they do not have direct programmes aimed at 
dealing with this scourge. 
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Indeed, peace has to start at home, for South Africa to meet the SADC Protocol on Gender and 
Development target of halving GBV by 2015. It is the responsibility of each individual in South 
Africa and around the globe to be an agent of ending gender violence and violence against women 
in their private and public lives. 

The country has also signed up and ratified numerous regional, continental and global/international 
declarations, protocols and treaties aimed at protecting the rights of vulnerable groups, particularly 
women and children. However, there is still too big a gap  between the rhetoric of gender equality, 
and the reality on the ground. Government should move ahead to enact 50-50 legislation which 
will force all structures to implement 50-50 quota systems. 

As the Commission, we believe strongly that the information provided in this Annual Report will 
not only lead to informative discussions within the relevant stakeholders and broader gender 
equality sector, but it will inform policy discussions, programme implementation and the way 
forward on the future of  South Africa’s gender equality trajectory. 

The non-consideration of the report of the Ad Hoc Committee on Review of Chapter and Associated 
Institutions poses unstable and unpredictable future challenges for the CGE. The minutes of the 
Proceedings of the National Assembly, which was held on 21 November 2008, recognises that 
a number of the recommendations contained in the report will have far- reaching implications 
for Chapter 9 and associated institutions. Furthermore, the National Assembly’s Minutes of 
Proceedings of  21 November 2008 resolves that the rest of the report be held in abeyance with 
a view to allowing the fourth Parliament to consider it in a manner it deems appropriate. It is our 
plea as the CGE that this matter should be resolved by the fifth Parliament because it creates 
uncertainty within onstitutional bodies. 

The funding situation of the CGE is still a problem and we request Parliament and Treasury to 
assist the Commission to increase its budget allocation.  This will assist to consolidate and advance 
the work of the Commission. 

On behalf of the Commission, I express our gratitude to the offices of the Presidency, the Speaker, 
Honourable Minister  Ms Susan Shabangu, and Chairperson of the Portfolio Committee on Women 
in the Presidency, Ms Thandi Memela, and Parliament for their support of our Constitutional 
mandate.   

I further wish to express my sincere and heartfelt thanks to Commissioners and CGE staff who 
have worked tirelessly to deliver on the CGE mandate. 

Ngithi kini nonke Unwele olude, nime njalo nje.  

Mr Mfanozelwe Shozi
Chairperson 
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Overview of the Chief Executive Officer

02

T
he Commission for Gender Equality (CGE) 

brings yet another Annual Report to the 

attention of the South African public 

as we close a year of its operations for 

the Financial Year 2014/15. We do t his 

as required by the country’s Constitution and our 

founding legislation to account not only for the use 

of public resources allocated to the Commission, 

but also to account for the actual programme and 

project work that we have carried out in fulfillment 

of our Constitutional Mandate.

Our previous Annual Report (2013-2014) was 

released on the eve of a number of key and exiting 

moments in our work and our development as the 

country’s primary constitutional body mandated 

to promote, protect and develop the attainment 

of gender equality and transformation. Firstly, we 

looked forward to this period under review with 

a great deal of excitement - the country was on 

the eve of celebrating 20 years of democracy. We 

anticipated a year of collective and public reflection 

on our successes, not only as a country, but also 

Overview of the Financial Year by the Chief Executive Officer
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as an institution with a mandate to fight against the age-old foes of gender oppression and 

marginalization. 

The National Gender Summit, held in Boksburg on 9 -11 April 2014 was the second exciting 

moment – a memorable moment when the CGE, together with its partners in government, civil 

society, the donor community and ordinary gender activists from across the country actually 

gathered under one roof, over three days to reflect on the past 20 years of democracy, looking at 

the successes, failures, prospects and challenges faced by the gender sector in South Africa. The 

Summit was a moment of pride not only for us as an institution but also for the gender sector and 

the country in general. A large number of civil society organizations, government departments, 

gender activists and ordinary individuals supported this event, reflecting collectively on the issues 

and key challenges for the gender sector, culminating in a report containing, among others, a set 

of declarations for concrete actions by all key role players on how to advance the fight for gender 

equality for the next decade. It was therefore a signal moment when it became patently clear that 

the CGE is not alone but part of an ensemble of National Gender Machinery actors collectively 

shouldering the burden of fighting to translate the basic right to gender equality into a lived 

reality for millions of South African citizens. This is an enormous burden, compounded by limited 

resources, yet shouldered with equanimity and selfless dedication not only by CGE Commissioners 

and staff members, but also our partners across the country.

Our moment of collective reflection of the past 20 years of democracy during our Gender Summit 

was always tampered with a strong underlying sense of awareness of the reality of continued 

challenges that face us. Such challenges, embedded as they are in the dominant traditions, cultures, 

religions and social habits that persist in our private households and public spaces, communities 

and society in general continue to sustain patriarchy and hegemonic masculinities which stand, 

often proudly, in defense of gender inequality and discrimination while perpetuating the high 

levels of violence and brutality against women, sex workers, members of the LGBTI community 

and others facing the indignity of gender oppression. 

Our year of reflection on the achievements, challenges and prospects for gender transformation 

also saw the country host its fifth national and provincial elections, on 7th May 2014. These elections 

were not just a milestone in the maturity and consolidation of our democracy, but yet another 

signal moment for the country to gauge its progress towards gender equality in its institutions of 

democratic governance, particularly the gender compositions of the National Assembly, Provincial 

Legislatures as well as the national and provincial cabinets. The CGE was not a mere side observer 

of the elections. We are proud to announce that our Elections Observer Team was on the ground 

across all the nine provinces, observing and experiencing the process of elections on the day 

of election, to bear witness to the challenges and prospects facing women’s participation and 

representation in all aspects of the election.
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The CGE is also proud to announce that we published a report that outlines our findings based 

on the work of the Elections Observer Team. The report shows both the steady advances that 

our democracy is making towards the goal of full, meaningful and equal participation and 

representation of women and men in the way our country is governed. The report also reflects 

frankly on the inadequacies and failures of our leaders to ensure that we reach the target of 50% 

representation for women in political parties and the country’s governing structures. As we look 

back on this area of our work (women’s participation and representation in political parties), we are 

contemplate our continued work in this areas especially in that the local government elections will 

be held next year, presenting yet another opportunity for the Commission to assess the country’s 

steady advance towards gender equality in politics and governance at local government level..   

We would be remiss in our duty as the Commission for Gender Equality to inform South Africans 

of our efforts to reach the goal of gender equality if we didn’t admit that the theme of steady 

advances towards gender transformation is strewn with intractable, often insurmountable 

drawbacks. For instance high levels of gender based violence; high rates of sexual violence leading 

to HIV/AIDS infections among young women; brutality towards women and members of the LGBTI 

community; gender discrimination in the workplace and unequal pay for equal work by men and 

women; harmful traditional practices such as ukuthwala, under-age arranged marriages and 

virginity testing; and other pernicious ills of our society continue to bedevil this journey towards 

gender transformation. 

The Commission for Gender Equality conducts its work through three line function Departments: 

The Research Department, the Public Education and Information (PEI) Department as well as the 

Legal Department. During this financial year, each of the three line function departments carried 

out a full programme of action, details of which are outlined in this report.  These departmental 

programmes and projects are underpinned by and organized in line with a set of key strategic 

objectives which informed our operational plans and programmes in fulfillment of our mandate. 

These departments are supported by a number of internal support structures, including the Office 

of the CEO, our Communications Department, Finance Department, Information and Technology 

Unit as well as our nine Provincial Offices. We are also grateful for the support and guidance of our 

Commissioners, led by the Office of the Chairperson.

We are proud therefore to report to the South African public that our work was carried out 

and completed broadly in accordance with our Annual Plan of Action (APP) as developed at the 

beginning of the financial year. Where we did encounter constraints, mainly resource related, we 

had to rely on our ability to use limited resources efficiently and cost-effectively to ensure that our 

operations, programmes and projects were sustained to achieve our objectives. 

We are convinced that we have achieved the objectives we set out to achieve through our Annual 

Performance Plan (APP) at the beginning of this financial year. I therefore invite fellow South 
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Africans to engage with this report, and to use it as a tool to assess our successes and failures. 

We also urge members of the public, and other interested role players to engage directly with the 

Commission in areas where we are perceived to have fallen short of our mandate, to see how we 

could improve our work to achieve our Constitutional mandate to promote, protect, develop and 

attain gender equality. 

I am proud to present this report as a record of our work and achievements for the financial year 

2014/15.

_______________________________

Ms. Keketso Maema

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Commission for Gender Equality



Governance
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Governance

3.1. Composition of Commission

The Commission for Gender Equality Act, No 39 of 1996 as amended, provides for a maximum of 

12 commissioners, consisting of no fewer than two part-time commissioners and a maximum of 

seven full-time.  The Commission has nine commissioners, two of them part-time and seven full-

time.

The commissioners are:  

Mr M Shozi   Chairperson and Full-time Commissioner

Ms T Mpumlwana  Deputy Chairperson and Full-time Commissioner

Ms N Bata   Full-time Commissioner

Mr M Botha   Part-time Commissioner

Ms J Hicks   Full-time Commissioner

Dr N Maphazi   Full-time Commissioner

Ms N Mazibuko  Part-time Commissioner

Dr W Mgoqi   Full-time Commissioner

Ms L Nare   Full time Commissioner

Ms F Nzimande  Part-time Commissioner 

Ms P Sobahle   Part-time Commissioner

Commissioners exercise governance in terms of an approved Commissioners’ Handbook, which 

provides a framework of Commissioners’ oversight of and interface with the secretariat, and 

implementation of their public office as commissioners.

Governance

03
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The Plenary of Commissioners is the final decision-making body of the Commission for Gender 

Equality (CGE). It sits four times a year and considers reports from management and commissioners. 

Plenary meetings are supplemented by tele-plenary meetings, which are convened at the discretion 

of the chairperson and any commissioner who motivates the chairperson to convene such a 

meeting, to consider urgent matters. Extraordinary plenary is called in-between plenary meetings 

to consider issues that might arise that would need the plenary’s attention. The following table  

indicates the number of plenaries held during the financial year of 2014/2015.

iTeM pLenARY DATe

1. Special plenary 29 May  2014

2. Open and closed plenary 23-25 June 2014

3. Special plenary 23 July 2014

4. Open and closed plenary 5-7 August 2014

5. Open and closed plenary 29-31 October 2014

6. Special plenary 12 December 2014

7. Open and closed plenary 9-11 February 2015

8. Special plenary 5 March 2015

In line with its statutory obligations to account to Parliament for the implementation of its mandate, 

annual performance plan and budget, as well as advise Parliament on matters relating to gender 

equality, the following presentations were made to parliament on the work of the Commission.

iTeM pResenTATions To pARLiAMenT DATe

1. Strategic Plan, APP and budget 2014-2015 29 July 2014

2. Overlapping of mandates 19 August 2014

3. Fourth Quarter Reporting 2013/2014 and First Quarter 2014-
2015 Performance Information

9 September 2014

4. Annual Report 2013-2014 21 October 2014

5. Second Quarter Performance Information Report 11 November 2014

6. Presentation on CGE CEDAW report 3 March 2015

7 Third Quarter Performance Information Report 4 March 2015

8. Strategic Plan, APP and Budget 2015-2016 24 March 2015
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3.2. standing committees

As part of its oversight and governance framework, the Commission has established the following 

standing committees:

• Management Committee

• Finance Committee

• Audit Committee

• Human Resources Committee

• Information Technology and Communications Committee

• Good Governance Committee

• Strategic Planning, Annual Report, Monitoring and Evaluation Committee

• Research and Education Committee

• Risk Management Committee.

3.3. The role of committees

The CGE has established committees to enable commissioners to ensure the effective 

implementation of objectives and lend supporttheretoas required. The committees’ objectives are:

a) To provide input, advice and assistance in  addressing strategic and policy issues and 

challenges

b) To identify significant emerging issues affecting the implementation of programmes 

and develop solutions to these issues for plenary approval

c) To make recommendations concerning their theme or function for the purpose of 

further developing the CGE’s policies relating to this theme

d) To formulate the integration of committee issues into CGE strategic planning, to guide 

the implementation of designated projects, and to monitor and evaluate CGE activities 

around this theme

e) To  report back regularly to plenary

f) To table matters that need the decision of the Commission

g) To deliberate on issues referred to the committee by plenary and provide 

recommendations to plenary

h) To monitor project implementation, budgeting and expenditure against the budget.
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3.4 stakeholders

In line with the Commission’s mandate to network with like-minded institutions in the pursuit of 

the promotion, protection and attainment of gender equality in South Africa, the Commission 

engages with a broad range of international, state, statutory and civil society organisations. The 

Commission interacted with the following stakeholders in the implementation of its 2014-2015 

Annual Performance Plan.

united nations Agencies
United Nations Development Programme

United Nations Population Fund programme

United Nations: Women.

political parties 
African National Congress

Congress of the People

United Democratic Movement.

Constitutional bodies
Independent Electoral Commission

Cultural, Religious, Linguistic Rights Commission

South African Human Rights Commission

Public Protector South Africa

Public Service Commission.

non-governmental organisations
Moshate

Foundation for Human Rights

Legal Resource Centre

Rural Women  Movement

National Development Institute –South Africa

OXFAM

Sonke Gender Justice

Gender Links

Men’s Forums

Progressive Women’s Movement of South Africa

SWEAT

Her Rights Initiative

Women’s Informal Trade Network and Organisations

Women’s Legal Centre
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Disability sector, unions
DENOSA

SADTU

NUM

NUMSA

Tertiary institutions
UNISA

UNIVEN.

private sector partnerships
Alexander Forbes

Durban Chamber of Commerce.

other institutions 
Eskom

South African Football Association

Military Ombud of South Africa

Forum of Institutions Supporting Democracy

SABC Foundation

National Electronic Media Institute of South Africa

National Community Radio Forum.

Media 
SABC radio and TV

E-News–  Channel Africa

ANN7

Community TV and community radio stations 

Print media.

Religious and traditional organisations
National and Provincial Houses of Traditional Leadership

Traditional Councils

South African Council of Churches (SACC)

Inter-faith Ministries.

parliament
Portfolio Committee on Women in the Presidency

Office of Institutions Supporting Democracy

Multi-party Women’s Caucus.
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Government departments, local government and provincial legislatures
Department of Human Settlements

Department of Women in the Presidency

Department of Justice and Correctional Services

Department of Public Enterprises

Department of Social Development

Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs

South African Police Services

Provincial legislatures

South African Local Government Agency (SALGA)

Ekurhuleni Metro Municipality.

3.5 international and regional liaison

3.5.1. Commission on the Status of Women  (CSW) 59th session held in New York,               

March 2014

The CGE participated at the CSW 59th session by sending a delegation of three 

participants. The focus of the CSW in this 59th session was on the Beijing Declaration 

and Platform for Action; looking into the challenges that affect its implementation 

and achievement of gender equality and empowerment of women, 20 years after 

its adoption. The meeting further addressed opportunities for achieving gender 

equality and the empowerment of women in the post-2015 development agenda. 

The process saw a political declaration being adopted by member states, reiterating 

their commitment to gender equality and women’s empowerment.

3.5.2. Report on the Second MenEngage Global Symposium held in New Delhi, India from 

10-13 November 2014

The four-day symposium, was attended by over 1 000 delegates from 94 countries, 

focusing on sharing experiences and learning on ways in which men can be effectively 

engaged in redefining notions of masculinity, end violence, and promote health and 

wellbeing. Deliberations focused on a number of issues, ranging from gender-based 

violence (GBV) to the glaring pay disparities between genders, which have made 

headlines across the world. 

The symposium resulted in the release of a ‘Delhi Call to Action’, which provides a 

roadmap for governments, UN agencies and all other institutions and organisations 

on men’s role in ensuring gender equality. 



Organisational and                                                   

ACCounTinG sTRuCTuRe
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The accounting authority organisational structure

Under the CGE Act, the Commission is composed of a mix of full and part-time commissioners, 

with a chairperson and deputy chairperson, which forms the Executive Authority in terms of the 

Public Finance Management Act (PFMA). The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is an invited ex-officio 

member of the Commission in plenary meetings. The CEO is the accounting officer under the 

PFMA, accountable to the commissioners for the day-to-day functioning of the organisation. The 

CEO appoints staff to support these operations and functions of the Commission.

Organisational and Accounting Structure

04

Deputy 
Chairperson

Chief executive 
Member

Chairperson

Commissioners

spokesperson
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Accounting officer and secretariat organisation structure

note: Each provincial office is managed by a provincial coordinator with support staff. The primary 

purpose of the provincial office is to:

• promote gender education at provincial level

• create ease of access for all people across the geographical and rural spread of South Africa

• facilitate gender reporting and redress through outreach programmes

• solicit provincially based gender data that informs the strategic direction and research of the 

Commission.

Ceo

DiReCToR
Human

Resource

DiReCToR
Policy &

Research

DiReCToR
Public Education 

& Information

DiReCToR
Legal Services

MAnAGeR:
Internal Audit

MAnAGeR:
IT

Provincial            
Co-ordinators 

X9

Cfo

Coo
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Mandate, Vision             
AnD Mission

The legislative mandate of the Commission derives from the following Acts.

5.1. The Constitution of the Republic of south Africa, Act 108 of 1996

The CGE is a state institution established under the first Constitution of the Republic of South 

Africa in 1996 to strengthen constitutional democracy. The CGE is independent, subject to the 

Constitution and law, and accountable to the National Assembly. A positive constitutional duty is 

placed upon all other organs of state to promote the effectiveness of the CGE.

The Bill of Rights is the cornerstone of South African constitutional democracy. Herein are enshrined 

the rights of all people to the democratic values of human dignity, equality and freedom; the state 

is required to respect, protect, promote and fulfil these human rights.

The CGE’s obligation to strengthen constitutional democracy focuses on the attainment of gender 

equality in all spheres of life. This recognises that the prevailing environment of gender inequality 

requires positive action by both the state and private sectors, if this equality is to be attained. 

Establishing a constitutional institution with the sole purpose of achieving gender equality 

is recognition by the Constitution that gender equality would not be achieved if it was merely 

treated as a generalised human right.

Section 187(1) of the Constitution of South Africa reads:“The Commission for Gender Equality 

must promote respect for gender equality and the protection, development and attainment of 

gender equality.” The CGE is a catalyst in pursuit of this aim. Section 187(2) grants the CGE “the 

power, as regulated by national legislation, necessary to perform its functions, including the power 

to monitor, investigate, research, educate, lobby, advise and report on issues concerning gender 

equality”.

In addition the CGE has the power to institute proceedings in terms of Section 20(1)(f) of the 

Promotion of Equality and Prevention of Unfair Discrimination Act 4, 2000 (PEPUDA).

Mandate, Vision and Mission

05
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5.2. The Commission for Gender equality Act 39 of 1996, as amended

Section 11 of the CGE Act provides that the Commission:

(a) (a)shall monitor and evaluate policies and practices of organs of state at any level, statutory 

bodies or functionaries, public bodies and authorities, and private businesses, enterprises 

and institutions, in order to promote gender equality, and may make  recommendations 

that the Commission deems necessary

(b) shall develop, conduct or manage information programmes and education programmes, 

to foster public understanding of matters pertaining to the promotion of gender equality 

and the role and activities of the Commission

(c) shall evaluate any Act of Parliament, any system of personal and family law or custom, 

any system of indigenous law, customs or practices, or any other law in force at the 

commencement of this Act, or any law proposed by Parliament or any other legislature 

after the commencement of this Act, affecting or likely to affect gender equality or the 

status of women, and make recommendations to Parliament or such other legislature 

with regard thereto

(d) may recommend to Parliament or any other legislature the adoption of new legislation 

which would promote gender equality and the status of women

(e) shall investigate any gender-related issues of its own accord or on receipt of a complaint, 

and shall endeavour to resolve any dispute or rectify any act or omission by mediation, 

conciliation or negotiation, provided that the Commission may at any stage refer any 

matter to:

• the Human Rights Commission to deal with it in accordance with the provisions of the 

Constitution and the law

• the Public Protector to deal with it in accordance with the provisions of the Constitution 

or

• any other authority, whichever is appropriate

(f) shall, as far as is practicable, maintain close liaison with institutions, bodies or authorities 

with similar objectives to the Commission, in order to foster common policies and 

practices and to promote cooperation in relation to the handling of complaints in cases of 

overlapping jurisdiction or other appropriate instances
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(g) shall liaise and interact with any organisation which actively promotes gender equality and 

other sectors of civil society to further the objects of the Commission

(h) shall monitor compliance with international conventions, international covenants and 

international charters, acceded to or ratified by the Republic, relating to the objects of 

the Commission

(i) shall prepare and submit reports to Parliament pertaining to any such convention, covenant 

or charter relating to the objects of the Commission

(j) may conduct research or cause research to be conducted to further the objects of the 

Commission

(k) may consider such recommendations, suggestions and requests concerning the promotion 

of gender equality as it may receive from any source.
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our Vision

our Mission

our Values

A society free from 
all forms of gender 
oppression and 
inequality.

To promote, protect, monitor and 

evaluate gender equality through 

research, public education, policy 

development, legislative initiatives, 

effective monitoring and litigation.

Our values are anchored in the supremacy of the Constitution and the 

rule of law, and we perform all our functions with an ethos grounded in 

the following values.

• Independence – we impartially perform our duties without fear 

or favour, mindful of the independence of our office.

• Professionalism – we timeously execute our responsibilities 

with the utmost care and diligence, responsive to the society we 

serve.

• Accountability – we always give an account of our actions and 

decisions.

• Ethical behaviour – we maintain high standards of 

o trustworthiness and honesty

o respect and empathy 

o integrity.

• Teamwork–we support and work in collaboration with our 

colleagues, state organs and civil society to maximise the 

attainment of our objectives.



Strategic                                                   

objeCTives
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Strategic Objectives

06

Strategic Objective 
No. 1: 
To ensure the 
creation and 
implementation 
of an enabling 
legislative framework 
that promotes the 
attainment of gender 
equality.

Strategic Objective 
No. 2: 
To protect and 
promote gender 
equality by engaging 
with relevant 
stakeholders to 
educate and raise 
awareness on issues 
of gender equality, 
challenge patriarchal 
perceptions and 
stereotypes, and 
take action against 
infringements of 
gender rights through 
the implementation 
of appropriate 
redress.

Strategic Objective 
No. 3: 
To monitor state 
compliance with 
regional and 
international 
conventions, 
covenants and 
charters which have 
been acceded to 
or ratified by the 
Republic, relating to 
the objects of the 
Commission.

Strategic Objective 

No. 4: 

To build an 

effective, efficient 

and sustainable 

institution that will 

fulfil its constitutional 

mandate on gender 

equality.

The CGE has 
translated its 
constitutional 
mandate and 
obligation into 
four strategic 
objectives to guide 
the organisation. 
These form the 
organisational 
framework for 
compliance, 
governance and 
effective functioning 
and the strategic 
pillars for the 
implementation of 
the Commission’s 
mandate and vision.



Legislative                                                   

RefoRM
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Legislative Reform

07
7.1. policy and legislative submissions

The CGE constantly analyses existing and proposed legislation from a gender-equality 

perspective in accordance with the mandate and strategic objective ‘to ensure the creation 

and implementation of an enabling legislative framework that promotes the attainment 

of gender equality’. This is undertaken to strengthen constitutional democracy and to 

promote the realisation of gender equality enshrined in the Constitution and Bill of Rights. 

Submissions are made to Parliament and other legislation-making organs to improve both 

the content and implementation of relevant legislation with the understanding that gender 

equality is pivotal in nation-building and the attainment of the envisaged outcomes of the 

National Development Plan.

7.1.1. Submission to the Department of Justice and Constitutional Development on the 

prescribed rate of interest in terms of the Prescribed Rate on Interest Act 55 of 

1975:  22 April 2014

The prescribed rate of interest currently at 15.5percent is 10percernt above the re-

purchase rate and 6.5percent above the prime lending rate. In a recessionary economic 

climate where most  South Africans are experiencing hardship, such as poverty and 

unemployment, high interest rates will accelerate  the difficulties of citizens.

In addition to the above, an untenable situation associated with high interest rates 

is the impoverishing effect it has on many women and children who constitute the 

majority of South African households. In this regard many women who are in debt 

will be charged an interest rate that is far too high,  making it even more difficult for 

them to meet  their obligations

7.1.2.	Submission	on	the	New	General	Education	and	Training	Certificate:	30	April	2014

The Commission does not support the position that the policy pertains only to adults 

who do not attend public or independent schools as contemplated in Chapters 3 and 

5 of the South African’s School Act 84 of 1996.



31

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT  2014-2015Commission for Gender Equality
A society free from gender oppression and inequality

The Commission recommended that the policy should have checks and balances in 

place that ensure that girls and boys, specifically those in rural areas, are encouraged 

to participate in the programme and should be given all the necessary support needed 

to ensure successful participation.

7.1.3. Submission to the Department of Justice and Constitutional Development on the 

Superior Courts Amendment Draft Bill: 5 May 2014

The Department of Trade and Industry approached the Department of Justice and 

Constitutional Development to assist with the relevant amendments to allow for the 

rescission[am not sure what this word should be]of judgements with consent by the 

judgement creditor, to assist certain categories of consumers in accessing credit by 

removing adverse credit information from the credit bureau. 

The proposal to amend the Superior Courts Act of 2013 to provide relief to consumers 

was supported by the CGE due to the fact that it was a noble step by both the 

Department of Trade and Industry and the Legislature to assist consumers.

7.1.4. Submission on the Remote Gambling Bill: 23 May 2014

This proposed legislation was a private member’s bill initiated in terms of Rule 241(1)

(b) of the Rules of the National Assembly. The purpose of this bill was to provide a 

regulatory framework for all remote gambling activities. 

Remote gambling activities have the potential to adversely affect vulnerable people, 

such as the elderly, minors and women, due to fraud, money laundering and the 

financing of terrorist activities. 

Accordingly, the CGE supported the proposed bill because a proper legal compliance 

framework would protect individuals, particularly women and children, against 

criminal activities associated with unlawful gambling activities.

7.1.5. Submission on the review of the Witchcraft Suppression Act 3 of 1957: 2 June 2014

The submission was in response to an Issue Paper aimed at serving as a basis for 

deliberations to elicit responses and suggestions from relevant stakeholders in order 

to review existing legislation on witchcraft. 

The practice of witchcraft by traditional healers and even individuals of certain 

religious denominations has significant gender-related implications.
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Under the circumstances the CGE proposed the promulgation of new legislation 

which is in keeping with Sections 10 and 15 of the Constitution.

7.1.6.	Comments	 on	 the	 Draft	 Notice	 to	 Amend	 Various	 Fees	 and	 Tariffs	 prescribed	

by legislation and administered by the Minister of Justice and Constitutional 

Development in Terms of Notice 355 of 2014: 12 June 2014

This Notice aimed to amend fees prescribed by various Acts such as the Companies 

Act, Administration of Estates Act and Trust Property Control Act of 1988. 

The CGE proposed reasonable tariff increases, as many women and children would be 

prejudiced by unfair increases to tariffs that relate to the production of documents 

by the state in estate-related matters.

7.1.7. Submission on the Draft Built Environment Policy 27 June 2014

The purpose of the policy is to mobilise all the resources, including Built 

Environmental Professionals such as architects, engineers, property valuers and 

quantity surveyors, so that this pool of expertise can be used to create a better life 

for all South Africans.

In its comments the CGE proposed initiatives that will support women’s empowerment 

and gender equality within the built environment profession.

7.1.8. Comments on the Review of the Taxation of Alcoholic Beverages in South Africa: 30 

June 2014

The CGE proposed regulations that protect minors and pregnant women. These 

proposals included restrictions on advertising and education targeting pregnant 

women and children.

7.1.9. Submission made to UN-Habitat Governance Council on Gender Related Approaches 

to the Implementation of the Habitat Agenda: 3 July 2014

The CGE made a submission in terms of Resolution 24/4 adopted by the Governing 

Council of the United Nations Human Settlements Programme. 

In this submission the CGE proposed a framework which would address land evictions, 

irrational dispossession of land, inadequate access to land, skewed land ownership, 

and limited access to prime quality of land by women in South Africa.
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7.1.10. Submission to the Department of Justice and Constitutional Development on the 

Draft Protected Disclosures Amendment Bill: 4 July 2014

This draft bill was prepared in order to extend the ambit of the Protected Disclosures 

Act of 2000 beyond the employer and employee relationship, insert certain definitions, 

and create obligations to investigate any disclosures made to the employer.

The intention of the proposed bill was to extend greater protection to employees 

who are ‘whistle blowers’. 

The CGE supported this bill because it found that women still faced high levels of 

gender-based violence in the workplace and were hesitant to raise issues pertaining 

to harassment with their employers.

7.1.11. Submission on the Draft National Policy on Community Colleges made to 

Department of Higher Education and Training: 4 August 2014

The policy was aimed at providing a framework for the process of establishing 

community colleges. Furthermore, proposals were made regarding the location, 

management and governance of these institutions.

The CGE emphasised the need to ensure that these colleges are established in rural 

areas so as to provide access to disadvantaged men, women, boys and girls in rural 

areas.

7.1.12. Submission on the Attorneys Amendment Bill made to the Portfolio Committee on 

Justice and Correctional Services: 18 August 2014

This bill was drafted in order to amend the Attorneys Act of 1979 as an interim 

measure, pending the enactment of the Legal Practice Bill which is designed to 

rationalise the legal profession in South Africa.

The CGE evaluation found that the bill required extensive gender mainstreaming, and 

proposed recommendations that aimed to ensure that the needs of both  men and 

women should be addressed in the legal profession and related structures.

7.1.13. Submission on the Legal Aid Bill: 20 August 2014

The purpose of thisbill was to ensure access to justice by establishing an entity 

referred to as ‘Legal Aid South Africa’ and for regulation thereof.

The CGE recommended funding for certain areas of litigation, to promote and protect 

gender equality and access to justice for women. This includes areas such as impact 
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litigation in gender-related issues. An example is the litigation in areas where women 

were excluded from succession in traditional leadership structures and in cases where 

women suffered prejudice due to uncertainties in the legal provisions. 

The CGE placed on record its concerns about large sums of funding being allocated to 

commissions of enquiry where the nature of the proceedings did not have a serious 

impact, as opposed to matters in the constitutional court relating to the right to 

equality. This was in conflict with the right to a fair trial provided for in Section 35 of 

the Constitution.

7.1.14. Supplementary Submission to the Portfolio Committee on Justice and Correctional 

Services on the Legal Aid Bill [B8-2015]: 27 August 2014

A supplementary submission was made in person to the Portfolio Committee in 

Parliament on request.

7.1.15. Comments on the South African Standards for Principalship made to the National 

Department of Basic Education: 1 September 2014

This policy is designed to set standards for leadership and management of schools. 

The policy was not gender mainstreamed and relevant gaps were identified and 

accompanied by relevant recommendations.

7.1.16. Comments on the Post school Education and Training Articulation Policy made to 

the Department of Higher Education and  Training:  1 September 2014

This policy is intended to create a post-school education and training system which is 

responsive to the needs of the majority of South Africans. It was deemed necessary to 

ensure a high level of articulation within and between various learning programmes 

and institutions. The CGE evaluation found this policy to be innovative and supported 

the proposed policy.

7.1.17. Comments on the Discussion on the Review of Regulation on South African Local 

Content – Television and Radio: 5 September 2014

 South African television and radio needs to reflect, engage and embrace the life 

experiences, cultures, languages, expectations, and artistic expressions of South 

Africans. 

In its comments the CGE noted the high content of foreign material which is broadcast 

on South African TV. This serves to prejudice South African society and the economy. 

In effect, women and upcoming South African artists in South Africa are unable to 

develop their skills or promote elements of the South African lived experiences. 
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Accordingly, the CGE comments proposed the adoption and implementation of 

measures which would target South African women and men regarding TV and radio 

content.

7.1.18. Submission to the Department of Trade and Industry on the Draft National 

Credit	Regulations	for	affordability	Assessment	for	amendment	of	regulations	for	

matters relating to the National Consumer Tribunal and Rules for the Conduct of 

Matters Before the Consumer Tribunal: 22 September 2014

This policy has an important implication for maintenance defaulters, which is a serious 

concern facing many women and children.

In the proposed policy initiatives are proposed amendments that protect women and 

children against maintenance defaulters by allowing their details to be recorded as 

adverse information by a credit bureau. In the proposed policy initiatives, the proposed 

amendments seek to protect women and children against maintenance defaulters by 

allowing their details to be recorded as adverse information by the credit bureau. 

This bill provides relief to women and children who experience gender-based violence 

as defined in the Domestic Violence Act and was, therefore, supported by the CGE.

7.1.19. Submission made to the Department of Higher Education and Training on the 

Draft Social  Inclusion Policy: 30 September 2014

The CGE supported this policy because it proposed an inclusive education policy that 

embraces all races, different religious groups, and even the disabled. 

The CGE recommended the inclusion of gender equality needs in the social inclusion 

policy.

7.1.20. Discussion Paper on Ukuthwala made to the South African Law Reform 

Commission (SALRC): 31 October 2014

The SALRC released a discussion document on Ukuthwala. It reflects information 

accumulated up to January 2104. The purpose of the discussion paper wasto elicit 

responses from as many stakeholders as possible. These responses will then be 

evaluated by the SALRC. The evaluation will inform the SALRC on whether any further 

deliberation on the issue is necessary. Subsequently, a report will be issued and sent 

to the minister of justice and corrections for tabling in Parliament.

The CGE supported the development of legislation on Ukuthwala and provided 

focused recommendations aimed at promoting gender equality and addressing 

harmful practices.
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7.1.21. Draft Code of Good Practice on Equal Pay for Work of Equal Value made to the 

Department of Labour: 18 December 2014
The objective of the Code of Good Practice on Equal Pay for Work of Equal Value is to 

provide guidance to employers on how to apply the principle of equal remuneration 

for work of equal value in their workplaces. 

In addition,  the code also seeks to promote the implementation of equitable 

remuneration in all sectors including the state, corporate entities, state-owned 

entities and trade unions through human resource policies, job evaluation processes 

and other practices.

In its submission, the CGE supported the code and made focused input aimed at 

addressing disparities in the remuneration of men and women in the workplace in 

order to address gender-related discrimination.

7.1.22. Submission to the Portfolio Committee on Justice and Correctional Services on 

the Maintenance Amendment Bill[B16-2014]: 5 January 2015
The purpose of this bill was to amend the Maintenance Act of 1998 in order to further 

regulate the following issues relating to maintenance complaints: the jurisdiction of 

maintenance courts, the manner in which certain witnesses can be secured for the 

purposes of maintenance enquiries – such as employers of maintenance defaulters, 

the possibility of granting interim maintenance orders, to regulate the manner in 

which maintenance orders may be given in default, and to increase the penalties for 

certain offences. 

The CGE supported the bill because interim orders which are provided for in the bill 

are necessary to provide immediate relief and can also speed up procedures if not 

opposed.

Furthermore, the manner in which files were transferred subsequent to changes 

in domicile of complainants was not regulated. Finally, where employers shield 

defaulters has caused prejudice to many dependants and the bill addresses this 

issue by ensuring that administrators of pension funds can be obliged to satisfy 

maintenance orders in certain circumstances.

7.1.23.	 Criminal	Law	(Sexual	Offences	and	Related	Matters	)Amendment	Act	Amendment	

Bill [B 18-2014]: 10 February 2015

The aim of this bill was to amend the Criminal Law (Sexual Offences and Related 

Matters)Act of 2007 to ensure that children of certain ages are not held criminally 

liable for engaging in consensual sexual acts with each other.
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A further amendment related to a discretion being granted to presiding officers 

when including the particulars of children in the National Register for Sex Offenders.

The CGE supported the bill but recommended a complete decriminalisation of 

adolescent consensual sex as opposed to a regulation of this conduct.

7.1.24.	 Supplementary	 Submission	 on	 the	 Criminal	 Law(Sexual	 Offences	 and	 Related	

Matters) Amendment Bill [B18-2014 : 9 March 2015.

This bill relates to the decriminalisation of adolescent consensual sex. The DOJCS 

proposed amendments that regulates and criminalises certain instances of adolescent 

consensual sex. 

The CGE did not support the proposed amendments and recommended a total 

decriminalisation of adolescent consensual sex because this would be compliant with 

Section 28 of the Constitution read with Section 10.

7.1.25. Submission on the Draft Firearms Control Amendment Bill of 2015 to the Civilian 

Secretariat for Police: 31 March 2015

The purpose of the draft bill is to change and include certain definitions into the 

Firearms Control Act of 2000, as well as to amend certain provisions relating to the 

number of firearms that can be held by licensees and the application of microdot 

technology to identify firearms. 

An additional change proposed is the strengthening of the independence of Appeal 

Board provided for in terms of Section 131 of the Principal Act.

The CGE supported an amendment to the Firearms Control Act but did not support 

many of the proposed changes which will allow for more firearms to be in the hands 

of civilians.
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8.1. interventions

8.1.1. National Gender Summit
The Commission in partnership with UN Women, United Nations Population Fund 

(UNFPA), OXFAM, United Nations Development Programme (UNDP) the Department 

of Public Enterprises, The Department of Women, Children and People with 

Disabilities, the South African Broadcasting Corporation, Alexander Forbes, and the 

Ekurhuleni Metro held a National Gender Summit from 9 to 11 April 2014 at the Lakes 

Hotel in Benoni, Ekurhuleni. The purpose of the summit was to provide a platform 

for critical debate on the attainment of gender equality in South Africa, 20 years into 

democracy. Throughout the summit, the Commission deliberated and took stock of 

gender equality gains, assessing the shortcomings as well as the gaps that persist in 

striving for the attainment of gender equality. The intention of the summit was to 

ascertain the current vision, political climate and responsibility for working towards 

gender equality; assessing policy effectiveness; strategy and capacity to attain the 

gender equality commitments as outlined in the Constitution of the Republic of 

South Africa and international commitments to gender equality.  Areas of concern 

that were discussed at the summit include:

• Role of stakeholders in promoting gender equality

• Assessing gains and challenges in the drive for  gender equality

• Gender mainstreaming and budgeting

• Implementation of key gender equality legislation and resourcing

• International and regional obligations and partnership, assessing uptake and 

impact

• Role of civil society in the national gender machinery

• Women’s political participation and representation

• The Millennium Development Goals (MDGs) and the Beijing Platform for action 

post 2015
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• Deliberations on solutions to persistent obstacles to achieving gender equality.

The delegates collectively agreed on a Summit Declaration and Programme of Action. 

The Programme of Action (POA) states what needs to be done to address these areas 

of concern going forward. The POA identified the actions and strategies that need to 

be implemented by relevant structures in addressing the challenges that continue to 

face the gender sector. The delegates committed to ensuring the implementation of 

the POA and monitoring and evaluation would be conducted by the national gender 

machinery.

8.1.2. Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender and Intersexed (LGBTI) Programme
The Commission participated in the launch of the South African LGBTI Programme 

that was hosted by the Department of Constitutional Development and Correctional 

Service. The CGE is a member of the LGBTI steering Committee. The event took place 

in Johannesburg.

8.1.3. One Woman, One Hectare of Land  Campaign
The Commission adopted a concept entitled ‘One Woman, One Hectare of Land’, and 

has been in discussion with a broad range of stakeholdersat both national and local 

levels around its take-up and implementation. This campaign has also spread out 

to grassroots women’s organisations advocating for land rights for women. These 

women’ s organisations include the Rural Women Movement, based in KwaZulu-

Natal, the Rural Women’s Assembly of South Africa, Land Movement of SA (LAMOSA) 

and other land  movements in the country. The ultimate aim of the campaign is 

that land rights which vest directly in women shall be buttressed by legislation that 

guarantees those rights in land, away from the current reality. This reality results in 

women having a tenuous and precarious relationship to land, via the father, or a male 

sibling, or a husband, if married, or an uncle, but never directly in their own name.  The 

Commission’s campaign seeks to ensure equitable access to and ownership of land 

for all women, and engender the land reform project of South Africa.

8.1.4. Community of African Nations in South Africa (CANISA) Launch 
The Commission was invited to the launch of CANISA (NGO) in Port Elizabeth; one 

of its objectives is to promote and encourage social integration among Africans 

through exchange initiatives. CANISA acknowledged that the programmes of African 

Renaissance which our leaders have started can only be actualised with the active 

involvement of all Africans at the grassroots level, working together to empower all 

Africans with basic education at continental, regional and national level, and there is 

therefore a common understanding of the need to link the African Renaissance with 

intercultural issues among South Africans.  
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8.1.5. South African Police Services Women’s Month Celebrations
It is encouraging to know that the SAPS is aware of Article 18 of CEDAW which ensures 

that every line ministry/organisation must have a gender structure or gender focal 

point. These structures should deal with both internal and external transformation. 

The functioning of these structures is monitored by the Department of Women 

within the Presidency. Furthermore the minister of safety and security approved the 

establishment of agender desk within the SAPS. In support of the commitments made 

to ensure gender equality, the national police commissioner mandated senior women 

to facilitate women’s empowerment in the SAPS. The aim is to achieve the 30percent 

target for gender representivity in the SAPS in all occupational levels and categories. 

The following are affirmative qualitative measures that have been undertaken.

• 40percent of all training is reserved for women in order to improve their mobility 

to middle and senior positions.

• 70percent of all places in the Emerging Leadership Programme is reserved for 

women in order to broaden the pool of women leaders in the SAPS.

• All recruitment and promotion drives are monitored to ensure that business units 

reach their numeric targets. 

Senior women, when reviewing the impact of the gender structures with the SAPS, 

felt that there is a need for senior women officers to lead empowerment activities in 

this regard. Therefore, The SAPS Women Network was established. Women network 

champions were nominated to lead the network and facilitate all activities that 

highlight contributions of women towards the strategic objectives and budgetary 

programmes of the SAPS. A leaflet was developed and circulated in all salary advices 

of members to inform them about the objectives and functions of the SAPS Women 

Network during women’s month.

8.1.6. SALGA National Executive Lekgotla
The SALGA held a four-day National Executive Lekgotla under the theme,‘Celebrating 

60 Years of the Women’s Charter and 20 Years of Democracy: Moving Women’s Agenda 

in Local Government Forward. The Lekgotla followed provincial pre-consultations 

that took place during the second quarter, between July and September. This was to 

ensure widespread consultations with women in local government. The main focus 

of the Lekgotla was the audit of women’s representation and participation in local 

government ahead of the 2016 elections, support for women’s structures, women in 

community structures, as well as capacity-building programmes aimed at addressing 

skills shortages to enhance the participation of women in decision making.
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The Lekgotla reflected on the success of the establishment of the SALGA Women 

Commission. The Commission has managed to coordinate, promote and advocate for 

gender-appropriate strategies and practices within member municipalities in order to 

feed into regional and continental processes and ultimately influence legislations and 

policies. Imperative to the functions and operations of the SALGA Women Commission 

is to influence the agenda, and redefine roles and responsibilities of women in the 

local government sphere and determine how we can further influence municipal 

policies, particularly looking at policies that lack a strong gender perspective and 

voice.

8.1.7. Bilateral with the  National House of the Traditional Leaders
CGE had bilateral meetings with NHTL (Provincial and National) to discuss the working 

relations between the two organisations. The leadership committed to work with 

CGE in addressing issues of gender equality within their rural communities. These 

engagements have led to the signing of Memorandums of Understanding (MoUs) 

with the Eastern Cape and Northern Cape Provincial Houses.  The engagements also 

led to the arrangement for a workshop with the Amahlubini Traditional Council in 

preparation for the inauguration of a first-ever traditional leader.

A meeting was also held with traditional leaders in the Western Cape. They are still 

struggling for recognition by the Western Cape government and as such, no formal 

structure is recognised by the Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional 

Affairs (COGTA). Traditional leaders have registered a non-profit organisation 

that coordinates their programmes.  The Commission met with the Western Cape 

Traditional Council to discuss the possibilities of working relationships. 

8.1.8. Isikhalo Samadoda meeting held in October 2014
A grievance letter was sent to the Office of the President and the Chairperson of 

the Commission by IsikhaloSamadoda. The Commission called a meeting to discuss 

the issues and concerns that were raised. Their main complaint was inequality in the 

laws and in the manner that they are interpreted and implemented to discriminate 

and oppress men. In their presentation, they quoted the Domestic Violence Act, the 

Maintenance Act, campaigns like the 16 Days of Activism of No Violence Against 

Women and Children, and the women’s economic empowerment programmes. 

From their argument, they seemed to suggest that nuances of gender equality are 

influenced by feminist theories and are thus oppressive and promote hatred for men. 

Deliberations revealed that there is poor understanding of the laws, in regard to their 

interpretation and the intention of the government programmes aimed at addressing 

inequality and social injustices. The meeting was also attended by the chairperson of 

the Portfolio Committee on Women in the Presidency. 
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8.1.9. Engaging  Legislatures and National Parliament
CGE engaged provincial legislatures to ensure that gender equality becomes 

part and parcel of legislative work. Among the provincial legislatures engaged by 

commissioners are KwaZulu-Natal, Mpumalanga, Gauteng, Limpopo, Eastern Cape, 

Western Cape and Northern Cape.  As part of the Commission’s accountability and 

responsibility, findings and recommendations have been shared with Parliament and 

legislatures. 

The Portfolio Committee on Women in the Presidency undertook an oversight to 

the head office. The objective of the visit was to assess CGE’s management and 

infrastructure of the provincial offices, to assess how matters related to complaints 

from civil society are dealt with at the provincial offices.

The committee did a walk-about at  CGE’s national offices and interacted with staff 

members. The committee observed the public hearings where the Department of 

Higher Education appeared. The committee could not proceed to KwaZulu-Natal due 

to other urgent matters. The committee was at head office on  25 and 26 November 

2014  observing Employment Equity Hearings.   

8.1.10. International Day for Rural Women Day Campaign
The Commission organised the International Rural Women’s day campaign which 

focused on North West– Leporung village – about what the days mean and what role  

rural women could play.  CGE also organised a second event in KZN, at Matimatolo. 

This consisted of a visit to the local police station, where the station commissioner 

responded to a questionnaire that was sent by the legal officer. There was also a visit 

to the local clinic. The last part of the day consisted of a community dialogue that 

was attended by the local councillor, traditional leaders, religious leaders, the local 

community development worker and a number of community members. A legal clinic 

was also conducted.

Through CGE, positive spinoffs and deliverables resulted from an engagement with 

stakeholders during the Rural Women’s Day in Eastern Cape; toilets were built for a 

school that had never had toilets or proper sanitation before; a fence was built for 

a bakery run by women, which had never been fenced, thus exposing the women to 

crime as their day starts at 4 am ; and a process is underway by Eskom to provide the 

women with a vehicle for their deliveries.

8.1.11. Employment Equity (EE) Hearings
CGE hosted a series of employment equity hearings to oversee public and private 

sector institutions (government departments, universities, companies) in Gauteng, 
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Limpopo, Northern Cape, North West, Free State, Mpumalanga, Western Cape, 

KwaZulu-Natal and Eastern Cape. Transformation in the private sector still lags behind  

and needs to be strengthened. There is a tendency to focus on government, which 

seems not to account for the fact that even though government is the duty bearer 

as concerns human rights, the private sector has a huge role to play, in particular y 

on  issues concerning socioeconomic rights. Eskom invited CGE to do an oversight 

visit to its one of the biggest power stations in Medupi, Limpopo, concerning issues 

of employment equity and relating to the working environment. Eskom has done 

much since the EE enquiries that were done to achieve equity in the workplace.  CGE 

appreciates the support from men in Eskom of young girls in the male-dominated 

environment for enabling  young girls to do work that had not been considered for 

them before.

8.1.12. Community of African Nations in South Africa (CANISA) Launch 
CGE was invited to the launch of CANISA (NGO) in Port Elizabeth. One of its objectives 

is to promote and encourage social integration among Africans through exchange 

initiatives. CANISA acknowledged that the programmes of African Renaissance which 

our leaders have started can only be actualised with the active involvement of all 

Africans at  grassroots level, working together to empower all Africans with basic 

education at continental, regional and national levels. Hence they understand the 

necessity to link the African Renaissance with inter-cultural understanding among 

Africans in South Africa. 

8.1.13. Practice note
CGE submitted a draft practice note to the acting judge president of  the Land 

Claims Court for consideration and adoption by that court, aimed at mainstreaming 

gender equality and equity in its judgements and practices. Practice notes/directives 

complement the Rules of Court.

Delegates that attended Gender summit
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9.1 The Legal Department
9.1.1. Complaints management  

In line with our strategic objectives ‘ to take action against infringements of gender 

rights’ and ‘the implementation of appropriate redress’, managing complaints of 

violations of gender rights and determining appropriate redress for the complainant 

and sanction for the transgressors is an important function. The CGE receives 

complaints from the public, referrals from the Human Rights Commission (HRC) and 

the Public Protector, in addition to initiating investigations on its own accord into 

systemic gender-rights violations. The legal department had opened 858 files in 

the financial year 2014-2015, thus exceeding the annual target of 720 files by 138 

files. The following table depicts the number of files opened during the 2014-2015 

financial year.

New files opened during 2014 / 2015

nature of Complaint Gp ho Lp WC Mp nW fs KZn eC nC ToTAL

Gender Discrimination 7 8 9 10 4 4 6 16 10 13 87

Domestic Violence 4 5 1 0 14 2 6 1 11 9 53

Maintenance 7 6 29 3 12 7 11 8 3 16 102

Divorce 5 9 5 2 13 5 14 2 2 6 63

Custody & access 6 2 1 1 2 3 8 2 5 5 35

Estate 4 6 9 1 36 1 10 1 5 1 74

Gender-Based Violence 2 1 12 8 10 8 2 20 8 3 74

Sexual Harassment/Abuse 5 4 0 2 1 2 0 5 5 1 25

Overview of Programmes
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nature of Complaint Gp ho Lp WC Mp nW fs KZn eC nC ToTAL

Labour 6 7 1 2 11 2 4 0 8 4 45

Unlawful Eviction 0 5 1 0 8 1 2 1 0 3 21

Claim for Restitution 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Tradition/ culture 0 0 5 1 0 1 1 0 4 0 12

Other 25 47 27 13 25 13 19 29 36 10 244

Total 71 100 100 44 136 49 83 85 97 71 836

The following table represents the files handled according to the complaints manual during the 

2014-2015 financial year.

province Brought forward files Opened files Closed files files pending 

Gauteng 46 71 91 26

Head Office 0 100 26 74

Limpopo 40 100 113 27

Western Cape 22 44 54 12

Mpumalanga 91 136 199 28

north West 33 49 42 40

free state 105 83 67 121

KwaZulu-natal 76 85 57 104

eastern Cape 54 97 101 50

northern Cape 68 71 113 26

Total 535 836 863 508
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9.1.2. Legal clinics were conducted in all provinces

The legal department has adopted an aggressive campaign to conduct legal advice 

clinics and advocacy campaigns in both urban and rural settings. Key partners include 

community advice centres, women’s shelters, government departments, fellow 

Chapter 9 organisations, traditional leaders, community-based organisations, NGOs, 

and community leadership structures.

Legal advice clinics aim to provide access to legal advice and, in turn, justice to 

communities throughout South Africa. A total of 134 legal clinics were held in the 

financial year 2014-2015, thus exceeding the yearly target of 108.

province Area/Town Urban / Rural ToTAL

Gauteng Bronkhorstspruit Urban 13

Atteridgeville Semi-urban

OR Tambo Informal Settlement Semi-urban

Randfontein Urban

Orange farm Semi-urban

Tembisa Semi-urban

Mamelodi Semi-urban

Tembisa Semi-urban 

Germiston Civic Centre Urban 

Diepsloot Informal settlement 

Etwatwa Rural 

Daveyton

Armcare in Alberton Urban 

northern Cape Kimberley Urban 12

Jan Kemp dorp Urban

Mothibistad Rural

Katu Semi-urban

Majeng Rural

Groblershoop Rural

Keimos Rural

Ulco Rural

Delportshoop Rural 
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province Area/Town Urban / Rural ToTAL

north West Setlopo Clinic-Setlopo Village Rural 12

Lehurutshe Rural

Moretele Rural

Seutelong

Rustenburg Urban

Setlagole Rural

Khayakhulu Tribal Hall Rural

 Klerksdorp Urban 

Groot Marico Rural

Marikana West Rural

Barolong  Boora-Tshidi Rural

 Mafikeng Urban

free state Parys Semi-rural 18

Marquard Rural

Trompsburg Semi-urban

Bethlehem Urban

QwaQwa Semi-urban

Wepenaar Semi-urban

Bloemfontein Urban

ThabaNchu Rural 

Henneman Semi-urban

Dewetsdorp Semi-rural

Zamani, Memel Rural

Vredefort

Khotsong Informal settlement

Senekal Semi-rural
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province Area/Town Urban / Rural ToTAL

Head Office Orange Farm Semi-rural 12

Johannesburg Urban

Tshwane Urban

Balfour Park Urban

Kagiso Semi-urban

Regina Munde, Evaton Semi-urban

Sebokeng Semi-urban

Kagiso Semi-urban

Limpopo Mankweng Semi-rural 18

Moletsi Tribal Authority Urban

Kgapane Rural

University of Venda Rural

Kibi Rural

Sekhukhune Rural

Bolokwa Village Rural 

Seshego Semi-urban

Bochum Rural

Gamamabolo Rural

Polokwane Urban

Mpumalanga Msholozi Advice Centre                                                                Semi-urban 17

Grip Semi-rural

Nelspruit Urban

Delmas Urban

White River Urban

KwaGuqa Rural

Delmas Urban

Nelspruit Urban

Tonga Rural

Nelspruit Urban

Msogwaba Rural



51

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT  2014-2015Commission for Gender Equality
A society free from gender oppression and inequality

province Area/Town Urban / Rural ToTAL

Western Cape City of Cape Town Semi-rural 5

Knysna Urban

Worcester Informal settlement

Elsies River Informal settlement

Paarl Informal settlement

eastern Cape Mxamowethu Public Primary 
School

Rural 15

East London Semi-urban

Berlin Urban

Matatiele Rural

Mthatha Semi-urban

Mdantsane Semi-urban

Ncera Village 9 Rural

Komga Rural

Ethembeni Rural

Elliotdale Semi-urban

Qumbu Village Rural

Qunu Rural

KwaZzulu-natal  Pietermaritzburg Urban 12

Edendale Urban 

Greentown Rural

Chatsworth Peri-urban

Cato Manor Urban

Amatimatolo Rural

Durban Urban

Swayimane, New Hanover Rural

Durban Urban

9.1.3. Litigation 

Western Cape High Court Jezile v the State – Ukuthwala

The CGE had successfully joined as amicus curiae in this matter. Mvumeleni Jezile was 

sentenced for 22 years in jail for trafficking a 14 year old girl whom he later turned 

into his wife The Children’s Act and Child Justice Act as well as Human Trafficking, 

Marriage Act, Recognition of Customary Marriages Act were all been flouted in this 
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case. The courts also found that the victim’s constitutional rights, dignity and freedom 

have been impugned by the perpetrator in collusion with the family. Judgement on 

this case was delivered on 23 March 2015, when a full bench of the Western Cape 

High Court dismissed the appeal. In essence, the judgement denounces Jezile’s 

defence that he was legitimately married to the child under the customary practice 

of ukuthwala. The court noted that there needs to be consent from both parties for a 

marriage to be concluded. It also noted that the custom of ukuth wala in its true form 

does not involve the rape and abuse of women and young girls.

Western Cape High Court Muslim Marriages Bill / Law

The department  consulted with the Legal Resource Centre to join as amicus curiae in 

the court application, Women’s Legal Centre v President of the Republic of South Africa 

and Others launched in the Western Cape High Court during December 2014.

The CGE’s point of departure was the relief/remedy sought.  As a constitutional expert 

body tasked with protecting the rule of law and constitutionality within a gender 

equality framework, the CGE shall be guiding the court to find a suitable solution 

to the suffering faced by many Muslim women. The CGE has successfully joined as 

amicus curiae. Heads of Argument are to be filed on  29 May 2015. A progress report 

will be drafted in the new financial year.

Neil Coulson v Steph& Marina Neethling

The matter was heard before the Bellville Equality Court in the Western Cape. The 

CGE was successfully joined as amicus curiae where the complainant Mr. Neil Coulson 

and his husband were denied accommodation at the guest-house owned by the 

Neethlingsbecause  they are in a same-sex marriage. 

The presiding officer therefore ruled in favour of mediation instead of litigation on 

the grounds that it would be in the interest of justice and the parties to try to resolve 

the matter. Should mediation fail, the complainant may place the matter back on the 

court roll for litigation. Mediation  was scheduled for April 2015.

Chieluele v Desmond Tutu Centre for leadership and Murenga v Desmond Centre 

for leadership  

This matter was before the White River Magistrates Court. It relates to sexual 

harassment in the workplace and hate speech by the employer. The employer locks 

the complainants in the office when they come to work and keeps the keys with him 

in order to restrict their movements, including restricting the complainants from 

communicating with colleagues. It became  clear that the CEO had no intention of 
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respecting the bill of rights in a workplace, so litigation and an appropriate court order 

was necessary to implement legal remedies to ensure eradication of harassment and 

unfair discrimination. The matter was referred for direct hearing on  15August and 

22 September 2014 respectively. Both the CGE and the respondent argued their case 

and led evidence including heads of arguments. Return date was 10 November 2014 

for judgement. The respondent negotiated with CGE for settlement in this matter to 

pay each complainant an amount in the sum of R 10 000.00 each.

9.1.4. systemic investigations

Maternal health and obstetrics

The Legal Department began maternal health investigations, where two provincial 

hospitals, one urban and one rural in each province, were identified in order to access 

the standard of care. The Commission’s point of departure during this investigation 

was that women residing in their respective regions do not have access to state 

facilities in other regions, as well as the concomitant failure of the state to ensure 

reasonable and equitable access to services to reduce infant mortality and morbidity.  

The following factors were assessed for each hospital.

• Bed occupancy

• Maternity workload (deliveries, caesarean sections, total operations and hospital 

occupancy

• Number of medical staff covering gynaecology and maternity especially the 

antenatal ward, post-natal ward,  and night duty in all sections relating to 

obstetrics and gynaecology.

The investigation report has been drafted and defaulting hospitals that failed and/

or neglected to provide the CGE with adequate information will be asked to appear 

before the Commission during the 2015-2016 financial year.

judicial services Commission investigation

The Legal Department has completed its investigative report. The report details the 

next steps that the Commission will embark on during the 2015-2016 financial year 

in order to address the paucity of women in the judiciary and the legal profession as 

a whole. 

sex-work investigation

The rationale of this investigation is to attempt to overturn the S v Jordan that 

criminalises sex work. In this quest the legal department has drafted questionnaires 

to sex workers in order to determine the challenges which these  workers face on a 
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daily basis. The completed questionnaires have been submitted; however, additional 

questionnaires from key role players have not been submitted. Consequently, the 

Commission will issue a notice to appear against the key role players and to provide 

the Commission with evidence during the 2015-2016 financial year.

9.1.5. Gender transformation hearings

The department’s gender transformation hearings in  higher-learning institutions 

were the Department of Higher Education, The University of Venda and the University 

of South Africa. These  three entities  appeared before the Commission in November 

2014. The lack of female representation at management levels, lack of sexual 

harassment policies, child-care facilities and staff retention policies were found to be 

rife in the higher-learning institutions. The investigative report has been completed 

and it details recommendations to each institution. A follow-up hearing will take 

place in the third quarter of the 2015-2016 financial year. 

 organisations  coming to present

CGe Commisioners

sWoRn in



55

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT  2014-2015Commission for Gender Equality
A society free from gender oppression and inequality

9.1.6. Court monitoring

The legal department had embarked on its court monitoring assessment during 

the 2014-2015 financial year, The assessment took the form of both administering 

questionnaires and onsite visits on an impromptu basis by legal officers. Special focus 

was made to the following courts: 

• Sexual offences courts

The department found that not all magistrates’courts have an established sexual 

offences court. Furthermore, where  a sexual offences Court does exist, the 

department found that the court staff have received minimal training on the 

Sexual Offences and Related Matters Amendment of Act of 2007. It was also 

found that obtaining the DNA results contributes to the backlog of cases relating 

to sexual offences.

• Maintenance courts

Many of the applicants interviewed by the department state that the services at 

courts were very poor and that they are expected to wait all day with no assistance 

being offered.  In fact, some observations at courts noted that it was undesireble 

to witness maintenance applicants waiting in queues, some of whom had been 

at the court from 9h00to12h30 to be attended to. At these courts maintenance 

heads basically reiterated that due to staff shortages, they are unable to improve 

the situation.

• equality courts

The CGE found that the majority of the courts surveyed are not functional. In some 

instances the courts have never received a single case since their  inception.

• Domestic violence courts

The CGE found that the need for further training and re-training on the Domestic 

Violence Act and privacy during consultations with applicants is a challenge.  

Owing  to lack of office space, the officials are compelled to interact with survivors 

of violence in an open office and hence the confidentiality and privacy aspect is 

contravened. It was further found that majority of the courts are understaffed, 

even though they are receiving an overwhelming number of complaints. 

sWoRn in
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9.2. Department of public education and information
The department is responsible for developing, conducting and managing education 

and information programmes. This function ensures fostering public understanding on 

matters relating to gender and gender equality. The CGE has also engaged in dialogues 

and information-sharing sessions with communities, traditional leaders, faith-based 

organisations, Chapter 9 institutions and NGOs on a range of gender-related issues, such 

as gender-based violence and  LGBTI organisations. 

9.2.2. 16 Days of Activism campaign

A concept paper to guide activities that the Commission undertook during the 16 

days of Activism was drafted. During the period under review  the Public Education 

and Information Programme (PEI)  collaborated with stakeholders, such as the Public 

Protector, South African Human Rights Commission (SAHRC), the Independent 

Electoral Commission (IEC)SALGA, LGBTIs, SA Council of Churches (SACC), Provincial 

Houses of Traditional Leadership, South African Police Services and civil society 

and government departments to assist in realising the campaign. Provincial offices 

implemented the objectives of the concept paper.   

Key lessons learnt and emerging issues raised during the campaign include the 

following.

• Further engagements on intimate partner killings also known as femicide need to 

take place. Monitoring of SAPS on the implementation of the Domestic Violence 

Act and the Sexual Offences Act is critical to ensure that cases relating to sexual 

assault and domestic violence are handled correctly.

• Access to maintenance remains a challenge.

• Poverty in many areas forces young girls to engage in transactional sex.

• Human trafficking often leads to transactional sex and enslaving women.

• The 365 days National Action Plan has collapsed due to lack of resources.

9.2.3. Engagements with the traditional leadership and the religious sector on gender 

equality

Provinces were expected to engage PHTLs and the religious sector and facilitate the 

signing of MoUs which would outline working relations and information-sharing in 

issues of cultural and religious practices that impact on the achievement of gender 

equality. A concept paper was developed and circulated to all provinces.  Provinces 

held meetings with both the provincial traditional leadership and the religious sector 
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to discuss working relations and further interventions on sharing information on 

gender discrimination issues and gender equality. Interventions took place across 

provinces.

Key issues and emerging issues raised include the following.

• In some provinces cultural and traditional practices have negative impact on 

achieving gender equality and therefore a more rigorous education programme 

needs to be developed around cultural and traditional practices.

• Traditional leaders in some provinces  are reluctant to engage in cultural practices 

that impact on gender equality.

• The relationship with traditional leaders in Mpumalanga, Eastern Cape and 

Northern Cape has improved through continuous engagements.

• Many faith-based organisations are not keen to debate issues of sexuality and 

sexual orientation.

9.2.4. Women’s Month Campaign

During the month of August, the Commission embarked on a range of public activities 

to highlight issues concerning the welfare of women, particularly issues pertaining to 

access to reproductive health services. Interventions focused on raising awareness on 

the rights to access of reproductive and maternal health. Provinces conducted these 

interventions in collaboration with the Department of Health and the Department of 

Social Development across provinces.

Key lessons learnt during the campaign include the following.

• The level of maternal health/antenatal care is very low.  Pregnant women often 

do not attendan ante-natal clinic.

• Teenage pregnancy is rife; girls as young as 14  are sexually active and complications 

are often  experienced during child- birth.

• Abortion  clinics are often not accredited and result in complications  for many 

women and girls; while abortion is legal, it must be done before the pregnancy is 

at three months.

• The new contraceptive implant, Implanon, has side effects–  women are advised 

not to lift any heavy objects for three days after insertion. This may impact on the 

nature of the  work that needs to be conducted in the workplace.

• Many HIV positive women continue to face challenges during pregnancy, including 

forced sterilisation.
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9.2.5. Outreach areas covered by the Commission

provinces outreach Areas covered (Geographic areas)

eastern Cape Bisho, Mthatha;  East London;  Idutywa;  Etholeni Village;  Mbashe, Elliotdale, 
Nguqushwa Tulu Village, Ncerha Village, Willowdale, Peelton Village, 
Cala, Mahubini Village, Qunu Village, Qumbu, Sterkspruit, Ngqumakher, 
Ntanankulu, Mt frère, Riebeeck East, Amothole

free state ThabaNchu, Bloemfontein, Tshiame Village, Qwaqwa, Khutsong, 
Batshabelo, Thabong, Hennemann, Welkom

Gauteng Pretoria, Johannesburg, Randfontein, Vereeniging, Lesedi, Wattville, 
Mamelodi, Boipatong, Tembisa, Pretoria North, Dobsonville, Diplsloot, 
Etwata

KwaZulu-natal Umzimkulu; Inanda, Durban, Umlazi, Escort, KwaNdengezi, Kwamakhutha, 
Empangeni, Utrecht, Mpukunyoni, Vryheid, Greytown, Pietermaritzburg, 
Ladysmith, Mbazwane, Matimatolo,  Unthngulu, Ozwathini, Swayimane, 
Stanger, Osizweni,  Umkhanyakude, Ekamanzi, Dundee, Ulundi, 

Limpopo Polokwane,  Tzaneen, Seshego, Thohoyandou, Boyne, GaMamabolo, 
Moletjie, Makubu, Apel, Bochum, Giyani, GaNtwane, Phagameng, Manini

Mpumalanga Ehlanzeni, Emalahleni, Nelspruit, Delmas, Lebowakgomo, Ntunda, 
Driekoppies, Msogwaba Tribal village, Mpuluzi,  Malelane, KaMhlushwa, 
Masibekela, Clau-Clau, Mvangatini, Barberton

northern Cape Postmansburg, Kimberley, Phutanang, Jan Kempdorp, Petrusville, Leratong 
Park, Kampaneng, Bothetheketsa, Griquastad, Majeng, Groblershoop, 
Keimos, Delpoortshoop, Hopetown, Uloc

north West Mafikeng, Madibogo Village, Coligny, Mmabatho, Rustenburg, Mantsa, 
Ganalaagte, Lebubong, Selagole, Phela, Witrandjies, Pouval, Macquassi 
Hills, Ottosdal, Groot Maricho, Ventersdorp, Klerksdorp, Leporung, 
Khayakhulu, Klerksdorp, Marikana

Western Cape Kalkfontein, Overberg, Cape Town, Khayalethu, Mbekweni, Paarl, 
Louville Community, Vredenburg, St Helena Bay, Vredenburg, Hermanus, 
Malmesbury, Zwelethemba, Worcester, Oudtshoorn, Elsiesriver, Bellville, 
Pinelands, Swellendam, Wellington, Mossel Bay
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9.2.6. The total number  people reached on interventions are shown ion the following table.

province female Male Total

eastern Cape 937 661 1598

free state 434 456 890

Gauteng 1511 1091 2602

KwaZulu-natal 617 422 1039

Limpopo 1813 1182 2995

Mpumalanga 539 465 1004

northern Cape 438 145 583

north West 1650 713 2363

Western Cape 2662 1728 4390

 Total 10601 6863 17464

9.2.7. Education Programme through community radio stations 

CGE entered into a partnership with the National Electronic Media Institute of South 

Africa (Nemisa) as a production partner, the SABC Foundation and SABC Education 

as programme and broadcast partners, and the National Community Radio Forum as 

an institutional partner responsible for distribution of content for community radio 

stations.  The following tables  indicate the approximate numbers reached through 

NCRF and SABC radio stations which yielded a total of 56 radio slots/interviews.
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nCRf radio stations 

station Listenership 

MaputolandFm 47 000

Radio Kaboesna 2 000

Radio Moletsi 11 000

Qwaqwa Radio 154 000

Takalani Community Radio 54 000

TUT Fm 1 000

JoziFm 444 000

Radio Bushbuckridge 225 000

Barberton Fm 106 000

sAbC Radio stations programmes

Radio station Average listenership

Thobela FM Average weekly audience: 2.798 million adults

MunghanaLonene FM Average weekly audience: 1.175 million adults 

Ligwalagwala FM Average weekly audience: 1.391 million adults

Ukhozi FM Average weekly audience: 7.188 million adults

UmhloboWenene FM Average weekly audience: 4.085 million adults

Tru FM Average weekly audience: 275 thousand adults

Lesedi FM Average weekly audience: 3.584 million adults 

X-K FM Average weekly audience: 5 thousand adults 
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Radio station Average listenership

Motsweding FM Average weekly audience: 3.180 million adults 

Ikwekwezi FM Average weekly audience: 1 734 million adults 

Radio2000 Average weekly audience: 790 thousand adults 

SAfm Average weekly audience: 600 thousand adults 

Power FM Average weekly audience: 89 thousand adults 

9.2.8. #Bringbackourgirls campaign

In 2014, news broke of the kidnapping of 276 Nigerians schoolgirls by Islamist group 

Boko Haram, in the Chibok Community, Borno State in Nigeria. This was widely known 

from several media reports and statements from the Nigerian government that Boko 

Haram kidnapped the schoolgirls in a bid to display dissent with Western education 

and education for girls. 

While it was understood that there was a global campaign (hashtag campaign 

#BRINGBACKOURGIRLS) aimed at exerting pressure for the release of the girls, many 

organisations heeded the call to join in support of the campaign. The Commission 

ran a ‘silent campaign’ through protesting at the Nigerian embassy in support of 

the release of the girls. The ‘silent campaign’ symbolised action to which those who 

were still silent on the matter needed to rise up and support the campaign in their 

respective capacities. The silence also symbolised the need for ‘reflection’, that is, the 

need to reflect on issues pertaining to the safety and well-being of the kidnapped 

school-girls;  relevant parties aimed to build solidarity in their efforts to promote the 

campaign. The Commission also produced a 30-second clip that was viewed on SABC 

TV for a period of one month, emphasising  its support.
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9.3. Research Department
For the financial year 2014-2015 the research work undertaken by the Research 

Department provided support for CGE’s strategic objective, which is to ensure the creation 

and implementation of an enabling legislative framework that promotes the attainment 

of gender equality, and Strategic Objective 3 which aims to monitor state compliance with 

regional and international conventions, covenants and charters which have been acceded 

to or ratified by the Republic relating to the objects of the CGE. The reports produced 

served as a basis for informing some of the activities of the Commission as outlined in this 

sub-section. 

9.3.1. Gender Barometer

The department has been conducting a series of studies on different departments 

since 2009 to assess progress in mainstreaming gender equality through their 

programmes, plans, strategies and projects. Gender mainstreaming is an integral part 

of transforming government to redress historical gender imbalances. The study is 

undertaken with the use of an online-based tool that is administered by the respective 

departments and signed off to the Commission by the accounting officers within the 

respective departments under study.

The assessment is made on the following broad themes.

• Policies for transforming gender relations

• Gender budgeting

• Sex-disaggregated data

• Information on organisational structures, operations and capacity for gender 

mainstreaming.

The department focused on the Department of Arts and Culture (DAC) and COGTA 

at national level. At provincial level the focus was on the Department of Sports, Arts, 

Culture and Recreation. The name differed per the Province which was experienced 

with the Department of Safety and Security on the study that was conducted in 2013-

2014.

The findings indicate that significant progress is being made by government 

departments in terms of  improvements in the numerical representation of women 

at senior management levels. However, progress in the numerical representation of 

women in senior management positions inthe public sector is not necessarily being 

matched by similar improvements in terms of substantive gender mainstreaming, 

particularly in areas such as gender-responsive budgeting, institutional capacity 
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building, and  internal measures and programmes to promote organisational cultures 

and systems that are conducive to effective gender mainstreaming. 

9.3.2. From Rhetoric to Gender Reality: Women’s  participation & representation

Over a number of years, the Commission has been closely monitoring the process 

of elections. The purpose has always been to establish whether the authorities are 

complying with the policy and legislative frameworks to ensure that the processes 

are geared towards addressing the historical legacy of gender imbalances, as well as 

complying with the SADC Protocol on Gender and Development that advocates 50/50 

representation of men and women in political party leadership.

The Commission monitored the May 2014 elections.  The study focused on the three 

phases of the elections, which were:

• Pre-elections phase

• Proceedings on elections/voting

• Post-elections phase.

The findings on the 2014 elections demonstrate that there has been a decline of 

women’s representation in the National Assembly after the 2014 elections. From 43 

per cent representation to 39.75 per cent. As a result, this is a concern for South 

Africa as it affects the stance in terms of compliance with the SADC Protocol as South 

Africa was number two in the region after Rwanda, and number four in the world.

9.3.3. National Council on Gender Based Violence Study

The Commission conducted a follow up study on the National Council on Gender 

Based Violence. The findings demonstrate that the Council has collapsed due to a 

number of factors which include:

• Lack of accountability

• Lack of political will

• Lack of coherence of strategies to coordinate activities geared towards addressing 

GBV in the country

• Lack of leadership

• Lack of understanding of the context on the role of the Department of Women 

within the council

• The council being situated within the Department of Women was also highlighted 

as the disabling factor
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• Legal entities of making the National Council on Gender-based Violence (NCGBV) 

secretariat independent also contributed to the perceived failure of the council.

It was however found that the civil society organisations have formed a task team 

leading the process of developing the National Strategic Plan. The plan is one of 

the core mandates that the NCGBV was supposed to develop under the support of 

UNFPA, but the process was stopped at its third phase by the leadership of the new 

Ministry (Ministry of Women). It was further found  that the process of fighting GBV 

has been allocated to different departments and organisations working in silos and 

employing fragmented plans in fighting the scourge of GBV. It was again found that 

this is backsliding in terms of compliance with international standards. This is because  

the multi-sectoral approach was a recommendation from the CEDAW Committee 

during the 2011 period of reporting.  

9.3.4. African Gender Development Index

The AGDI (South Africa) is a CGE project in partnership with UNECA. In line with the 

guidelines from UNECA, the CGE has secured a consultant, NAP members, and data 

collectors to work with the CGE research team.

The process of this study started with the establishment of the National Advisory 

Panel from different fields. The NAP was trained by the UNECA expert on their 

responsibilities as the members of NAP. The first draft of the study has been finalised 

and is ready to be presented to the NAP for discussion. The findings cannot be shared 

as the study is not complete. (The study will straddle into the new financial year).  
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9.4. provincial highlights
9.4.1. Eastern Cape

The CGE Eastern Cape Office for the financial year 2014- 2015 implemented a number 

of programmes guided by strategic objectives that appear on the Annual Performance 

Plan (APP) of the CGE. 

During the period under review a number of strategic partnerships were established 

and further strengthened through  working relations with stakeholders who are 

based in the Eastern Cape Province.

• Mou with  the provincial house of Traditional Leadership 

The Eastern Cape office, through the office of the chairperson, signed an MoU 

with the Eastern Cape House of Traditional leaders represented by its deputy 

chairperson.  From this MoU, the two institutions commit on working together on 

issues that relate to their mandates, as well as advancing joint programmes that 

aim to empower traditional leaders on human rights and gender-equality-related 

matters. 

The Eastern Cape office successfully implemented policy dialogues with key 

decision makers from provincial departments,, which  prompts follow- ups on 

the recommendation of the policy dialogues by different senior managers of 

government departments in the province. 

9.4.2. Free State

The Free State provincial office also embarked on a number of projects that aimed to 

raise awareness of the mandate of the CGE within different levels of the provincial 

government and society in general. The projects were in the form of information 

sessions which targeted community audiences, high-level meetings with provincial 

government departments, the provincial legislature, and stakeholders that play a 

supporting role in the activities of the CGE. Some of the highlights of the province 

include the following.

• Information sessions were planned and organised in Qwaqwa, and ThabaNchu 

with the House of Traditional Leaders. At the centre of these discussions were 

issues on LGBTIs, and widowhood; the main aim of these information sessions 

was  to ensure that the constitutional rights of the constituencies of traditional 

leaders are protected.  

• The provincial office also convened a meeting with the Mangaung Ministers 

Fraternal to forge partnerships in dealing with gender equality matters as part of 



66

ANNUAL REPORT  2014-2015 Commission for Gender EqualityCommission for Gender Equality
A society free from gender oppression and inequality

the APP. This engagement resulted in the signing of an MoU with the Mangaung 

Ministers Fraternal. 

• As a means to strengthen support for provincial activities, a meeting was held 

with community development workers to establish a working relationship on 

matters pertaining to dialogues on early childhood and forced marriages.  This  

resulted in community dialogues held in Dinaweng and Khayalitsha. 

• The office participated in the forum on institutions supporting democracy which 

consistede of SAHRC, OPP, Public Service Commission, Auditor General and Legal 

Aid. This participation contributed to the establishment of a common programme, 

with  CGE leading the Forum during women’s month and the 16 Days campaign. 

• The office convened a men and boys’ seminar on gender equality with the 

Henneman Victim Empowerment Forum to sensitise and open a platform for men 

to discuss and share experiences on issues that result in gender and domestic 

violence. In this regard, interventions have  been created to deal with the scourge 

of GBV through partnerships with provincial government departments and civil 

society organisations.  

• The provincial office convened an information session on GBV with the SAPS, 

school governing bodies, teachers, learners and their representatives, and 

community members. This resulted in partnerships with the SAPS, to jointly 

manage emerging issues on GBV with the assistance of the office of the provincial 

commissioner of the SAPS.  

9.4.3. Gauteng

The Gauteng Provincial Office effectively implemented the programmes of the 

commission as per the annual performance plan to move South Africa towards a 

society free from gender oppression and inequality. 

Through various collaborative partnerships, for example the City of Tshwane, the 

Departmenyt of Education, the Department of Energy, Etwatwa and Bronkhorstspruit 

local municipality, the office was able to reach  the wider community of Gauteng. The 

2014-2015 financial year saw the office making an impact through planned and adhoc 

programmes responding to the community needs as issues arose. These programmes 

include, but are not limited to, International Rural Women’s Day, Sixteen Days of 

Activism Against Women and Children Abuse, Human Rights Month: Know Your 

Rights, Women’s Month under the theme(Sexual and Reproductive Health Rights), 

participating in an LGBTI discussion session where focus was on promoting their rights  

as outlined in the Constitution of the country. The legal department conducted a 
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number of court monitorings and a series of legal clinics in various communities to 

raise awareness of gender rights and popularise CGE as an institution and its mandate. 

One of the main achievements of the provincial office was to successfully intervene 

and mediate in a case that was brought before Nkosi Mahlangu, traditional leader 

in Etwatwa after a woman asked CGE to be present for fear of bias from the chief 

as a result of the apparent relationship between the chief and the respondent (her 

husband). CGE’s intervention on this matter culminated in a series of engagements 

with the chief and local councillor with a view to conducting a series of legal clinics 

and information- sharing sessions on GBV with the community.

9.4.4. KwaZulu-Natal
• Men and Gender equality

Based on a grievance letter sent to the Office of the President and the chairperson 

of the CGE by Isikhalo Samadoda, the CGE called a meeting aimed at dialoguing 

and debating on the issues that concern this organisation. The main complaint 

of this organisation is inequality in the laws and the manner in which they are 

interpreted and implemented to discriminate and oppress men. 

Several pieces of legislation and interventions of government were quoted as 

being discriminatory. These include the Domestic Violence Act, the Maintenance 

Act, campaigns like the 16 Days of activism of No Violence Against Women and 

Children, and women’s economic empowerment programmes. According to this 

organisation these are influenced by feminist theories, thus are oppressive and 

promote hatred for men. According to them, men have become victims of these 

legislations and programmes and women are taking advantage of men as a result. 

Deliberations revealed that there is a poor understanding of the laws, their 

interpretation and the intention of government programmes aimed at addressing 

inequality and social injustices. At the end of a robust and sometimes emotional 

debate, the way forward indicated that there is a need to further engage men’s 

organisations – such as Isikhalo and others – on issues of equality and education 

about relevant South African laws. 

• partnerships 

While the organisation survives on a minimal budget from treasury, some 

activities were conducted to the maximum by way of  partnerships with other 

stakeholders which assisted the office to achieve more with fewer resources. Of 

particular note has been the partnership the office enjoyed with the Department 
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of COGTA. This partnership brought together religious leaders, traditional leaders 

and civil society organisations in dialogue, and decided a way forward on matters 

pertaining to forced marriages, marriages of minor children and ukuthwala. 

Eleven activities were done in all 11 district municipalities of KZN. The National 

Prosecuting Authority (NPA) and SAPS also played  a part in educating leaders on 

their role in the matters and coming up with suggestions for collaboration. 

9.4.5. Limpopo

• Consultative engagement with Traditional Leaders

The CGE Limpopo, in collaboration with the House of Traditional Leaders, hosted 

a consultative dialogue with traditional leaders from all over the province. The 

overarching objective was to ensure that our cultures are in sync with the provisions 

of the Constitution and also to ensure that gender equality is a reality within the 

sphere of traditional leadership. Another issue was GBV within local communities, 

and also  that there is a move from the premise that traditional leaders have the 

capacity to handle GBV matters and also educate their patrons about the dangers 

and effects of GBV. Therefore by working with relevant stakeholders their capacity 

will be enhanced. The CGE is also in a process of signing a MoU with the Limpopo 

House of Traditional Leaders and presents an opportunity to consult traditional 

leaders on pertinent issues that would need intervention from the CGE.

The provincial office also invited the Limpopo ‘LGBTI proudly out’ group and 

the CRL Commission as partners during the workshop. The aim was to create a 

platform for these two organisations to promulgate their mandates and to create 

an opportunity for them to build working relationships with traditional leaders in 

order for them to have access to communities. 

The CGE in Limpopo, through collaboration with the Limpopo ‘LGBTI proudly out’ 

hosted an engagement with about 20 LGBTIs in  the Capricorn district. This was 

mainly to educate them on their rights and how to access justice; a result was 

the  realisation that LGBTIs in the province are not well versed  on their rights 

and also on how to access them. The CGE and the ‘proudly out’ persons shared 

responsibilities and logistics, the CGE provided the venue (CGE boardroom) and 

the ‘proudly out’ individuals procured catering from their own funds. The ‘proudly 

out’ people presented their mandate, which is to organise LGBTIs in the province 

and also to have educational programmes with them, on health and human rights 

in particular. The LGBTI community is considered to be high risk in terms of HIV/

AIDS and the ‘proudly outs’  also realised that substance abuse is rife within  the 

LGBTI community. Another issue was that of hate crimes and community attitudes 
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towards LGBTIs. The ‘proudly outs’  emphasised that there is a need for integration 

and that a lot of work has been done among stakeholders and little work done 

at the grassroots level within communities. The CGE gave a brief background of 

the status quo in South Africa in terms of LGBTIs and highlighted some of the 

challenges faced by LGBTIs in other African states.

• Men’s dialogue 

The office collaborated with the provincial department of agriculture’s mens 

forum. The objective of the dialogue was to sensitise men on issues of gender 

equality and human rights in general. We moved from a premise that for any society 

to attain gender equality we need to be inclusive in all sectors of the population, 

and because we are a patriarchal society, focus should be on men in our quest for 

deconstructing patriarchy and androcentrism.  The focus areas of the dialogue 

was on men’s health, indigenous knowledge, and its impact on health, estates and 

wills, maintenance and domestic violence, etc. The dialogue was attended by the 

MEC Mme Joy Masoga and head of the department.

9.4.6. Mpumalanga

During the year under review, the provincial office undertook the following projects.

• Gender-based violence in schools

The office visited six  schools to raise awareness on matters related to gender 

equality, human trafficking, forced/early marriages and the promotion of human 

rights. The visits were made to schools around Nkomazi municipality and one 

from Mbombela municipality. From the six  schools, it became clear that cases of 

rape, bullying and sexual abuse are rife, and sometimes those cases are not even 

reported to police because of  fear of stigma and pressure from their homes. 

• Community dialogues

The office conducted several community dialogues on the mandate of the CGE, 

early child and forced marriages, customary marriages, the celebration of the 

International Day for Rural Women, a workshop with the House of Traditional 

Leaders and other relevant issues to promote gender equality in the province. 

• The office conducted an information session on early or forced marriage with 

head-men and women from four different tribal authorities. The event was 

held at Msongwba Tribal Councils. The  event was attended by head-men and 

women from Mbuyane Tribal Council, Khumalo Tribal Council, Luphisi Tribal 

Council and Msongwaba Tribal Council. The purpose of the session was to 
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educate and empower all head-men and women on the alarming rate of forced 

or early marriage of young girls in the province.

• Another session on early child and forced marriages was held with the religious 

sector; the purpose of the session was to try to create a common understanding 

regarding the challenges faced by the communities and how CGE can best 

address these issues in terms of a constitutional ambit to promote the safety 

of children. The event was held at the Mbombela Civil Centre, in Nelspruit.

• During the month of August the office also hosted a seminar on reproductive 

health at Ntunda, a rural village within the Nkomazi municipality. With us were 

two doctors from the Department of Health, who made a presentation to the 

audience on reproductive health issues. Another dialogue on reproductive 

rights was conducted in Driekoppeis, focusing on issues of healthcare rights 

and limited resources, and service delivery within the ambit of health care 

rights, particularly as concerns service delivery and the accessibility of clinics 

in rural areas.

• As a result of the MoUs with the House of Traditional Leaders, the office was 

able to conduct two sets of workshops with the House of Traditional Leaders, 

one  on legal polygamous marriages and the other on Land Reform and the 

allocation of land to women.

• In Emalahleni, Extension 10, we hosted a dialogue on the rights of the LGBTI 

group. The purpose of the engagement was to look into the legal rights, both 

on listed and unlisted grounds, the challenges, community view and perception 

of gays and lesbians within their locality by community members.

• The office was also able to celebrate the International Day for Rural Women 

at an event held at Clau-Clau, under the Mbuyane Tribal Council. The campaign 

was conducted in three phases: the day started with a morning briefing session 

to the tribal council on the objectives of celebrating the day. The purpose of 

the event was to evaluate the progress of women in agriculture by identifying 

challenges and solutions.

• As a result of our Employment Equity hearings, the office initiated a programme 

to workshop all municipalities on gender mainstreaming. The  programme was 

conducted in two districts, Nkangala and Gert Sibande. The purpose was to  

highlight some of the findings of the previous EE hearings and present the 

necessary information in relation to gender mainstreaming. 
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9.4.7. Northern Cape

The provincial office has had a successful year as regards the collective leadership of 

the resident commissioner, and team efforts towards the implementation of the APP 

of the 2014/2015 financial year.

In the current period, the Northern Cape provincial office  focused on increasing public 

awareness of the activities of the province, and the CGE mandate. This was achieved 

through local community radio stations and outreach programmes conducted in rural 

communities. 

Another aspect that became a key focal area in the province was the strengthening 

of relationships with provincial stakeholders through the Chapter 9 forums that 

created meeting platforms for like-minded sister organisations for the purposes of 

strengthening constitutional democracy. Out of these stakeholders’ engagements, 

a collective effort was then made to ensure that relevant Chapter 9 institutions 

collaborate on community outreach programmes. 

In the endeavour to further strengthen stakeholder relations in the province, the 

Northern Cape office held meetings with the Office of the Speaker of the Legislature as 

a means to  revive the MoU with the Speaker of the Legislature, among other matters. 

Similarly, there had been other key engagements with the Standing Committee on 

Women, Children and People with Disability as a means to introduce newly elected 

MPLs on the role and functions of the CGE, as well as sharing information and progress 

that is needed in gender mainstreaming. 

Another achievement among the outcomes of stakeholder engagements was the 

signing of the MoU with the Provincial House of Traditional Leaders on establishing 

strategic collaborations on certain programmes. 

• interventions Gbv programme

Through several interventions, efforts were made to deal with the problem of 

GBV in the province in the form of information sessions that took place in various 

parts of the province. The interventions were mainly targeted at schools and 

thus schools in PixleyKaSeme and Frances Baard municipalities were identified 

for school visits. The interventions were also cutting across a number of social 

problems that the region was experiencing during the time of the visits, which 

included school bullying, alcohol abuse and gangsterism. The CGE brought the 

SAPS on board  who were able to conduct raids on specific schools that were 

known to have a problem of violence. 
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9.4.8. North West

The North West province embarked on a number of activities, some of which were 

aimed at strengthening existing relationships with key stakeholders in the province 

in order to deliver on the APP programmes. In some instances, certain partnerships 

were resuscitated in and actualised in the form of partnerships. Some of these include 

the following.:

• engagements with the LGbTi communities

We established partnerships with the LGBTI community in the province. This 

partnership saw the recognition of the one and only LGBTI organisation in the 

province, Gay Umbrella. Through the North West Province Office partnership 

with Gay Umbrella, the organisation now enjoys recognition by other CGE 

key stakeholders, including government. Through this partnership, when the 

provincial Department of Justice was tasked with the responsibility to establish 

a provincial task team to deal with hate crimes targeted at the LGBTI community, 

the CGE invited Gay Umbrella to be part of the task team, as CGE is also part of 

that provincial task team.

• national interfaith Council of south Africa (niCsA)

The partnership with NICSA is very critical for the CGE since some of the gender 

inequalities and patriarchy is reflected in religious institutions. The NICSA 

partnership allows CGE to have workshops and dialogues with participants from 

various religious beliefs, including but not limited to Islam, African belief systems, 

Christians, Traditional Healers and Rastafarians.  The partnership with NICSA is 

sealed with a signed MoU.

• south African Local Government Association (sALGA)

Local government is the core of service delivery and lack thereof to a large extent 

affects women and children. Partnering with the North West office of SALGA 

enables the CGE to target our activities as per respective municipal demarcations. 

We also use the partnership to collaborate and support the activities of each other. 

The partnership is formal and an MoU will be signed in the first quarter of 2015.

• victim empowerment programme (vep)

The VEP is led by the  Department of Social Development. The CGE, through its 

constitutional mandate and expertise to provide oversight to service delivery, 

plays a pivotal role in the VEP.  For instance, one of the activities that the VEP does 

is monitoring  courts and police stations to ensure that no secondary victimisation 

occurs in these institutions. This is in line with the CGE’s Strategic Objective within 

the APP and our contribution to the programme is invaluable. 



73

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT  2014-2015Commission for Gender Equality
A society free from gender oppression and inequality

• forum for institutions supporting Democracy (fisD)

This is another structure that needs resuscitation and the commission is committed 

to making sure that the structure is fully functional. At the moment the CGE, 

the Attorney General, the IEC, the Commission for Conciliation. Mediation and 

Arbitration (CCMA), the Public Protector and the Human Rights Commission HRC 

are consistent members of the FISD in the province.  This is a critical partnership 

and encourages meaningful collaboration and complementing each other’s 

efforts as Chapter 9 institutions.

9.4.9. Western Cape

The Western Cape province undertook a stakeholder engagement drive where  several 

government departments and NGOs were engaged on the mandate of the CGE. Apart 

from this initiative, the provincial office also managed to forge a partnership with the 

provincial department of local government in order to apply gender mainstreaming 

programmes in government structures. 

In a bid to raise awareness of matters pertaining to early childhood and forced 

marriages, the provincial office held a dialogue in collaboration with traditional 

leaders and the City of Cape Town. The land acquisition programme, which was 

inspired by the One Woman One Hectareof the CGE campaign was also implemented 

through engagement with the community of Chatsworth. 

A number of  stakeholder forums within different spheres of governance and society 

from which exchange of information and networking were prioritised in the year 

under review. Some of these were  the following.

• Engagements with the management team from the Department of the Premier 

so as to foster working relations on gender-related issues. 

• The Western Cape office also established working relations with the NGOs in 

Khayelitsha, which resulted in CGE and the province establishing a Khayelitsha 

Stakeholder Forum based in Khayelitsha and facilitated by Khayelitsha Police 

Station, Site B. 

• The CGE, in partnership with the SAHRC, are in the process of resuscitating 

a provincial Chapter9 forum – a series of meetings have been convened in this 

regard.
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strategic objective 1 :

To ensure the creation and implementation of an enabling legislative framework that promotes the 
attainment of gender equality

planned outcome : Continuous improvements in the legislation policies and practices to advance gender 
equality (50/50)

Sub-strategies  performance 
indicator

Annual target Actual performance for the year

Achieved/
not achieved

variance Corrective 
action

1. To monitor 
equality and 
evaluate the 
promotion  of 
gender equality and 
relevant policies 
and practices of the 
public and private 
sector and report 
parliament

One amendment 
setting as re-
defined gender 
equality target 
and timeframes in 
2014/2015 financial 
year

9 consultations 
conducted

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Number of gender 
transformation 
hearings at/on 
tertiary Institutions 

1 Investigation 
report on 
gender 
transformation 
in tertiary 

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Number of gender 
transformation 
hearings with 
targeted government 
departments 
on women’s 
empowerment and 
gender equality

1 Investigation 
report on 
gender 
transformation 
on women’s 
empowerment 
and gender 
equality

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Number of National 
Gender Barometer 
Reports on the Status 
of gender policies 
and practices in the 
public and private 
sectors

1 Gender 
barometer 
report

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Annual Performance Plan

10
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strategic objective 1 :

To ensure the creation and implementation of an enabling legislative framework that promotes the 
attainment of gender equality

planned outcome : Continuous improvements in the legislation policies and practices to advance gender 
equality (50/50)

Sub-strategies  performance 
indicator

Annual target Actual performance for the year

Achieved/
not achieved

variance Corrective 
action

2. To initiate and/
or participate 
in the review of 
the legislative 
framework in 
all spheres of 
government that 
impact on gender 
equality 

Number of 
submissions made for 
legislative and policy 
enhancement of 
the gender equality 
framework

12 submissions 
per year

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

3. To conduct 
performance 
assessments of 
political parties 
and the public and 
private sectors 
on the effective 
implementation 
of gender equality 
legislation policies 
and practices

Number of  
assessment 
reports on women 
representation in 
political parties

1 Assessment 
report on 
women’s 
representation 
in political 
parties

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

An assessment report 
prepared and tabled 
to parliament on the 
effective functioning 
of the GBV Council

1Assessment 
report on 
the effective 
functioning of 
GBV Council

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

4. To evaluate the 
implementation 
and effectiveness 
of national justice 
facilities in 
addressing gender 
discrimination.  

No of evaluation 
reports on courts 
(equality domestic 
violence, sexual 
offences and 
maintenance)

1 Court 
monitoring 
report

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action
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strategic objective 1 :

To ensure the creation and implementation of an enabling legislative framework that promotes the 
attainment of gender equality

planned outcome : Continuous improvements in the legislation policies and practices to advance gender 
equality (50/50)

Sub-strategies  performance 
indicator

Annual target Actual performance for the year

Achieved/
not achieved

variance Corrective 
action

5. To convene 
policy dialogues 
with relevant 
policy makers 
at national and 
provincial level on 
recommendations 
to promote gender 
equality contained 
in research reports 
and research 
activities

Number of dialogues 
with policy makers 
convened (based 
on research studies 
conducted in 
previous financial 
year)

18 policy 
dialogues 
conducted

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

strategic objective no. 2

To protect and promote gender equality by engaging with relevant stakeholders to educate and raise 
awareness on issues of gender equality challenge patriarchal perceptions and stereotypes and take action 
against infringements of gender rights through the implementation of appropriate redress.

planned outcome: A society educated in constitutional rights to gender equality that demonstrates the 
transformative behaviour of the obligation to respect and uphold gender equality. To further ensure effective 
and efficient application of social justice for victims of gender violations.

Sub-strategies  performance 
indicator

Annual target Actual performance for the year

  Achieved/
not achieved

variance Corrective 
action

1. To timeously 
investigate 
complaints of 
violations of gender 
rights and identify 
appropriate re dress

720 complaints 
received attended to 
in terms of the CGE 
complaints manual 
(as prescribed by the 
complaints manual)

720 complaints 
attended to in 
terms of CGE 
Complaints 
manual 

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective

No of legal clinics 
conducted in 
provinces 

108 legal clinics  Achieved  No variance  No corrective

2. initiate an 
investigation into 
systemic violations 
of gender rights and 
identify remedial 
action

A systemic 
investigation

2 systemic 
investigations 
conducted

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action
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strategic objective no. 2

To protect and promote gender equality by engaging with relevant stakeholders to educate and raise 
awareness on issues of gender equality challenge patriarchal perceptions and stereotypes and take action 
against infringements of gender rights through the implementation of appropriate redress.

planned outcome: A society educated in constitutional rights to gender equality that demonstrates the 
transformative behaviour of the obligation to respect and uphold gender equality. To further ensure effective 
and efficient application of social justice for victims of gender violations.

Sub-strategies  performance 
indicator

Annual target Actual performance for the year

  Achieved/
not achieved

variance Corrective 
action

3. To develop 
co-ordinated 
programme to 
promote gender 
equality

Number of 
co-ordination 
programmes 
developed 
with targeted 
stakeholders 
on gender 
discrimination

9 reports on 
coordinated 
programmes 
conducted in 
provinces 

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Number of 
campaigns initiated 
with the aim of 
promoting gender 
equality

1 national 
summit report 
and 3 campaign 
reports per 
province

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

To use public 
media platforms to 
disseminate gender 
equality education 
and information

54 radio slots  Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

4. To initiate 
interventions for 
the sustainable 
development 
and promotion of 
gender equality 
by addressing 
violations in the 
social cultural 
political economic 
security and human 
rights dimensions

Number of 
intervention 
programmes on 
gender violations 
initiated with 
traditional 
leadership and 
religious sector

9 provincial 
report

1  No variance  No corrective 
action
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strategic objective no. 2

To protect and promote gender equality by engaging with relevant stakeholders to educate and raise 
awareness on issues of gender equality challenge patriarchal perceptions and stereotypes and take action 
against infringements of gender rights through the implementation of appropriate redress.

planned outcome: A society educated in constitutional rights to gender equality that demonstrates the 
transformative behaviour of the obligation to respect and uphold gender equality. To further ensure effective 
and efficient application of social justice for victims of gender violations.

Sub-strategies  performance 
indicator

Annual target Actual performance for the year

  Achieved/
not achieved

variance Corrective 
action

5. To collaborate 
with organs of state 
civil society and 
other institutions 
for the effective 
development 
protection 
promotion and 
attainment of 
gender equality

No of joint 
programmes 
targeting the 
interests of LGBTsI 
with Chapter 9 
institutions 

2 joint 
coordinated 
programmes 
per province

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

strategic objective no. 3

To monitor state compliance with regional and international conventions covenants and charters which have 
been acceded to or ratified by the Republic relating to the object of the Commission for Gender Equality.

planned outcome: Assessment of state compliance with regional and international commitments that 
promote gender equality and recommendations tabled with parliament.

Sub-strategies  performance 
indicator

Annual target Actual performance for the year

Achieved/
not achieved

variance Corrective 
action

1. To conduct 
annual reviews 
and audits of state 
compliance with 
obligations under 
the conventions 
covenants and 
charters and to 
report on a regular 
basis to parliament 
and the Office of 
the speaker of 
parliament

Number of review 
reports presented 
(CEDAW Beijing 
MDG’s African 
Charter)

3 reports  Partially 
achieved

 The country 
report on 
CEDAW has 
not been 
released and 
therefore 
a critique 
assessment 
report could 
not be 
drafted

A critique 
report will be 
drafted in the 
new financial 
year once the 
country report 
has been 
finalised by 
the Ministry 
for Women.

Number of reports 
on Africa Gender 
Development Index 
(AGDI)

1 AGDI report 
drafted

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action
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strategic objective no. 3

To monitor state compliance with regional and international conventions covenants and charters which have 
been acceded to or ratified by the Republic relating to the object of the Commission for Gender Equality.

planned outcome: Assessment of state compliance with regional and international commitments that 
promote gender equality and recommendations tabled with parliament.

Sub-strategies  performance 
indicator

Annual target Actual performance for the year

Achieved/
not achieved

variance Corrective 
action

2. To interact with 
and present reports 
to national regional  
and international 
bodies on state 
compliance with 
conventions 
covenants and 
charters acceded 
to or ratified make 
recommendations 
for improvements 
and monitor 
implementation

Number of 
presentations 
made to relevant 
national regional 
and international 
stakeholders

1 presentation 
conducted

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

CEDAW training 
manual

1 training 
manual 
developed

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Simplification of 
international and 
regional conventions 
and  charters

3 booklets 
developed

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Engagements with 
stakeholders on 
CGE  attendance at 
international and 
regional events

4 
Engagements 
with 
stakeholders

 Partially 
achieved

 Engagement 
on the 
CEDAW 
report 
has not 
taken place 
because 
the country 
has not 
submitted 
its country 
report

 Engagement 
will take place 
once the 
country report 
has been 
submitted and 
the CEDAW 
committee 
communicates 
a date for the 
CEDAW sitting

strategic objective no. 4

To build an effective efficient and sustainable institution that will fulfil its constitutional mandate on gender 
equality.

Sub-strategies  performance 
indicator

Annual target Actual performance for the year

Achieved/
not achieved

variance Corrective 
action

1. To maintain 
optimal governance 
and oversight 
structures and 
policies between 
commissioners and 
the ecretariat. 

Develop and review 
a delegation of 
authority between 
the Office of the 
Chair and the CEO as 
directed by the CGE 
Act. 

1  Delegation 
of authority

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action
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strategic objective no. 4

To build an effective efficient and sustainable institution that will fulfil its constitutional mandate on gender 
equality.

Sub-strategies  performance 
indicator

Annual target Actual performance for the year

Achieved/
not achieved

variance Corrective 
action

2. To develop 
a financial 
management 
strategy that 
promotes effective 
efficient and 
economic utilisation 
of resources as well 
as accountability. 

Clean audit report 
from the AGSA

Clean audit 
report

An 
unqualified 
opinion by  
AGSA

Matter  of 
emphasis 
and control 
systems 
improvement 
areas 
indentified

 The section 
will be 
completed 
once the audit 
is finalised

Approved financial 
management 
strategy based 
on delegation 
of authority 
and revised and 
approved policies 
and procedures.  

Approved 
management 
strategy and its 
implementa-
tion based on 
delegation of 
authority and 
revised polices

 Achieved No variance No corrective 
action

Process alignment 
and internal controls 
improvements

Regular 
effective 
Key controls 
assessment by 
the AGSA

The section 
will be 
completed 
once the 
audit is 
finalised

 The section 
will be 
completed 
once the 
audit id 
finalised

 The section 
will be 
completed 
once the audit 
id finalised

Efficient 
management of 
resources towards 
an effective service 
delivery

Spending 
within budget: 
Funded APP 
cost controls 
and sound 
financial 
position

The section 
will be 
completed 
once the 
audit is 
finalised

The section 
will be 
completed 
once the 
audit is 
finalised

The section 
will be 
completed 
once the audit 
is finalised
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strategic objective no. 4

To build an effective efficient and sustainable institution that will fulfil its constitutional mandate on gender 
equality.

Sub-strategies  performance 
indicator

Annual target Actual performance for the year

Achieved/
not achieved

variance Corrective 
action

3. To develop 
and maintain an 
iT infrastructure 
that supports 
and promotes the 
organisational 
objectives of the 
CGe

% of resolutions to 
reported IT incidents 

80% of IT 
incidents 
reported 
resolved

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

ICT Infrastructure 
upgrade

4 phases of 
infrastructure 
upgrades

 Partially 
achieved 

 Procuring 
of services 
providers 
were delayed 
because 
the tender 
process could 
not deliver 
a service 
provider that 
complied 
with 
specifications 
in the bid 
documents

Project will 
be completed 
in the next 
financial year

Microsoft 
software 
upgrade and 
licensing 

Not achieved The roll out 
of the ICT 
projects 
which are 
linked to 
software 
and licensing 
were delayed 
because the 
project was 
delayed

The software 
and licensing 
will commence 
in the next 
quarter

Telephone 
management 
system.

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Enhanced 
website

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Information 
Technology policies 
reviewed and 
aligned to the new 
environment

Four  existing 
policies revised

Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Maintenance of 
Integrated business 
application software 

100% 
availability and 
reliability of 
systems

Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action
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strategic objective no. 4

To build an effective efficient and sustainable institution that will fulfil its constitutional mandate on gender 
equality.

Sub-strategies  performance 
indicator

Annual target Actual performance for the year

Achieved/
not achieved

variance Corrective 
action

4. To develop 
and implement 
comprehensive hR 
policies procedures 
and practices

Develop and 
maintain Training 
Plan and Annual 
Training Report

1 training Plan 
implemented

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Implement 
Employee Self 
Service (ESS) for 
leave applications 
and approvals  

Fully 
automated 
leave 
management 
system

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Review current 
PMDS system 
and ensure that 
APP is translated 
into individual 
performance 
measures 

Fully 
automated 
PMDS system

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Maintain and 
report on the 
implementation of 
an organisation- 
wide Employee 
Assistance 
Programme (EAP)

Assessment 
Report of Im-
plementation 
of EAP

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Review update and 
approve HR policies 

Reviewed and 
developed 
policies

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Ensure that staff 
vacancies are filled 
in line with the 
Recruitment and 
Selection Policy

100% of staff 
complement 
filled

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Conduct annual 
staff awareness 
workshops on HR 
policies and changes 
in basic conditions of 
employment

1 awareness 
program for 
each office 
and/or job 
family

 Partially 
achieved

 Dates could 
not be 
secured for 
training of 
Head office 
Staff and 
Northern 
Cape

 Training will 
take place 
in the new 
financial year
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strategic objective no. 4

To build an effective efficient and sustainable institution that will fulfil its constitutional mandate on gender 
equality.

Sub-strategies  performance 
indicator

Annual target Actual performance for the year

Achieved/
not achieved

variance Corrective 
action

5. implement 
an effective 
communications 
strategy and policy 
that promotes and 
enhances a positive 
public image of the 
CGe 

No of media releases 
and opinion pieces 
per month linked to 
programme work of 
the CGE

4 media 
monitoring 
reports 

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Workshop national 
and provincial staff 
on communication 
media and 
stakeholder policies 
and procedures 

2 policy 
workshops 
conducted

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Conduct annual 
media monitoring 
audit

1 media 
monitoring 
report

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Develop and 
manage media and 
communication 
partnerships

2 national 
partnerships

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Develop a baseline 
for social media 
interaction (baseline 
report)

1 baseline 
report 

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Report on national 
and provincial 
stakeholder 
engagements on an 
annual basis

I stakeholder 
engagement 
report

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action

Lead a process 
to develop and 
maintain a national 
and provincial 
stakeholder 
database. 

1 complete 
stakeholder 
database 

 Achieved  No variance  No corrective 
action
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11.1. information technology
overview of department 

The Information technology department prides itself on contributing to the Commission’s 

success by providing a day-to-day service support to the CGE staff, management and 

commissioners. However the ever- changing environment of technology dictates how 

technology should be re-aligned to the CGE objectives. These changes are central to 

technology improvements, governance framework and charter in order to improve service 

delivery in a more structured manner and in line with the Department of Public Service and 

Administration(DPSA) Corporate Governance of ICT (CGICT) policy framework.

The IT environmental changes to keep abreast of local and global changes in how IT and 

the Commission run their affairs and how the CGE can benefit. In the current landscape, IT 

has positioned its core objectives in delivering the state of the art technology and not only 

taking technology to higher heights, but taking technology users onboard to enjoy the 

fast-paced improvements in the field of technology. 

The CGE embarked on a project to institutionalise the corporate governance and the 

governance of ICT as an integral part of corporate governance within the Commission.  

This corporate governance of the Information and Communications Technology Policy 

Framework provides the political and executive leadership with a set of principles and 

practices that must be complied with, together with an implementation approach to be 

utilised for the corporate governance of ICT within the Commission.

The implementation of the CGICTPF is supported by implementation guidelines issued by 

the DPSA, which form the basis for the AG to perform independent audits.

Corporate Support Services

11
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To enable the Commission to implement this CGICTPF, a three-phase approach was 

followed:

a) phase 1: Corporate governance of ICT environment.

b) phase 2: Commission`s strategic objective and ICT strategic alignment

c) phase 3: Continuous improvement of corporate governance and governance of ICT.

Governance deliverables approved by management, the ITC committee and plenary of 

commissioners.

objectives status

Information Gathering  
Assess As is environment 
- Business Environment / Legislative Mandates 
- iT infrastructure: 
- network Topology  
- Server Room Configuration Diagram 
- Deployment Model  
- supplier engagement Model  
- Governance Capability - (Incorporated into the CGICT Policy / Charter)

Development of Information Plan 
- Information Plan / Business Performance Model 

 Establish Governance Capability (DPSA Framework) 

Phase 1 Deliverables: 
- Departmental CGICT Policy/ Charter - Completed (Draft attached for 
feedback)  
- Designation of Governance Champion (Defined in CGICT Policy / Char-
ter) 
- Governance and Management of ICT Framework - Completed (Defined 
in CGICT Policy / Charter
 
Phase 2 Deliverables: 
- iCT strategic plan  
- iCT implementation plan (MTef Aligned)  
- iCT operational plan  
- Common policies 
- policy on policy Drafting (policy standards) 
- policy Drafting process 
- policy Template (Drafting of all policies) 
- unique policies (iT policies) 

Phase 3 Deliverables 
- Governance improvement plans  
- iCT Monitoring & evaluation Capability 

100 % completed

100 %completed

100 % completed

100 %cCompleted

Continuous improvement 
(CGE five-year IT strategy)
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This strategy is a step-by-step/phase approach to ensure that there is a sufficient policy in place 

and governance structure within the CGE IT, operations and performance and monitoring on core 

deliverables, as well as day-to-day operational requirements. This solution will encompass the 

overall CGE strategic objectives, IT re-alignment to strategic objectives and seeking technological 

solutions to realise the CGE five-year strategies.

The following depiction gives processes followed in creating an enabling environment, for the 

phased approach in order to implement the CGICT. The following policies were submitted to 

management and ITC committee for consideration i.e. anti-virus, CGICT policy and charter, disaster 

recovery, ICT data and data security, ICT network management, ICT operations management, 

ICT security, ICT user account management, Internet usage, policy on policy drafting and policy 

template.  

Process flow

Information 
Gathering

Assess
Current

Environment
(AS  IS)

Business
Performance

Model
(TO  BE)

Close the GAP
(Alignment)

Strategic & 
Operation        

Plan

Improvement 
Plan

(Roadmap)

Monitoring & 
Evaluation

Adjustments

Information
Gathering

Establish
Governance
Capability

Governance Policy 

/ Charter

ICT Implementation 

Plan

ICT Strategic Plan

ICT 
Implementation 

Plan

phase 1: Create enabling environment

phase 2: Strategic Alignment

phase 3: Continuous Improvement
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High level IT strategic approach aligned to CGE five year strategic objectives.

The Commission`s overview of the IT strategic plan and alignment to the CGE`s business 

objectives over the five-year period, the following image   plots activities over the period with 

yearly deliverables.

Website performance
The website re-design project and development process was undertaken by IT and Communications, 
which aims to have a cleaner site, with a new look and feel, layout and design, colour scheme and 
branding.

There are new developments on:

1. Archive section – selection of relevant information from old CGE site

2. Gallery section – Images of CGE event functions 

3. Success stories – high-light of CGE success stories.
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The Commission`s site performance indicators provide a more geographical traffic per location and 

enables the CGE to see a site global presence/interest. Gender- and age- based traffic generated 

and directed to the  CGE site.
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The following  allocation is set per country and traffic directed to the Commission’s point of 

interest through the CGE website presence. The (not set) refers to mobile networks which have 

not set GPS coordinates location.

The following table gives an overview of the CGE website’s traffic  based on gender, with more 

males, at 54.15 per cent over the period from 1 April 2014 – 31 March 2015. The statistics are 

derived from Google analytics per click and session per page view or interest.
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The following table  gives an overview of the CGE website’s traffic  based on age, with more 

gender interest between the ages of 24-34 and low interest between the ages of 55-65, over the 

period from 1 April 2014- 31 March 2015. The stats are derived from Google analytics per click and 

sesssion per page view.

11.2. Communications
The Communications Unit of the Commission undertakes a number of projects that are geared 

towards supporting departments of the institution in order to raise awareness and public profile. 

In this financial year, the  Unit undertook several communication campaigns as a means to support 

the overall campaigns of the public education and information department. Some of these 

campaigns included those that appear on the APP, as well as others that were adhoc in nature. The 

communication campaigns that supported the public education and information campaigns were 

in the main developmental communication projects, aligned to strategic objective 2 of the APP i.e. 

to promote and educate the public on nuances of gender equality in South Africa. 

Key consideration was given to  ensuring that the developmental communications drive of the 

CGE reaches and targets the correct type of audiences for the purposes of educating the broader 

masses. In this context, consideration was given  to ensuring that community media, public service 

radio stations from the national broadcaster (SABC) were used as a means to reach audiences that 

are in far-flung areas of the country, in order for the CGE to remain accessible to people who would 

otherwise not have access to our services. The strategy also supports the outreach programmes 

of public education and information, as well as the legal departments of the institution, which 

continuously make strides to reach the South African masses through outreach. 
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The aspect of content creation for developmental communication activities aimed at supporting 

PEI and the legal services of the institution has remained the focal area of the communications 

unit. In other words, the communication unit creates content in the form of public service 

announcements/radio adverts that are flighted on community radio stations as well as the public 

service announcements aligned to specific campaigns of the PEI. The communication campaigns 

that are driven to support the PEI programmes are also presented in the form of radio interviews. 

Other elements of the campaigns include usage of social media and promotional material, which 

is purpose-built to suit the messaging needs of the campaigns. 

• partnerships as enablers for communication programmes

Partnerships within the sphere of communication at the Commission, have proved 

to yield optimal results/outcomes in light of the minimal funding of the institution. 

The strategic consideration in this regard takes into account the idea of collaborating 

with like-minded institutions, with cost-effective measures that aid in reaching the 

communication goals of the Commission. As explained earlier, the communications 

unit creates communication products that are aimed at educating the public about 

the mandate of the CGE as well as its strategic objectives, and for this reason, the 

CGE entered into a partnership with the National Electronic Media Institute of South 

Africa (Nemisa) as a production partner, the SABC Foundation and SABC Education as 

programme and broadcast partners and the National Community Radio Forum as an 

institutional partner responsible for the distribution of content for community radio 

stations. 

• sAbC education programme

The CGE, together with the SABC Foundation, were able to partner on the following 

projects in the financial year of 2014/2015.

• national Gender summit

The summit was a national conference that needed to raise   awareness for stakeholders 

who were to participate in the debates that took place. On this campaign drive, the 

communications unit of the CGE, together with Nemisa, jointly produced public service 

announcements reflecting on 20 years of democracy and the strides made in attaining 

gender equality as the central message. The SABC Foundation, together with the public 

service broadcast division of the SABC, donated over R250 000‘s worth of airtime in the 

form of adverts/Public Service Announcements (PSAs) to the CGE for this project. The 

PSAs were flighted across all of the SABC, prior and during the hosting of the summit.  
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• bring back our Girls Campaign

Following the disappearance of more than  200 Nigerian schoolgirls in the city 

of Chibok, in Northern Nigeria, world countries joined hands in the international 

#Bringbackourgirls Campaign. The CGE communications unit created and managed a 

campaign which included the following elements in an effort to add their voice to the 

plight of the kidnapped Nigerian girls: a social media campaign, a silent protest at the 

Nigerian Consulate, and a television campaign supported by all television stations of 

the SABC, through the assistance of SABC Foundation. The television advert/PSA was 

produced jointly by the CGE and Nemisa.

• nemisa Content Development programme

Nemisa, as CGE’s production partner, has played an important role in rendering 

strategic solutions to the manner in the CGE designs and hones abstract content 

that is aimed for broadcasting for television and radio. The partnership with Nemisa 

has been an enabler for the CGE to reach different types of audiences with different 

psychographics for various radio and television platforms, by urging  their creative 

teams to develop content  of a high quality. 

• Media release 

A total of 36 media releases were issued in this financial year which yielded the 

following.

• 52 television interviews

• 63 newspaper interviews

• 60 community radio interviews
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opinion piece

A number of opinion pieces were written for newspapers. A list of opinion pieces that were 
published follows.

• Gender gains counted  by Mr. MfanozelweShozi, The New Age,– 01/05/2014.

• Africa, don’t look away ever by Ms Thoko Mpumlwana, The Star – 26/ 05/2014.

• Elections 2014 – Observations and Reflections  by Ms Keketso Maema, SAHRC Newsletter.

• Circumcision and cultural sabotage by Mr. Mfanozelwe Shozi-  Sowetan – 22/07/2014.

• Gender equality and impossible dream by NtuthukoManzini –The Commission for Gender 
Equality: Promoting Gender Issues in South Africa ,I (Journal) Vol.14 Issue 6.

• An opinion piece penned by Commissioner Botha responding to Father [??]Smangaliso 
Mkhatshwa’sarticle  ‘Why not scrap boring women’s day’ appeared in the Sowetan, 
24September 2014,‘Scrapping women’s day celebration would be wrong.’

• “Femicide – a rising scourge- by Javu Baloyi – The New Age– 06/3/  2015.

Press releases and engagements with the media on various gender-related issues generated a 

number of interviews. The following table indicates the listenership and readership related to 

these interviews.

Radio station Average day Listenership

Ukhozi FM 3.651 million

UmhloboWenene 2.793mMillion

Lesedi 2107 million

Metro 1955 million

Motsweding 1605 million

Thobela 1535 million

RSG 1073 million

East Coast Radio 923 thousand

5FM 888 thousand

Ikwekwezi FM 881 thousand

Jacaranda 879 thousand

Gagasi 99.5 836 thousand

Ligwalagwala 730 thousand

MunghanaLonene FM 926 thousand

Capricorn FM 711 thousand

94.7 671 thousand
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newspaper Title Readership per day

Daily Sun 1,46 Million

Sunday Times 120 thousand

City Press 62 thousand

Rapport 45 thousand

Sowetan 4,3 Million

Illanga 24 thousand

Isoleswe 22 thousand

The Star 17 thousand

Beeld 17 thousand

Daily News 15 thousand

Die Burgher 14 thousand

The Citizen 13 thousand

Mail & Guardian 13 thousand

New Age 13 thousand

The Cape Argus 9 thousand

The Times 1,1 Million

[The above figures are confusing in view of the commas and spaces used. Please match these to 
other tables]
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The following table indicates media coverage per month during the financial year. 

The next table indicates media coveage across the globe. 
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11.3. human Resources – 31 March 2015

The Commissionnotes that this department’s budget in terms of employee expenditure for 
specific programmes during 2014/2015 is based on the following.

11.3.1. Personnel expenditure

11.3.1.1 Personnel costs by salary band

salary band number of 
employees

personnel 
expenditure cost

percentage 
of total 
personnel

Average personnel 
cost per employee

Skilled (Level 3 - 5 ) 10 1780831 4%                    178083 

HighlySskilled (6 - 8) 23 6732127 14%                    292701 

Highly Skilled Supervision (9 - 12) 45 23299588 50%                    517769 

Senior Management ( 13 - 15) 6 6624784 14%                 1104131 

Commissioners 11 7355300 16%                    668664 

Total permanent 95 45792630 98%                    482028 

Temporary and internships 15 762222 2%                      50815 

Grand total 110              46554852 100%                    423226 

[Again, please use same style of this table]

11.3.1.2 Salaries, overtime, home-owners’ allowances and medical assistance by 
programme

The following table provides a summary per programme and salary band of 
expenditure incurred as a result of salaries, overtime, homeowners’ allowances 
and medical assistance.

programme salaries overtime home- 
owners 
allowance

Medical 
assistance

Leave 
paid out

Total

Commissioners
    8161,796 

                    
50,352        141,057 

                     
36,480 

       
220,315     8,610,000 

CEO
    1,917,123 

                      
9,135          13,212 

                       
8,448 

                   
-     1,947,918 

Financial 
management     3,805,155 

                  
207,695          39,636 

                     
33,048 

                   
-     4,085,534 

Internal audit / 
monitoring and 
evaluation     1,033,470 

                              
-                    - 

                               
- 

                   
-     1,033,470 
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programme salaries overtime home- 
owners 
allowance

Medical 
assistance

Leave 
paid out

Total

Human 
resources     1,767,783 

                      
3,225          13,212 

                     
22,032 

       
127,604     1,933,856 

Public education 
and training     4,690,066 

                    
22,973          42,939 

                     
35,802 

              
198     4,791,977 

Legal services
    5,727,535 

                    
16,775          59,454 

                     
95,111 

         
30,413     5,929,288 

Research 
and policy 
programme     4,467,652 

                    
23,195          39,636 

                     
55,622 

         
23,833     4,609,939 

Parliamentary 
liaison and 
legislation        966,326 

                              
-                    - 

                               
- 

                   
-        966,326 

Information and 
communication     2,734,915 

                    
21,013          26,424 

                     
22,032 

                   
-     2,804,385 

Administration
    9,689,635 

                    
27,822          35,232 

                     
83,839 

           
5,632     9,842,160 

Total
  44,961,455 

                  
382,185        410,802 

                   
392,415 

       
407,995   46,554,852 

11.3.2 Job evaluation

The process of job evaluation and job grading was initiated. This will be finalised in 
the forthcoming financial year. This process will be coupled with restructuring and re-
engineering of the Commission to make sure that the staff are appropriately skilled.
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11.3.3. Performance- related rewards

salary band number of 
employees

Total cost per 
employee

Average cost

Commissioners - - -

Senior Management 5 307 499 61 500

Middle Management 11 507 347 46 122

Staff 38 625 035 16 448

ToTAL 54 1 439 881 26 664

11.3.4  foreign workers

Foreign workers within the CGE in 2014/2015: 3[What does the figure 3 mean? not clear]

Country of origin number

Lesotho 1

Zimbabwe 1

Democratic Republic of Congo 1

Total 3

11.3.5 Leave utilisation

11.3.5.1. Sick leave

As part of the Commission’s management process, the organisation monitored 
the utilisation of sick and annual leave. The following tables provide a record of 
these  for the period under review

salary band number of 
employees

Total days 
taken

% days with 
medical 
certification

number of 
employees 
using sick 
leave

Average cost 
per employee 
per day

Average days 
per employee

Skilled (Level 3 - 5 ) 10 44 83% 6 684,83                 7.33 

Highly Skilled (6 - 8) 23 75 88% 16 1 125,60                 4.69 

Highly Skilled 
Supervision (9 - 12) 45 158 63% 24 1 991,11                 6.58 

Senior Management 
( 13 - 15) 6 20 100% 2 4 246,00              10.00 

Commissioners 11 11 100% 2 2 571,39                 5.50 

Total permanent 95 308 100% 50 1 853,67                 6.16 

Temporary and 
internships 15 13 50% 4 195,41                 3.25 

Grand total 110 321   54 1 627,54                 5.94 
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11.3.5.2.   Annual leave

salary band number of 
employees who have 
taken leave

Total days taken Average per employee

Skilled (Level 3 - 5 ) 10 188 18.80

Highly Skilled (6 - 8) 23 500 21.74

Highly Skilled Supervision (9 - 12) 43 770 17.91

Senior Management ( 13 - 15) 6 83 13.83

Commissioners 7 118 16.86

Total permanent 89 1659 18.64

Temporary and internships 6 88 14.67

Grand total 95 1747 18.39

11.3.5.3. Leave payouts

The following table summarises payments made to employees in lieu of leave 
taken.

Reason number of employees 
paid out

Total amount paid out Average per employee

Termination of service 16                  407 995                    25 500 

11.3.6. Employment changes

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year. 
Turnover rates are a component of the employment profile of any organisation.

The following tables provide a summary of such turnover rates by salary band and by 
critical occupations  for the Commission:

salary band number of 
employees 
per band as 
at 1 April 
2014

Appointments and 
transfers within 
the Commission

Terminations 
and transfers 
out of the 
Commission

number of 
employees per 
band as at 31 March 
2015

Skilled (Level 3 - 5 )                   9                              2                  -                               11 

Highly Skilled (6 - 8)                 23                            -                    -                               23 

Highly Skilled Supervision (9 - 
12)                 49                              3                   6                             46 
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Senior Management ( 13 - 15)                   6                            -                     1                               5 

Commissioners                 11                              2                   2                             11 

Temporary & Internships                 14                              9                   9                             14 

Total               112                            16                 18                           110 

Please note that under senior management band A which is level 13 (Head of Department), 
CGE have four staff members acting as Heads of Departments (HODs). These appointees 
are captured at their correct level at level 9 - 12

11.3.6.2 AnnuAL TuRnoveR RATes bY CRiTiCAL oCCupATion

occupation number of 
employees per 
occupation as 
at 1 April 2014

Appointments 
and transfers to 
the respective 
department

Terminations 
and transfers 
out of the 
Commission

Turnover rate

Senior Management 7                            -   1 14%

Legal service 9                            -   2 22%

Public education and 
information 11

                           -   
1 9%

Research 7                              2 1 14%

Total 34 2 5 15%

11.3.6.3 ReAsons noMinATeD foR sTAff LeAvinG CoMMission

Termination type number % Total

Death                  -   0%

Resignation                   9 50%

Expiry of contract                   5 28%

Dismissal - Operational changes                   1 6%

Dismissal – misconduct                   1 6%

Dismissal – inefficiency                  -   0%

Discharge due to illness                  -   0%

Retirement                  -   0%

Transfers to other public service departments                  -   0%

Other                   2 11%

Total                 18 100%
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11.3.7.Employment equity

11.3.7.1. Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the 
following occupational categories as at 31 March 2015.

occupational 
categories

Male            

  African Coloured indian White African Coloured indian White  

Commissioners
2 -   -   -   7 -   -   1 10 

Senior 
Management 2 -   1 -   1 1 -   1 6 

Professionally 
Qualified

                
23 -   -   -   17 -   2 1 43 

Skilled, 
Technical and 
Academically 
Qualified 
Workers 2 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   2 

Semi-skilled and 
discretionally 
decision making 4 -   -   -   18 1 -   -   23 

Unskilled and 
defined decision 
making 1 -   -   -   10 -   -   -   11 

Employees with 
disabilities 1 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   1 

Interns 1 -   -   -   4 1 -   -   6 

Temporary 
Employees -   -   -   -   6 1 1 -   8 

Total 36 -   1 -   63 4 3 3 110 

11.3.8. Employment 
and vacancies by 
programmes as at 31 
March 2015.programme

number of 
vacancies

number of posts number 
of posts 
filled

vacancy rate number of 
posts filled 
additional to the 
establishment

Commissioners 1 12 11 8% -   

Human resources 1 4 3 25% -   

IT / C -   4 4 0% -   

Legal - National 2 5 3 40%  -   

Research - National 5 14 9 36% -   



104

ANNUAL REPORT  2014-2015 Commission for Gender EqualityCommission for Gender Equality
A society free from gender oppression and inequality

11.3.8. Employment 
and vacancies by 
programmes as at 31 
March 2015.programme

number of 
vacancies

number of posts number 
of posts 
filled

vacancy rate number of 
posts filled 
additional to the 
establishment

Education National                  -   2  2 0% -   

Provincial Co-ordinators                  -    9 9 0% -   

Provinces - Legal                   2 9 7 22% -   

Provinces - Education                   2 9 7 22% -   

Provinces - 
Administrators                  -   9  9 0% -   

Provinces - Office 
Assistant                   1  9  8 11% -   

Finance                   1  7  6 14% -   

Parliament                  -   1 1 0% -   

PA / Admin National                  -   11 11 0% -   

Driver - National                  -   1 1 0% -   

Office assistant - 
National                  -   1 1 0% -   

CEO’s office                  -   3 3 0% -   

Total                 15 110 95 14% -   

11.3.9. Recruitment

occupational bands Male       female       ToTAL

  African Coloured indian White African Coloured indian White  

Top management -   -   -   -   2 -   -   -   2 

Senior management -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Professionally 
qualified 1 -   -   -   1 -   -   -   2 

Skilled, technical 
and academically 
qualified workers 1 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   1 

Semi-skilled and 
discretionally 
decision making -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Unskilled and defined 
decision making -   -   -   -   2 -   -   -   2 

Temporary 
employees & Interns -   -   -   -   7 1 -   1 9 

Total 2 -   -   -   12 1 -   1 16 
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11.3.10.  Promotions

No promotions have been effected during the period under review.

11.3.11. Terminations

occupational 
bands

Male female ToTAL

African Coloured indian White African Coloured indian White

Top 
management -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Senior 
management 1 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   1 

Professionally 
qualified 3 -   -   -   1 -   -   -   4 

Skilled, 
technical and 
academically 
qualified 
workers -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Semi-
skilled and 
discretionally 
decision 
making -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Unskilled 
and defined 
decision 
making -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Employees 
with 
disabilities -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Total 4 -   -   -   1 -   -   -   5 

11.3.12.  Disciplinary matters

11.3.12.1. Disciplinary action taken

occupational 
bands Male female

 ToTAL 

  African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Professionals         1      
                    

1
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11.3.13.  Skills development

occupa-
tions Cat-
ego

ofo  
Code

  Male     Male 
Total

  female     female 
Total

Dis-
ability 
Total

  Age 
Groups

 

                               

    A C I W   A C I W     <35 <35-55 >55

      -   -   -         -   -     -   -     -   

CEO 112101   -   -   -   -   1   -   -   1 -   -   1 -   

CFO 121101 1 -   -   -   1 -     -   -   -   -   -   1 -   

HOD 
Education 235101   -   -   -   -   -   1 -   -   1 -   -   1 -   

HOD 
Research 122301 1 -   -   -   1 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   1 -   

Commu-
nications 
Manager 243201 1 -   -   -   1 -   -  -   -   -   -   -   1 -   

Spokesper-
son 243201 1 -   -   -   1 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   1 -   

Senior 
Education 
Specialist 235101 1 -   -   -   1 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   1 -   

Financial 
Manager 121101 1 -   -   -   1 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   1 -   

Senior 
Research 
officer 261102   -   -   -   -   1 -   -   -   1 -   -   -   -   

Human 
Resources 
Manager 1212 1 -  -  -  1 -   -   -  -  -   -  -  1 -  

Research 
Officers 261102 1 -   -   -   1 5 -   -   -   5 -   -   5 -   

Education 
Officer 235101 4 -   -   -   4 1 1 -   -   2 -   -   6 -   

IT Manager 252201 1 -   -   -   1 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   1 -   

Chief Audit 
Executive 242208 1 -   -   -   1 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   1 -   

      -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

  Total 14 0 0 0 14 8 2 -   -   10 -   1 22 1
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11.4. Report of the Audit Committee for year ending March 2015
We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2015.

11.4.1.  Audit Committee members and attendance 

The Audit Committee for the year under review comprised three external 

members and two internal members. The members of the Audit Committee are 

listed hereunder. The Audit Committee is required to meet at least four times a 

year according to its approved terms of reference . During the current year the 

committee held eight meetings.

name of member Designation number of meetings 

attended

Mr VelileKweyama Chairperson (External) Four (4)

Mr MalindiGodferyNthakheni* Member (External) Six (6)

Mr AluwaniMunyamela* Member (External) Four (4)

Commissioner NondumisoMaphazi Member (Internal) Six (6)

* MrMalindiGodferyNthakheni was appointed on  1 March 2014.

* Mr AluwaniMunyamela’s contract expired on  31 December 2014.

11.4.2. Audit committee responsibility

We report that we have adopted appropriate formal Terms of Reference in line with 

the requirements of Sections 38 (1) (a) and 77 of the Public Finance Management 

Act No. 1 of 1999 and Treasury Regulation 3.1. We report that the affairs of the 

Committee were conducted in compliance with the Terms of Reference referred 

to above.

11.4.3.	Effectiveness	of	internal	control

The Commission has designed a system of internal control to provide cost-effective 

assurance that its goals will be achieved economically, effectively and efficiently.

In line with the PFMA, the International Standards for the Professional Practice of 

Internal Auditing issued by the Institute of Internal Auditors and the requirements 

of the King III Report on Corporate Governance, Internal Audit provided the Audit 

Committee and management with assurance as to whether internal controls are 

appropriate and effective. 

The system of internal control was not entirely effective during the year under 

review. Several deficiencies in the system were reported by Internal Audit and the 
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Auditor General of South Africa. In certain areas, the matters reported previously 

have been addressed. Despite this, nothing significant and/or material has been 

brought to our attention to indicate a total breakdown in the functioning of these 

controls until 31 March 2015.

Accordingly, with the exception of the reported deficiencies and deviations, we 

can report that the system of internal control over financial reporting for the 

period under review was adequate, effective and efficient.

11.4.4. Internal audit 

The Audit Committee reviewed the internal audit quarterly reports to ensure 

that internal audit activities were conducted in terms of the approved risk- based 

annual and three-year rolling plan. The Audit Committee registered its concerns 

with management regarding the adequacy of resources within the Internal Audit 

function. Management appointed additional internal auditors at entry level to 

augment existing capacity to ensure that plans are implemented as approved.

Management has further committed to consider other sourcing arrangements 

to ensure that the work of Internal Audit complies with the requirements of the 

Standards for Professional Practice of Internal Audit. 

11.4.5.  Risk management 

Management is responsible for proactively identifying, evaluating, managing and 

monitoring all significant risks faced by the Commission. The Commission has 

developed a comprehensive risk management policy with a view to safeguarding 

its staff, assets, corporate credibility and reputation.

During the period under review the Audit Committee has made various 

recommendations to management regarding areas of improvement in the 

management of the risk management committee. Various improvements have 

been seen during the year under review in the identification, monitoring and 

management of risk facing the Commission.

11.4.6. In-Year Management and Monthly/Quarterly Report

The Audit Committee has noted the content and quality of the monthly/ quarterly 

financial reports prepared and issued by the Commission during the year under 

review, in compliance with the statutory reporting framework. The committee has 

noted continuous improvement in the quality of quarterly performance reports 

submitted by management for review.  
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11.4.7. Evaluation of Annual Financial Statements

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the unaudited annual financial 

statements for the 2014/15 financial year with management. This process included 

a review of the accounting policies and practices, and any changes thereto.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the unaudited performance 

information for the 2014/15 financial year with management.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the Commission’s compliance with 

legal and regulatory provisions for the 2014/15 financial year with management.

We recommend that the Commission should submit the unaudited Annual Financial 

Statements and performance information for the 2014/15 financial year to the 

Auditor-General for audit purposes.

11.4.8. Auditor General’s Report

The Committee has reviewed the Commission’s implementation plan for audit 

issues raised in the prior year. The Committee is satisfied with the plan, but have 

communicated concerns to management in the following areas:-

Ø Action plans must adhere to the SMART principle and must address root 

causes.

Ø Adherence to implementation dates of action plans and accountability for 

non-implementation.

Ø Frequent monitoring of progress in the implementation of the audit 

intervention plan.       

11.4.9. Appreciation 

We wish to express our appreciation to the Commission officials, Plenary, the 

Chairperson of the Commission and the office of the Auditor General for the 

support they have provided during the course of the year.

_____________________

Velile Kweyama

Chairperson of the Audit Committee

Commission for Gender Equality
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Financial Management Overview

13

financial performance

net Results

For the financial year ending 31 March 2015, the Commission recorded a net surplus of R968, 067, 

a decrease from R1, 8 million (restated) for the previous reporting period. Between these periods, 

total revenue rose by 16, 7 % from R64 million in 2013/2014 to R75 million in the current period. 

Correspondingly, total expenditure for the current period soared to R74 million in the current 

period from R62 million (restated) in prior year.

income

The Commission is mainly funded through transfers from National Government of the Republic of 

South Africa. For the year under review, the Commission was allocated R67, 2 million compared to 

R63, 1 million in the previous period. This represented an increase in allocation of 6.6% between the 

two reporting periods.  The allocation was approved through the ordinary appropriation process 

of parliament wherein transfers to the Commission constituted a main division within the vote for 

the Department for Women in the Presidency. Over and above this ordinary allocation, National 

Treasury granted the Commission a right to utilise the surplus funds accumulated from operating 

activities in the previous financial years. In this regard, for the year under review, additional R4, 

8 million non-exchange revenue was recognised after fulfilling the conditions against which the 

funds were granted. This brought the total government grant recorded for the period to R72 

million or an effective 14, 2% year- on –year increase.

In the current period, further income of R1, 8 million was recorded from contributions by third 

party donors. Donations of R1, 2 million were received for activities linked to a Gender Summit that 

was hosted by the Commission in April of 2014. The remaining R600, 000 was donor contributions 

for activities undertaken during the 16 Days of Activism period. These donations were received 

both in cash and in-kind, recognised on fair values as disclosed in the Annual Financial statements 
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for the period.

Income recorded in the current period was also augmented by sundry and interest income at a 

total of R852, 000 (R877, 000 in 2013/2014 period).  This income was mainly generated as rent from 

excess cash resources at the bank as well as from other sundry sources, in the main discretionary 

grants from the Sector Education and Training Authority (SETA).

Expenditure by Programme, economic classification and location

For the period under review, total expenditure was R73, 7 million compared to R62, 1 million in the 

preceding reporting period. The spending recorded was higher than the adjusted budget of R69, 9 

million by R3, 7 million mainly because of the expenditure driven by the Gender Summit which was 

co-funded and compensated for by the donation income referred to above.

 programme 

CoMMissioneRs: 
GoveRnAnCe & 
suppoRT 

CoRpoRATe 
suppoRT 
seRviCes 

 seRviCe 
DeLiveRY 
pRoGRAM 

Total  
Actuals 
Current 
Year

 Total  
Actuals 
prior Year 

Total  
Adjusted 
Annual 
budget

 % composition 
relative to total 

Location

economic 
Classification Actuals Current 

Year
Actuals 
Current Year

Actuals 
Current 
Year

CY    pY    budget

Head Office
Compensation 
of Employees  8,593,467  10,240,983  9,194,488  28,028,938  23 825 841  27,537,997 

Depreciation 
& 
Amortisation  1,003,007  1,003,007        639 191  1,570,141 

Goods & 
Services  5,393,381  9,888,792  5,295,398  20,577,572  15 546 851  17,742,196 

Head Office 
Total  13,986,849  21,132,781  14,489,886  49,609,516  40 011 882  46,850,335 67%    64%    67%

Provincial 
Office

Compensation 
of Employees  18,586,470  18,586,470  16 161 578  18,833,803 

Goods & 
Services  5,502,830  5,502,830    5 961 165  4,250,862 

Provincial 
Office Total  24,089,300  24,089,300  22 122 743  23,084,665 33%    36%    33%

Grand Total  13,986,849  21,132,781  38,579,186  73,698,816  62 134 625  69,935,000 

2014/15 Actual spending as 
% of total 19% 29% 52% 100%

2014/15 Actual spending as 
% of budget 20% 30% 55% 105%

2014/15 Actual spending as 
% of prior actuals 23% 34% 62% 119%
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In accordance with the budget, R49, 6 million (or 67% of the budget) was spent by units located at 

head office whilst 33% (or R24 million) was spent at the nine provincial offices of the Commission.  

Of this spending, Commissioners’ programme constituted 19% at R14 million, Corporate services 

R21 million (29%) whilst the core service delivery programme was R38, 6 million or 52% of the 

total spending for the period. In the overall, the spending patterns were in line with budget but for 

the noted over-expenditure which is accounted for respectively by 1% for both Commissioner and 

Corporate services and 3% for the main service delivery programme. From the above table, it can 

also be seen there has been a general increase in spending from levels recorded in the 2013/2014 

period. Attributable to the general rise in prices (inflation), the spending on Commissioner 

programme higher than levels recorded for 2013/2014 by  4%,  by 5% and 10% respectively for 

Corporate services and main service delivery programme. The table below further provides an 

analysis of spending per department within the Commission.

 programme 

 CoMMissioneRs: 
GoveRnAnCe & 
suppoRT 

 CoRpoRATe 
suppoRT 
seRviCes 

 seRviCe 
DeLiveRY 
pRoGRAM 

 Total  
Actuals CY 

 Total  
Adjusted 
Annual 
budget 

Location Department  Actuals CY  Actuals CY  Actuals CY

Head Office ALL  984,207  984,207  1,570,141 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER  4,196,469  4,196,469  3,959,567 

COMMISSIONERS  13,986,849  13,986,849  14,148,432 

COMMUNICATIONS  3,907,557  3,907,557  3,257,844 

FINANCE & 
ADMINISTRATION  8,755,351  8,755,351  8,078,295 

HUMAN RESOURCES  4,267,972  4,267,972  4,197,499 

INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY  2,928,784  2,928,784  2,170,228 

LEGAL  2,594,661  2,594,661  2,242,341 

PUBLIC EDUCATION 
& INFORMATION  1,978,220  1,978,220  1,593,312 

RESEARCH  5,729,252  5,729,252  5,359,129 

Ofice of the COO  280,196  280,196  273,547 

Head Office Total  13,986,849  21,132,781  14,489,886  49,609,516  46,850,335 

Provincial Office EASTERN CAPE  2,955,669  2,955,669  2,695,688 

FREE STATE  2,533,454  2,533,454  2,461,096 

GAUTENG  2,803,536  2,803,536  2,513,715 

KWAZULU NATAL  2,553,013  2,553,013  2,437,110 

LIMPOPO  2,109,069  2,109,069  2,033,665 

MPUMALANGA  2,505,492  2,505,492  2,487,221 

NORTH WEST  2,325,170  2,325,170  2,224,333 

NORTHERN CAPE  2,650,804  2,650,804  2,600,516 

WESTERN CAPE  3,653,092  3,653,092  3,631,321 

Provincial Office Total  24,089,300  24,089,300  23,084,665 

Grand Total  13,986,849  21,132,781  38,579,186  73,698,816  69,935,000 
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financial position

The financial position of the Commission remains sound and stable in relation to solvency. The 

net asset at reporting date stood at R4, 8 million compared to a restated value of R3, 9 million 

reported in the previous period. The solvency rate has improved from a 23% cover in 2013/2014 

period to 36% cover by the end of the current period.

Between the current period and the 2013/2014 year, the balance of total asset reduced from R20, 

9 million to R18, 2 million mainly because of a R6, 1 million decrease in cash and cash equavalents 

, partly offset by a net R3, 4 million. The decrease in cash balances and corresponding increase in 

non-current assets is primarily attributable to the purchase of a new fleet at R4, 5 million during 

the course of the current period. 

The liquidity situation is no longer as favourable  compared to previous periods. By the end of 

2013/2014 financial year, the Commission held 23% more current assets than current liabilities. In 

contrast, as at 31 March 2015, the current ratio stood at 99%, signifying cash flow management 

pressures that must be dillegently controlled into the near future.

Total current assets are mainly constituted of cash held at R13, 2 mllion, where the remaining is 

an insignificant balance of internal receivable. The cash ratio was also 99% at reporting date for 

comparitive period. For 2014/2015 period, 75% of the current liabilities were constituted by payroll 

and provisions for staff related payables compared to 87% as at 31 March 2014. By collorary, 25% 

( or R3,2 m) and 13% (R2,2 m) respectively were payables from exchange transactions for the 

2014/2015  and 2013/2014 financial years.

Risk Management

Analogous to business operations elsewhere, risk is present in the environment in which the 

Commission operates. It is therefore that the governance framework of the Commission espouses 

risk management as a principle and practice from planning through to execution and control 

of the strategy and in the management of annual plans and projects. While risk management 

efforts focuses on mitigating threats towards the achievement of the organisational goals, the 

Commission also pays attention to risks inherent in the external environment, reputation and the 

manner in which our operations impact employees and other stakeholders. 

The Commission for Gender Equality Risk Management framework governs the manner in which 

risk is identified, assessed and treated to mitigate any potential or probable adverse impact to 

the performance of the organisation. The responsibility to management risk is assigned to the 

Executive Authority, Executive management and all employees of the Commission, ensuring that 

risk management is embedded from the strategic level to the day to day activities of the CGE. The 

Commissioners and Executive/Senior management oversee the management of strategic risks.

The Commission follows a structured approach to identify, evaluate, and manage opportunities, 
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threats and uncertainty affecting the achievement of the organisational objectives.  For the 

financial period under review, the Commission engaged in a risk identification process whereupon 

a Risk Register and mitigating plans of action were devised.  The implementation of these plans 

is monitored by the audit Committee and other strategic oversight structures of the Commission.

Key Risks impacting the Commission

The table hereunder depicts the risk situation that obtained during the year under review and 

summarises the top most risks as contained in the Risk Register where the associated inherent risk 

and the residue risk (after existing compensating controls were taken into account. The controls 

were validated by the internal audit for their adequacy and effectiveness).  For ease of reference 

the legend below encapsulates the organisational risk assessment criteria and management risk 

appetite. .

exposure rating overall assessment broad tactical intervention by management

Low – from 1 -5 Acceptable Assurance  on the identified controls will be 
validated by internal Audit Unit

Medium – from 6-12 Acceptable with caution Management have reviewed risks and assessed 
the exposure against the risk appetite. It is 
considered that at this level of exposure effective 
internal control measures must be implemented by 
management  

High – From 12.5 – 25 Unacceptable Management will implement corrective actions 
urgently

In line with public sector guidelines, the Commission’s risk tolerance levels are conservatively 

set at a medium rating of 6 – 12 exposure. The risk rating is a product of the probability of an 

occurrence that could significantly have an impact on whether or not the Commission meets its 

stated objectives. The ratings by management are verified by internal audit to give assurance to 

the Commission’s governance structures with regards to the integrity of the measures and process 

of risk management through the organisation. Risks are management individually and in the full 

context of the organisation operations at both strategic and operational level. For the period 

under review, the average residual risk aggregated to a rating of 12, the upper bound of the risk 

tolerance level adopted by management. Management and the Executive were comfortable that 

mitigating strategies adopted were adequate and effective measures to ensure that threats which 

could significantly impact the achievement of objectives were kept to a minimum. The overall 

depiction is shown in the table below.
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Risk  Category Risk Description no. of 
Risks

Average of 
inherent 
Risk 
ranking

Average of 
Residual Risk 
ranking

Mitigating strategies

Reputation Inability to apply and articulate  
CGE’s position on Gender Equality 
matters as well as other recog-
nised relevant policy frameworks

 1  16  9 Expedite procurement process 
and streamline the project 
schedule accordingly

Reputation ineffective or defective  external 
communication

 1  16  9 Training, awareness and 
enforcement on code of 
conduct/practice amongst 
internal stakeholders

Strategic IT not aligned to organisational 
strategic objectives

 1  16  12 Long term ICT strategy 
developed, approved by 
executive authority and being 
implemented

Strategic Lack effective management of 
information resources

 1  25  9 Information resources 
management leveraged on ICT 
capabilities

Strategic Lack of governance framework 
that adequately integrates to 
management processes

 1  16  6 Revised and agreed upon 
governance framework in 
compliance to best practice

Financial 
management

Inadequate provision for 
professional liability and other 
associated claims

 1  16  12 Risk transfer and reliance 
on the CGE Act provisions; 
excluding liability by 
officials and members of the 
Commission

Financial 
management

Irregular expenditure/ 
unauthorised/ fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure

 1  20  12 Systems of control to ensure 
full compliance with prescripts

Financial Weak financial controls - 
(organisation-wide)

 1  25  12 

Operational Inability to attract , grow and 
retain talent

1  16  9 Continue to source talent, 
supported by retention and 
succession plans coupled with 
skills development and training

Operational Inefficient case management 
system

 1  25  16 Automation of process in the 
second phase of ICT project

Operational Lack of appropriate coordination 
and communication system

1  20  12 Revised Communication policy 
and strategy

Operational Lack of understanding of the CGE 
mandate by internal stakeholders

1  12  12 Continuous training and 
capacity building

Operational Poor information security 1  25  16 ICT policies provides clear 
guidelines. Mitigation shall arise 
from the revamp ICT systems.

Operational Poor internal support to internal 
and external clients

1  16  9 Continuous training and 
capacity building

Operational Poor performance management 1  20  12 Improvement and automation 
of PMDS systems

Operational Unsafe working conditions 1  25  12 Adherence to SHE requirements 
with supporting systems and 
procedures

Operational Vacancies are not filled timeously 1  20  9 Heightened recruitment drive 
to ensure optimal functioning 
of the organisation

 Total average risk  20  12 
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Report of the Auditor General South Africa

14

Report of the auditor-general to parliament on the Commission for 
Gender equality

Report on the financial statements

introduction 

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Commission for Gender Equality set out on 

pages … to …, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, the 

statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow statement 

and the statement of comparison of budget and actual figures for the year then ended, as well 

as the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information. 

Accounting officer’s responsibility for the financial statements

2. The accounting officer, is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 

financial statements in accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised 

Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance 

Management Act of South Africa,1999 (Act No.1 of 1999), and for such internal control as the 

accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general’s responsibility

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I 

conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards 

require that I comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 

misstatement.



123

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT  2014-2015Commission for Gender Equality
A society free from gender oppression and inequality

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 

considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of 

the  financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 

policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well 

as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for my audit opinion.

opinion

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the Commission for Gender Equality as at 31  March  2015 and its financial 

performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with SA Standards of 

GRAP and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act 

No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA). 

emphasis of matter

7. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Restatement of corresponding figures

8. As disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 

2014 have been restated as a result of an error discovered during 2015 in the financial 

statements of the Commission for Gender Equality at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2014.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

9. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) and the 

general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report findings on the 

reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected strategic 

objectives presented in the annual performance report, non-compliance with legislation and 

internal control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable findings as described 

under each subheading but not to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. 

Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.



124

ANNUAL REPORT  2014-2015 Commission for Gender EqualityCommission for Gender Equality
A society free from gender oppression and inequality

predetermined objectives

10. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported 

performance information for the following selected strategic objectives presented in the 

annual performance report of the constitutional institution for the year ended 31 March 2015: 

• Strategic Objective 1: To ensure the creation and implementation of an enabling 
legislative framework that promotes the attainment of gender equality on pages … 
to ...

• Strategic Objective 2: To protect and promote gender equality by engaging with 
relevant stakeholders to educate and raise awareness on issues of gender equality; 
challenge patriarchal perceptions and stereotypes; and take action against 
infringements of gender rights through the implementation of appropriate redress on 
pages … to ...

• Strategic Objective 3: To monitor state compliance with regional and international 
covenants and charters which have been acceded to or ratified by the Republic 
relating to the object of the Commission for Gender Equality on pages ... to …

11. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness 

and reliability. 

12. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether 

it was presented in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and 

whether the reported performance was consistent with the planned strategic objectives. 

I further performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets were well defined, 

verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the National 

Treasury’s Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI).

13. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it 

was valid, accurate and complete.

14. I did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported 

performance information for the selected strategic objectives.
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Additional matter

15. Although I identified no material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported 

performance information for the selected strategic objectives, I draw attention to the 

following matter:

Achievement of planned targets

16. Refer to the annual performance report on pages … to … for information on the achievement 

of the planned targets for the year. 

Compliance with legislation

17. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the constitutional institution had complied 

with applicable legislation regarding financial matters, financial management and other 

related matters. I did not identify any instances of material non-compliance with specific 

matters in key legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA. 

expenditure management

18. Effective steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure, as required by section 38(1)

(c)(ii) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation (TR) 9.1.1.

procurement and contract management 

19. Goods and services of a transaction value above R500 000 were procured without inviting 

competitive bids, as required by TR 16A6.1.

20. Invitations for competitive bidding were not always advertised in at least the government 

tender bulletin, as required by TR 16A6.3(c). 

internal control

21. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements and compliance 

with legislation. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control 

deficiencies that resulted in the findings on the annual performance report and the findings 

on non-compliance with legislation included in this report.
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Leadership

22. The leadership did not adequately monitor the implementation of action plans to address 

internal control deficiencies with respect to procurement and contract management.

financial and performance management

23. Management did not have sufficient monitoring controls to ensure compliance with all 

relevant laws and regulations pertaining to procurement and contract management.

Pretoria

31 July 2015



Annual Financial               
sTATeMenTs
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Annual Financial Statements
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Annual financial statements

statement of Responsibility and Approval of the Annual financial statements

The accounting officer is responsible for monitoring the preparation and the integrity of the financial 
statements and related information included in this annual report. In order for the accounting officer to 
discharge these responsibilities, as well as those bestowed on it in terms of the Public Finance Management 
Act, No. 29 of 1999 and other applicable legislation, it has developed and maintained a system of internal 
controls.

The accounting officer acknowledges that management is ultimately responsible for the system of 
internal financial controls established by the Commission for Gender Equality (hereinafter; CGE) and place 
considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the accounting officer to 
meet these responsibilities, the Commissioners set standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk 
of error or loss in a cost effective manner. These standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities 
within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to 
ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the CGE and all employees are 
required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the CGE’s mandate is conducted in a manner 
that, in all reasonable circumstances, is above reproach. The focus of risk management is on identifying, 
assessing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the CGE.

While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the CGE endeavours to minimize it by ensuring that 
appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within 
predetermined procedures and constraints. Monitoring of these controls includes a regular review of their 
operations by the accounting officer and independent oversight by an audit committee.

As part of the system of internal control, the internal audit function conducts operational, financial and 
specific audits and coordinates audit coverage with the external auditors. The external auditors are 
responsible for reporting on the financial statements.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (GRAP), including any interpretations of such Statements issued by the Accounting 
Practices Board. They are based on appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by 
reasonable and prudent judgment and estimates.

The accounting officer believes that the Commission for Gender Equality will continue to be a going concern 
in the foreseeable future due to the availability of funding from the National Treasury. For this reason the 
accounting officer continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual financial statements.

The accounting officer approved the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 as set 
out on pages 3 to 43 on 31 July 2015 which were signed on its behalf by

 
Mr. Mfanozelwe Shozi      Ms. Keketso Maema
Chairperson: Commission for Gender Equality   Chief Executive Officer: 
        Commission for Gender Equality



130

ANNUAL REPORT  2014-2015 Commission for Gender EqualityCommission for Gender Equality
A society free from gender oppression and inequality

General information      
           

Members of the Commission - Commissioners  
Ms. L.H. Bata        
Mr. M.A. Botha (Part time)      
Prof. A. Gouws (Part time; term ended 30 June 2014)  
Ms. J. Hicks        
Ms. N.P.  Loyilane (term ended 31 May 2014)    
Dr. N. Maphazi        
Ms. N.G. Mazibuko (part time)      
Dr. W.A. Mgoqi        
Ms. T. Mpumlwana (Deputy Chairperson)    
Ms. L. Nare        
Ms. P.L.F. Nzimande (part time, appointed June 2014)  
Mr. M. Shozi (Chairperson)      
Ms. P.S. Sobahle (part time, appointed June 2014)  
Chief Executive Officer      
Ms. K. Maema        
Chief Financial Officer      
Mr. M. Putu        
Auditors          
Auditor General South Africa      
bankers          
First National Bank        
Parktown          
PO Box 31512        
Braamfontein 2017        
Registered Office        
Women’s Jail East Wing      
No 2 Kotze Street        
Constitution Hill        
Braamfontein        
2017          
physical Address        
No 2 Kotze Street        
Constitution Hill        
Braamfontein        
2017          
Telephone number        
011-403 7182        
           
fax number        
011-403 7188        
011-403 7188        



131

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT  2014-2015Commission for Gender Equality
A society free from gender oppression and inequality

statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015    

             

      notes 2015   2014
        R   R
AsseTs           Restated
             

Current assets          

Cash and cash equivalents 9        13 237 070            19 364 997 

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 10                    35 156                     99 136 

               13 272 226               19 464 133 

             

non-current assets          

Property, plant and equipment 11              4 904 424           1 455 951 

Intangible assets   11                    66 641                                     -   

                 4 971 065         1 455 951 

             

Total Assets            18 243 291               20 920 084 

             

LiAbiLiTies          

             

Current liabilities          

Payables from exchange transactions 12              3 220 087             2 163 868 

Payables from non-exchange transactions 13              7 942 295              12 856 248 

Provisions     14              2 235 934                2 023 059 

               13 398 316            17 043 175 

             

Total liabilities            13 398 316          17 043 175 

             

             

net assets              4 844 975          3 876 909 

             

             

neT AsseTs          

             

Accumulated surplus            4 844 975             3 876 909 

             

Total net Assets              4 844 975             3 876 909 
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statement of financial performance for the year ended 31 March 2015
             

      notes 2015   2014
        R   R
            Restated
Revenue            
Revenue from non-exchange transactions 2       72 013 925             63 080 000 
Other income   3         2 652 980                   876 654 
Total revenue        74 666 905            63 956 654 
             
expenses          
Operating expenses   4    24 125 399            20 121 702 
Personnel Costs   5       46 554 852             39 904 375 
Other administrative expenses 6         1 893 332                1 273 751 
Finance costs   7            134 654                   195 606 
Assets written off   8           53 259                         -   
Depreciation and amortisation 11            937 342                   639 191 
Total          73 698 838            62 134 625 
             
             
surplus for the year           968 067              1 822 029 



133

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT  2014-2015Commission for Gender Equality
A society free from gender oppression and inequality

statement of Changes in net Assets for the year ended 31 March 2015
                 

            note
Accumulated 

surplus Total net assets

              R R

                 

balance at 31 March 2013                 12 090 654       12 090 654 

Conditional 

grant         15 (8 524 442) (8 524 442)

Surplus for the year ending 31 March 2014               1 822 029         1 822 029 

balance at 31 March 2014                   5 388 241         5 388 241 

Prior period error         15 (1 511 333) (1 511 333)

balance at 31 March 2014; restated                 3 876 908         3 876 908 

Surplus for the year ending 31 March 2015                  968 067            968 067 

balance at 31 March 2015                   4 844 975         4 844 975 
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Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2015
                 

          notes 2015   2014

                Restated

                 

CAsh fLoWs fRoM opeRATinG ACTiviTies        

                 

Cash receipts from stakeholders       R 69 013 199   R 63 956 654

  Grants       2           67 235 000               63 080 000 

  Interest received     3                764 855                   766 886 

  Donor Income     3                926 628                            -   

  Sundry income     3                  86 716                   109 768 

                 

Cash paid to stakeholders               (70 635 411)             (62 279 405) 

 
Personnel & 
Suppliers               (69 144 086)             (62 265 863) 

  Interest paid     7           (1 491 325)                   (13 542) 

                 

Net cash flows from operating activities   17 (1 622 212)                 1 677 249 

                 

CAsh fLoWs fRoM invesTinG ACTiviTies        

                 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment   11           (4 426 360)                 (373 839) 

Purchase of intangible asset     11                (79 355)                            -   

Proceeds from sale of property, plant equipment 11                        -                              -   

Net cash flows from investing activities               (4 505 715)                 (373 839) 

                 

CAsh fLoWs fRoM finAnCinG ACTiviTies        

                 

Net cash flows from financing activities                            -                              -   

                 

Net (decrease)/ increase in net cash and cash        

equivalents                   (6 127 927)                 1 303 410 

net cash and cash equivalents at the beginning        

of year                     19 364 997               18 061 587 

net cash and cash equivalents at end of year 9           13 237 070               19 364 997 
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statement of Comparison of budget and Actual on the financial 
performance for the year ended 31 March 2015

          Actual  
Approved 

budget
Difference: 

          2015   2015

Approved budget 
and Actual

          R   R

               

Revenue                

Revenue from non-exchange transactions              72 013 925                67 235 000 (4 778 925) 

Other income                      2 652 980                  2 700 000                      47 020 

Total revenue                74 666 905            69 935 000 (4 731 905)

                 

expenses              

Operating expenses                24 125 399            20 205 148 (3 920 251) 

Personnel Costs                46 554 852            46 371 769 (183 082) 

Other administrative expenses               1 893 333             2 078 850              185 518 

Finance costs                    134 654                         -   (134 654) 

Assets written off                      53 259                         -   (53 259) 

Depreciation and amortisation expense              937 342             1 279 232              341 890 

Total expenses                73 698 838            69 935 000 (3 763 838)

                 

surplus for the year                  968 067                        (0)            (968 067) 

note 20.1. overleaf sets out detailed explanations on variances as outlined herein and must also be 
read in conjunction with the chapter 14 in the Annual report of the Commission for the period ending 
31 March 2015.
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual figures on the Financial 
position as at 31 March 2015

        notes Actual
Approved 

budget
Difference: 

          2015 2015

Approved 
budget and 

Actual

AsseTs         R R  

Current assets            

Cash and cash equivalents   9        13 237 070    5 000 000 (8 237 070)

Receivables from non-exchange transactions   10        13 237 070    5 000 000 (8 237 070)

                 13 272 226    5 000 000 (8 272 226)

               

non-current assets            

Property, plant and equipment   11          4 904 424    5 000 000 95 576

Intangible assets     11              66 641    1 000 000 933 359

                   4 971 065    6 000 000 1 028 935

               

Total Assets              18 243 291  11 000 000 (7 243 291)

               

LiAbiLiTies            

               

Current liabilities            

Payables from exchange transactions 12          3 220 087    3 500 000 279 913

Payables from non-exchange transactions 13          7 942 295    5 000 000 (2 942 295)

Provisions       14          2 235 934    2 500 000 264 066

                 13 398 316  11 000 000 (2 398 316)

               

Total liabilities              13 398 316  11 000 000 (2 398 316)

               

               

net assets                4 844 975               -      (4 844 975) 

note 20.2. overleaf sets out detailed  explanations on  variances as outlined herein and must also be 
read in conjunction with the chapter 14 in the Annual report of the Commission for the period ending 
31 March 2015.
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1. statement of compliance

These annual financial statements were prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (GRAP), as issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 
91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act, (Act No 29 of 1999).

1.1 Reporting entity

The CGE is an institution established in terms of Chapter Nine of the Constitution Act (Act No. 108 
of 1996) of the Republic of South Africa, and is responsible for 

• The  promotion for the respect of gender equality and

• Protection, development and attainment of gender equality

Its additional mandate is further provided for in the Commission on Gender Equality Act (Act No. 39 
of 1996) as amended.

The primary objective of Chapter Nine institutions, including the CGE, is to strengthen constitutional 
democracy.

The core business of the CGE is:-

• To promote gender equality and

• To advise and make recommendations to Parliament and any other legislature with regard 
to any laws or proposed legislation that affects gender equality and the status of women

For the purpose of reporting its activities as amongst others is contemplated in the Constitution of 
the Republic of South Africa, section 181 and the Public Finance Management Act of 1999 ;

The principal accounting policies, applied in the preparation of these annual financial 
statements, are set out below. These accounting policies are consistent with those applied 
in the preparation of the prior year annual financial statements, unless specified otherwise. 

• Consideration was made on whether the accounting policy is reasonable, given the 
circumstances of the CGE and noted that it is important and reasonable as well.

• Details of any changes in the accounting policies are provided in the note on Changes in 
accounting policies

1.2 basis of preparation

1.2.1 basis for measurement

The Annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and 
incorporate the historical cost conventions as the basis of measurement, except where 
otherwise indicated.

In the absence of an issued and effective Standard of GRAP, accounting policies for material 
transactions, events or conditions were developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 
11 of GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5.
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1.2.2 functional and presentation currency

These Annual financial statements are presented in South African Rands, which is the CGE’s 
functional currency. All financial information presented in South African Rands has been 
rounded to the nearest rand, unless otherwise stated.

1.2.3 Offsetting

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either 
required or permitted by a Standard of GRAP.

1.2.4 Going concern assumption

These annual financial statements were prepared based on the expectation that the entity 
will continue to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months. The going 
concern basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the 
realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments 
will occur in the ordinary course of business.

1.2.5 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumption

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates. Estimated and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is 
revised and in any future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical 
judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the 
amount recognised in the financial statements is given in the following notes:

Trade Receivables

The measurement of receivables is derived after consideration of the allowance for 
doubtful debts. Management makes certain assumptions regarding the categorisation 
of debtors into groups with similar risk profiles so that the effect of any impairment on 
a group of receivables would not differ materially from the impairment that would have 
been determined had each debtor been assessed for impairment on an individual basis. The 
determination of this allowance is predisposed to the utilisation of estimates, assumptions 
and management judgements. In determining this allowance the estimates are made about 
the probability of recovery of the debtors based on their past payment history and risk 
profile.

Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation and amortisation recognised on property, plant and equipment and intangible 
assets are determined with reference to the useful lives and residual values of the underlying 
items. The useful lives and residual values of assets are based on management’s estimation 
of the asset’s condition, expected condition at the end of the period of use, its current 
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use, expected future use and the entity’s expectations about the availability of finance to 
replace the asset at the end of its useful life. In evaluating how the condition and use of 
the asset informs the useful life and residual value, management considers the impact of 
technology and minimum service requirements of the assets.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised over their useful life taking into account residual values, 
where appropriate. The useful life of the assets and their residual values are assessed 
annually and may vary depending on a number of factors. In reassessing asset lives, factors 
such as technological innovation and maintenance programmes are taken into account.  
Residual value assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining 
life of the asset and projected disposal values.  

Impairment of non-cash generating assets

The CGE assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may 
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the CGE estimates the recoverable amount of the 
asset. In testing for, and determining the value-in-use of non-financial assets, management 
is required to rely on the use of estimates about the asset’s ability to continue to generate 
cash flows (in the case of cash-generating assets). For non-cash-generating assets, estimates 
are made regarding the depreciated replacement cost, restoration cost, or service units of 
the asset, depending on the nature of the impairment and the availability of information.

Provisions and contingent assets and liabilities

A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. Provisions are recognised as 
liabilities in the statement of financial position on a basis of an estimate reliably estimated 
by management. Provisions are present obligations determined on the probability that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to 
settle the obligations. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed and not recognised as liabilities because they are either:

• Possible obligations, as it has yet to be confirmed whether the CGE has a present obligation 
that could lead to an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service 
potential; or
•Present obligations that do not meet the recognition criteria of a liability either because it 
is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation or a sufficiently reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation 
cannot be made.

A contingent asset is not recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of 
economic benefits or service potential is probable.

According to GRAP, the term “contingent” is used for liabilities and assets that are not 
recognised because their existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the CGE.
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1.3 Standards of General Recognised Accounting Practice effective for financial periods 
commencing on or after 1 April 2015

standard summary and impact Effective date

GRAP 18 – Segment
Reporting

This standard establishes principles for 
reporting financial information by segments.

The impact on the financial results and 
disclosure is considered to be minimal.

Issued by the ASB – March 2005
Effective date – 1 April 2015

GRAP 20 – Related 
Parties

This standard ensures that the financial 
statements contain disclosures necessary 
to draw the attention to the possibility that 
the reporting entity’s financial position 
and surplus/deficit may have been affected 
by the existence of related parties and 
transactions and outstanding balances from 
such parties.

The impact on the financial results and 
disclosure is considered to be minimal.

Issued by the ASB – June 2011
Effective date - To be 
determined by the Minister of 
Finance

GRAP 32 – Service 
concession 
arrangements

The objective of this Standard is to prescribe 
the accounting for service concession 
arrangements by the grantor and a public 
sector entity

No significant impact is expected on the 
financial results

Issued by the ASB – August of  
2013
Effective date - To be 
determined by the Minister of 
Finance

GRAP 105 –Transfer 
of functions between 
entities under 
common control

This standard shall be applied prospectively 
to a transaction or event that involves a 
transfer of functions when the transfer 
date is on or after the initial adoption of the 
Standard.

The impact on the financial results and 
disclosure is considered to be minimal.

Issued by the ASB  with an 
effective date – 1 April 2015 

GRAP 106 – Transfer 
of functions between 
entities not under 
common control

This standard shall be applied prospectively 
to a transaction or event that involves a 
transfer of functions when the acquisition 
date is on or after the initial adoption of the 
Standard.

The impact on the financial results and 
disclosure is considered to be minimal.

Issued by the ASB  with an 
effective date – 1 April 2015

GRAP 107 – Mergers This standard shall be applied prospectively 
to a transaction or event that involves a 
merger when the merger date is on or after 
the initial adoption of the Standard.

The impact on the financial results and 
disclosure is considered to be minimal.

Issued by the ASB  with an 
effective date – 1 April 2015
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1.4 Revenue recognition

1.4.1 other income 

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting 
period when those inflows result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating 
to contributions from owners.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of 
trade discounts and volume rebates.

interest

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest is recognised when 
it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction 
will flow to the entity; and the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. Interest is 
recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.

1.4.2 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and 
receivable by an entity, which represents an increase in net assets, other than increases 
relating to contributions from owners.

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic 
benefits or service potential embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the 
recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to 
the transferor.

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which 
a transferred asset may be used ,but do not specify that future economic benefits or service 
potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed as specified.
Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, 
imposed upon the use of a transferred asset by entities external to the reporting entity.

Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised 
as revenue, except to the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same 
inflow.

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of 
resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying 
amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of revenue equal to that 
reduction.

Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue 
to the extent that the entity has complied with any of the criteria, conditions or obligations 
embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the criteria, conditions or obligations have 
not been met, a liability is recognised.
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Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net 
assets recognised by the entity.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also 
recognises revenue equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at 
the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability.

Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of 
the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the 
increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, 
because a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is recognised as 
revenue.

1.4.3 Transfers

Apart from services in kind, which are not recognised, the constitutional institution 
recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the 
definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.

Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

1.4.4 Gifts and donations, including goods and services in-kind

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it is 
probable that the future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the constitutional 
institution and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

1.5 irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would 
have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. 

Irregular expenditure means expenditure, other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in 
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation 
including the Public Finance Management Act.

Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure that has been condoned or will not be recovered 
from employees will be included in the Statement of Financial Performance, and where the 
expense is recoverable from the employee, the necessary debtor is created.

Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial 
Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the 
Statement of Financial Performance

1.6 property, plant and equipment

1.6.1 Recognition and measurement 

Property, plant and equipment comprise of computer equipment, furniture and fittings, 
office equipment and motor vehicles and are stated at historical costs less accumulated 
depreciation.



143

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT  2014-2015Commission for Gender Equality
A society free from gender oppression and inequality

Accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2015

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. 
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is 
capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate components of property, plant and equipment and depreciated 
accordingly.

1.6.2 Repairs and maintenance

Maintenance and repairs, which neither materially add to the value of assets nor appreciably 
prolong their useful lives, are expensed during the financial year in which they are incurred.

1.6.3 subsequent expenditures

Where the entity replaces parts of an asset, it derecognises the part of the asset being 
replaced and capitalises the new component.  

Subsequent expenditure including major spare parts and servicing equipment qualify as 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.  

1.6.4 Depreciation

Depreciation is charged against the assets over the useful lives of an asset from the date the 
asset is available for use. 

Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-line method 
over the estimated useful lives of the assets.  Components of assets that are significant in 
relation to the whole asset and that have different useful lives are depreciated separately. 
The depreciable amount is determined after taking into account an assets’ residual value, 
where applicable.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed at each 
financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The assets bought specifically for a project and intended for donation at the end of the 
project’s life are depreciated over the life of the contract as the residual value at that point 
will be nil.

1.6.5 useful lives

The following are the estimated useful lives of the different categories of assets and which 
are depreciated on the straight-line method over the following periods:

Computer equipment 5-8 years

Office furniture 10 years

Office equipment 5-10 years

Motor vehicle 5-8 years

On an annual basis, at the beginning of the financial year, management assesses the useful 
lives for each class of assets.
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1.6.6 De-recognition

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or 
when there are no further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use 
of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the 
carrying value and is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.6.7 impairment

The CGE tests for impairment where there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 
An assessment of whether there is an indication of possible impairment is done at each 
reporting date. Where the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment 
is greater than the estimated recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount), it is 
written down immediately to its recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount) and 
an impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance.

Where items of property, plant and equipment have been impaired, the carrying value is 
adjusted by the impairment loss, which is recognised as an expense in the Statement of 
Financial Performance in the period that the impairment is identified. An impairment is 
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined had no impairment been recognised.  A reversal 
of the impairment is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.7 intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.

1.7.1 initial recognition

The CGE recognises an intangible asset in its Statement of Financial Position only when 
it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are 
attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost or fair value of the asset can be 
measured reliably. Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

Where an intangible asset is acquired by the CGE for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a non-
exchange transaction), the cost is deemed to be equal to the fair value of that asset on the 
date acquired.

Where an intangible asset is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary 
assets or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially 
measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item’s fair value is not determinable, it’s 
deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

Intangible assets consist of computer software. Intangible assets are stated at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Purchased computer software and the direct costs associated with the customisation and 
installation thereof, are capitalised and amortised over estimated useful lives of the assets 
from the date that they are available for use.
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1.7.2 Amortisation

Each item is amortised over its useful life once it is available for use. Amortisation is charged 
so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets over their estimated useful lives, using the 
straight-line method.

The estimated useful lives, residual values, and amortisation method are reviewed at each 
year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

1.7.3 useful lives

Intangible assets are amortised over the following periods, considered to be their estimated 
useful lives: Computer software 5 – 9 years.

1.7.4 De-recognition

Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no 
further economic benefits or service potential expected from the asset. The gain or loss 
arising on the disposal or retirement of an intangible asset is determined as the difference 
between the sales proceeds and the carrying value and is recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Performance.

1.8 impairment of non - monetary assets

At each reporting date, the CGE reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible assets 
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If 
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine 
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). 

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are immediately 
recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased 
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been 
recognised for the asset in prior years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately in the statement of financial 
performance.

1.9 Leases

1.9.1 Recognition

Assets subject to operating leases are those wherein, substantially all of the risks and rewards 
of ownership are not transferred to the lessee through the lease and are not recognised in 
the Statement of Financial Position. The operating lease expense is recognised over the 
course of the lease arrangement.
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The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance 
of the arrangement at inception date; namely whether fulfilment of the arrangement is 
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use 
the asset.

1.9.2 Measurement

The lease expense recognised for operating leases is charged to the Statement of Financial 
Performance on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. To the extent that 
the straight-lined lease payments differ from the actual lease payments the difference 
is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as either lease payments in advance 
(operating lease asset) or lease payments payable (operating lease liability) as the case may 
be. This resulting asset and / or liability is measured as the undiscounted difference between 
the straight-line lease payments and the contractual lease payments.

1.9.3 De-recognition

The operating lease liability is derecognised when the entity’s obligation to settle the 
liability is extinguished. The operating lease asset is derecognised when the entity no longer 
anticipates economic benefits to flow from the asset.

Leases that the CGE enters into as a lessee, and where the lessor retains substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership of the underlying asset, are classified as operating leases. 
Payments made under operating leases are charged against revenue on a straight-line basis 
over the term of the lease.

1.10 Employee benefits

1.10.1 Defined contribution plan

Contributions made towards the fund are recognised as an expense in the Statement 
of Financial Performance in the period that such contributions become payable. This 
contribution expense is measured at the undiscounted amount of the contribution paid or 
payable to the fund. A liability is recognised to the extent that any of the contributions have 
not yet been paid. Conversely an asset is recognised to the extent that any contributions 
have been paid in advance.

1.10.2 Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the CGE is demonstrably committed, 
without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to terminate employment 
before the normal retirement date. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are 
recognised if the CGE has made an offer encouraging voluntary redundancy, it is probable 
that the offer will be accepted and the number of acceptances can be estimated reliably.
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1.10.3 Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits encompasses all those benefits that become payable in the 
short term, i.e. within a financial year or within 12 months after the financial year. Therefore, 
short term employee benefits include remuneration, compensated absences and bonuses.

Short term employee benefits are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance 
as services are rendered, except for non-accumulating benefits, which are recognised 
when the specific event occurs. These short term employee benefits are measured at their 
undiscounted costs in the period the employee renders the related service or the specific 
event occurs.

Short-term employee benefits including annual leave are measured on an undiscounted 
basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.
A provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash plans if 
the CGE has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past 
service provided by employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

1.11 financial instruments

1.11.1 initial recognition 

Financial instruments are recognised initially when CGE becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments.

Financial instruments or their component part are classified on initial recognition as a 
financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance 
of the contractual arrangement.

All “regular way” purchases and sales of financial liabilities are recognised using trade date 
accounting.

1.11.2 Measurement

Financial instruments are measured initially at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial 
asset or a financial liability not subsequently measured at fair value, transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

The CGE measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using 
the following categories defined in paragraph .14: 
(a) Financial instruments at fair value.  
(b) Financial instruments at amortised cost. 
(c) Financial instruments at cost. 
All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.

1.11.2.1 Financial assets

The CGE’s principle financial assets are accounts receivable and cash and cash 
equivalents, which are classified as financial instruments at amortised cost.
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1.11.2.2 Receivable from non-exchange transactions

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition and subsequently stated at amortised cost, 
less provision for impairment. All receivables are assessed at least annually for 
possible impairment. Impairments of receivables are determined in accordance with 
the accounting policy for impairments. Impairment adjustments are made through 
the use of an allowance account.

Bad debts are written off in the year in which they are identified as irrecoverable.  
Amounts receivable within 12 months from the reporting date is classified as current.  
Interest is charged on overdue accounts.

1.11.2.3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost.

Cash includes cash on hand and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term 
highly liquid investments that are held with registered banking institutions with 
maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change 
in value.

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise 
cash on hand and deposits held on call with banks.

1.11.2.4 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, comprising original debt less 
principle payments and amortisations.

The CGE’s principle financial liabilities are accounts payable.

1.11.2.5 Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition and are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest rate method.

1.11.2.6 Payables from non-exchange transactions

Short-term payables from non-exchange transactions are stated at nominal values. 
The non-exchange payables arise from legislative, mainly employee taxes payable to 
state agencies and/or contractual agreements, other than exchanges, entered into 
willingly by employees of the Commission. 
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1.11.2.6.1 De-recognition

The CGE derecognises a financial asset (or where applicable part thereof) only when:

• The right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
• The CGE retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an 

obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ 
arrangement; or

• The Commission has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either
 i. Has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
 ii. Has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards 

of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same customer on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, 
such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability, and the 
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the surplus or deficit for the year.

1.11.3 Offset of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of 
financial position only when the CGE has a legally enforceable right to set off recognised 
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. 

1.11.4 impairments

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment 
review.  The CGE assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective 
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

For financial assets held at amortised cost:

The entity first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for 
financial assets that are individually significant and individually or collectively for financial 
assets that are not individually significant. If the entity determines that no objective evidence 
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, 
it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics 
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for 
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not 
included in the collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at 
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference 
between the asset‘s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial 
asset‘s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial 
recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance 
account. The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease 
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the 
previously recognised impairment loss shall be reversed either directly or by adjusting 
an allowance account. The reversal shall not result in a carrying amount of the financial 
asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been 
recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised 
in surplus or deficit.

1.11.5 Risk Management of financial Assets and Liabilities:

It is the policy of the CGE to disclose information that enables the user of its financial 
statements to evaluate the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments to 
which the entity is exposed on the reporting date.

Risks and exposure are disclosed as follows:

Credit Risk

Each class of financial instrument is disclosed separately. Maximum exposure to credit 
risk not covered by collateral is specified. Financial instruments covered by collateral are 
specified.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations 
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial 
asset. Sufficient cash is maintained to manage the CGE’s liquidity risk.

interest Risk

Interest rate risk originates from the uncertainty about the fair value or future cash flows 
of a financial instrument which fluctuates because of changes in market interest rates. 
Management has assessed the impact of interest rate risk on the operations of the entity 
and considers the risk to be negligible. 

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest 
rate and equity prices will affect the entities income or the value of its holdings of financial 
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk 
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.
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1.12 provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
a past event, it is probable that it will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle 
the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation.

Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its 
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be 
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

1.13 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will 
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the CGE; or  a present obligation that arises from past events but is not 
recognised because it is not probable that an  outflow of  resources embodying economic benefits 
or service potential will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

1.14 Change in estimate

A change in accounting estimate is an adjustment of the carrying amount of an asset or liability, 
or related expense, resulting from reassessing the expected future benefits and obligations 
associated with that asset or liability. Estimates are revised when new information becomes 
available which indicates a change in circumstances upon which the estimates were formed. The 
Commission accounts for the changes in estimate prospectively in the financial statements. The 
effect of change is incorporated in the period in which the estimates are revised. As a result the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and associated expense or income are adjusted in the 
period of change in estimate. 
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1.15 Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or to 
exercise significant influence or join the party in making financial and operating decisions.

A party is related to the CGE if directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party 
controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Commission.

Key management is defined as being individuals with the authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling activities of the CGE. All individuals from Management up to the 
Commissioners are key management individuals in their dealings with the CGE.

Other related party transactions are also disclosed in terms of the requirements of the standard. 
The objective of the standard and financial statement is to provide relevant and reliable information 
and therefore materiality is considered in the disclosure of these transactions.

1.16 Comparatives

Where material accounting errors, which relate to prior periods, have been identified in the current 
year, the correction is made retrospectively as far as is practicable and the prior year comparatives 
are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the current year, 
the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable and the prior year comparatives are 
restated accordingly

1.17 events after the reporting date

All adjusting events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between reporting date and 
the date when the financial statements are issued have been reported and adjusted for in the 
financial statements.

Those events that are indicative of conditions that came into existence subsequent to reporting 
date have not been adjusted for.

The CGE will adjust the amounts recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events 
after the reporting date once the event occurred.

The CGE will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate its financial effect or a statement 
that such estimate cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-
disclosure could influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial 
statements.
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              2015   2014
              R   R
                  Restated

2 Revenue from non-exchange transactions          
  Transfers from National Government              67 235 000              63 080 000 
  Conditional grant from National Government # 

refer note 16.
               4 778 925                           -   

             72 013 925            63 080 000
                   

3 other income              
  Interest received                       764 854                   766 886 
  Donations received in cash                     926 628                           -   
  Donations received in kind                     874 782                           -   
  Sundry income                         86 716                   109 768 
                         2 652 980                   876 654 

     
4 operating expenses            

  Bank Charges                         54 216                     42 652 
  Computer Servicing, Internet & Website                   623 607                   873 432 
  Office Cleaning, Maintenance, Plants & Security              1 226 471                   916 913 
  Telecommunication Expenses                  2 503 918                2 085 303 
  Bad debts/(recovered)       (18 800)                     90 244 
  Advertising and media outreach                     481 127                   128 010 
  Courier services                       240 650                   224 878 
  Travel expenses    **                    8 233 436                7 822 093 
  Report writing, printing and publishing *                2 760 277                1 204 447 
  Printing and photocopying                     941 542                   750 411 
  Subscriptions                         70 536                      5 061 
  Publicity functions and conference *                2 694 495                1 191 158 
  Audit fees                      2 526 086                2 121 421 
  Consulting fees                    1 787 840                2 665 679 
                       24 125 399              20 121 702 
                   

 

** Key to CGE operating model, includes travelling to communities we serve accross the Republic. 
This consumes a significant amount of financial resources.
* Refer to note 20.1. for further explanations 

5 personnel Costs              
  Basic           33 538 054   28 433 459
  Medical aid-company contribution                     405 915                   357 837 
  Unemployment Insurance Fund                     173 462                   151 672 
  Performance bonus - provision                  1 626 126                1 504 691 
  Provision for leave pay                  1 067 907                   558 016 
  Salary bonus - 13th Cheque                  2 154 058                2 239 319 
  Overtime                         382 185                   230 438 
  Provident fund-company contribution                3 845 789                3 160 453 
  Allowances                    2 863 923                2 460 738 
  Company contribution other                     497 433                   807 752 
                       46 554 852              39 904 375 

  note:                
  The Commissioners and key management’s remuneration is included in Note 18 as 
  contained in this report.            
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              2015   2014
              R   R
                  Restated
                   

6 other administrative expenses          
  Staff training and development       613 107   271 174
  Legal fees                      456 021              200 148 
  Maintenance, repairs and running costs          
  -Property and buildings                    25 615                32 188 
  -Other maintenance repairs and running costs            319 089              293 973 
                   
  Office consumables and refreshments                172 423              167 619 
  Operating lease expenses                  307 078              308 649 
                       1 893 332             1 273 751 
                   

7 finance cost              
  Interest paid         134 654   195 606
  Bank interest paid (restated but paid out in 2015)                     -               1 041 291 
                         134 654           1 236 897 
                   
                   

8 Assets written off (Refer to disposals in Note 11)      
  Cost                         75 443                        -   
  Accumulated depreciation                   (22 184)                        -   
  book value                      53 259                        -   
                   
  Assets written off                      53 259                        -   
                   
                   
                   

9 Cash and cash equivalents            
  Cash at bank         13 225 667   19 355 248
  Cash on hand                      11 403                  9 749 
                     13 237 070          19 364 997 
                   
                   
                   

10 Receivables from non-exchange transactions      
  Other receivables         513 346   629 460
  Less: Impairment allowance               (478 189)            (530 324) 
                           35 156                99 136 
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              2015   2014
              R   R
                  Restated
                   

10.1 Receivables: Ageing            
  Current (0 - 30 days)                      3 461               37 593 
  31 - 60 days                           -                 13 662 
  61 - 90 days                           -                        -   
  +365 days                   509 884             578 205 
                        513 346             629 460 
                   

10.2 impairment allowance: Ageing          
  +365 days                   478 189             530 324 
                        478 189             530 324 
                   

10.3
Reconciliation of impairment 
allowance        

  Balance at beginning of year                 530 324             440 080 
  Increase in impairment provision for doubtful debts                   -                 93 044 
  Recovered                   (52 135)               (2 800) 
                        478 189             530 324 
                   
                   

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class 
of receivable mentioned above. The entity does not hold any collateral as security.

The credit quality of receivables can be assessed by reference to historical information 
about counterparty default rates. Repayment agreements have been entered into 
with those long outstanding receivables, where applicable whilst other receivables are 
collected through litigation processes.
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note11: property, plant and equipment          

           
Reconciliation of carrying value 2015  Office 

equipment 
 Motor 

vehicles 
 Office 

furniture 
 Computer 
equipment 

 Total 

           

opening net carrying amount     136 035      373 201      466 257      480 459       1 455 951 

Cost   1 986 933   1 765 080   3 414 995   6 818 903     13 985 911 

Accumulated depreciation (1 850 898) (1 391 879) (2 948 738) (6 338 444) (12 529 959)

           

Additions       24 640   4 275 099              -        126 621       4 426 360 

           

Depreciation (48 585) (613 911) (104 807) (157 325) (924 628)

           

Disposals carrying amount (4 665)              -                -   (48 595) (53 259)

Cost (5 999)              -                -   (69 444) (75 443)

Gross disposal accumulated depreciation         1 335              -                -         20 850           22 184 

           

Closing net carrying amount     107 425   4 034 389      361 449      401 160       4 904 424 

Cost   2 005 574   6 040 179   3 414 995   6 876 079     18 336 828 

Accumulated depreciation (1 898 149) (2 005 790) (3 053 546) (6 474 919) (13 432 404)
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note11 : property, plant & equipment and intangible assets

           

note11.1. : property, plant and equipment        

           

Reconciliation of carrying value 2014  Office 
equipment 

 Motor 
vehicles 

 Office 
furniture 

 Computer 
equipment 

 Total 

           

opening net carrying amount       204 325       373 201       559 641        584 134      1 721 302 

Cost    1 932 030    1 765 080    3 394 509      6 520 453     13 612 072 

Accumulated depreciation (1 727 705) (1 391 879) (2 834 867) (5 936 319) (11 890 770)

           

Additions         54 903               -           20 486        298 450         373 839 

           

Depreciation (123 193)   (113 872) (402 125) (639 190)

           

Disposals carrying amount               -                 -                 -                   -                    -   

Cost               -                 -                 -                   -                    -   

Gross disposal accumulated 
depreciation               -                 -                 -                   -                    -   

           

Closing net carrying amount       136 035       373 201       466 254        480 459      1 455 951 

Cost    1 986 933    1 765 080    3 414 994      6 818 903     13 985 911 

Accumulated depreciation (1 850 898) (1 391 879) (2 948 740) (6 338 444) (12 529 960)

           

Gross carrying amounts of the fully 
amortised assets still in use 1712499     6117102 7829601

           

number of fully amortised assets 
that are still in use 209     362 571
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11.2 Change in accounting estimate              

                 

  Included in depreciation for 2014/15 is an effect from a change in estimate of R228 016 arising 

 

from the management decision to change the useful lives of asset as well as the assesment of 
residual values in terms of GRAP. 

  The change will result in a increase of depreciation in future periods, for the following categories 

  of PPE items:            

            2014   2015

            Current   future (increase)

  Motor Vehicles           224 761           (224 761)

  Office Equipment                3 255                (3 255)

  Total decrease/(Increase)         228 016           (228 016)
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note 11.3. : intangible assets        

    2015   2014

    R   R

        Restated

         

Opening net carrying amount               -                 -   

Gross carrying amount   278569   278569

Accumulated amortisation   (278 569)   (278 569)

         

Additions   79355               -   

         

Amortisation   (12 714)               -   

         

Disposal carrying amount               -                 -   

Gross disposal carrying amount   0   0

Gross accumulated disposal amortisation   0   0

         

Closing net carrying amounts         66 641               -   

Gross carrying amount   357924   278569

Accumulated amortisation   (291 283)   (278 569)

         

         

fully amortised items still in use        

         

Number of fully amortised assets that are still in use   7   7

Gross carrying amounts of the fully amortised assets still in use   278569   278569
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              2015   2014
              R   R
                  Restated

12 payables from exchange transactions          
  Trade creditors         2 274 405   1 607 693
  Accruals                          945 682                556 175 
                          3 220 087             2 163 868 
                   

13
payables from non- exchange 
transactions          

  Payroll creditors                     4 196 778             4 311 806 
  Conditional grant #                     3 745 518             8 544 442 
  # refer to note 16                     7 942 295            12 856 248 
                   

14 provisions              
  Provision for annual bonus                      544 998                518 368 
  Provision for performance bonus                   1 690 936             1 504 691 
                          2 235 934             2 023 059 
                   
  provision for annual bonus            
  Balance at the beginning of the year       518 367   429 450
  Less utilised during the year       (2 127 428)   (1 720 952)
  Raised during the year       2 154 058   1 809 869
                             544 997                518 367 
  provision for performance bonus            
                   
  Balance at the beginning of the year       1 504 691             1 011 912 
  Less utilised during the year            (1 439 881)      (1 350 371)
  Raised during the year                   1 626 126             1 843 150 
                          1 690 936             1 504 691 
                   
                   

The annual bonus is paid to the general staff, management and Commissioners in December of each year. 
The bonus to staff is a fringe benefit in terms of the respective contracts of employment whilst management 
and Commissioners are on a total cost to company (CTC). 

On the other hand, the performance bonus is payable to staff and management in terms of the Performance 
management and Development policy of the Commission. The provision for the annual bonus is estimated on 
the basis of the salary level at reporting date and shall be payable at the end of the calendar year contingent 
upon the fulfilment of obligations set out in the employment contract and the policies of the Commission. 
The performance bonus is payable within the ensuing 12 months’ period after the reporting date and is 
determined on the basis of an objective assessment of individual staff member’s performance during the 
period. The provision is estimated to the current figures subject to the finalization of the assessment as 
referred above. There are no reimbursements expected.
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15. prior period errors 

The following prior period errors have been identified and the specific effect on financial statements 
accordingly disclosed. These errors have been corrected and comparatives restated accordingly. The effects 
on 2014 financial statements are as follows:

       

15.1. Employee taxes, Penalties and Interest payable to the South African Revenue Services

  The Commission settled a claim from SARS regarding for tax compliance matters dating back to 
the  tax year ended February 2000. The claim included unpaid and/or unreconciled taxes, penalties 
with interest charges accumulated over a period from 2000 to December 2014. Management 
became aware of the content and quantum of reconcilaition variances immediately after the 
Annual Financial statements for 2013/2014 period were audited and published.  

 

 

   

  statement of financial position    

       

  Decrease in opening accumulated surplus for 2013/2014   1 511 333

  Increase in finance costs & penalties   1 041 291

  Increase in personnel and admin expenditure   470 042

       

       

   increase in non-exchange payables   1 693 397

       

  Statement of Financial Performance for 2013/2014    

   Increase in finance cost              182 064 
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16. Conditional grant

The conditional grant figure was a reallocation of a portion of surplus funds accumulated from financial 
activities of prior periods. In contrast to a general rule that requires surplus funds generated at the end of a 
financial period to be surrendered or refunded to National treasury, a specific permission was granted to the 
Commission in June of 2013 to utilise such funds at a total figure of R8.5 m for specific capital expenditure 
projects on condition more fully elaborated under note 24. At reporting date, having met the conditions of 
the grant, R4.8 m was recognised as grant income for the 2015 financial year in the statement of financial 
performance, leaving a balance of R3, 7 million as current liability in the statement of financial position as 
at the reporting date.

16.1. Reconciliation of accumulated surplus account  
       
Opening accumulated surplus as at 31 March 2013 R 12 090 654
       
Conditional grant liability      (8 524 442)
prior period error corrected as per note 15              (1 511 333)
Surplus for for the year ending 31 March 2014 (restated)             1 822 029 
       
Balance as at 31 March 2014 : restated                3 876 908
       
Surplus for the year ending 31 March 2014                 968 067
       
Closing accumulated suplus                 4 844 975

17 Net cash flows from operating activities     2015   2014

              R   R

                  Restated

  Surplus for the year                       968 067            1 822 029 

  Adjustment for:              

  Depreciation and amortisation                     937 342               639 191 

  Assets written off                         53 259                       -   

  Contribution to provision                     212 875               581 897 

  Impairment loss provision                       52 135                90 244 

  Other income - conditional grant # note 16              (4 778 925)                (9 067) 

  operating surplus before working capital changes            (2 555 247)            3 124 293 

                   

  Decrease in receivables                     116 025                34 555 

  Increase/(Decrease) in payables                     817 010          (1 481 599) 

  Cash ( utilised)/ generated from operations            (1 622 212)            1 677 249 
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18. Related parties

18.1. Key management remuneration

The CGE is a schedule 1 Constitutional Institution in terms of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 
1 of 1999 as amended). Although the CGE is an independent institution, created under chapter 9 of the 
Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, the CGE has defined relationships with other entities that fall 
within the national sphere of government.

Unless specifically disclosed, the transactions between the CGE and these entities are concluded on an arm’s 
length basis. There are no restrictions in the CGE’s capacity to transact with any entity.
Fees paid to commissioners and executive management remuneration:

        2015 2014

Commissioners   salaries Allowances Total Total

LH Bata          759 438           7 200         766 638             60 441 

MA Botha (part-time)          430 463         10 833         441 296             57 960 

A Gouws (part-time)           69 713           1 650           71 362            272 553 

JL Hicks          676 206         90 432         766 638            736 476 

NEP Loyilane (part-time)        222 105         18 993         241 098            741 456 

N Maphazi          694 638         72 000         766 638            832 780 

NG Mazibuko (part-time)        443 931           5 582         449 514             54 954 

KV Meruti  * (part-time)                -                  -                   -                 5 451 

W Mgoqi          694 638         72 000         766 638            611 480 

T Mpumlwana          753 435         72 000         825 435            799 121 

L Nare          766 638                -           766 638            238 235 

PLF Nzimande (part-time)        168 093           2 565         170 658                    -   

M Shozi          899 277         72 000         971 277            934 890 

PS Sobahle (part-time)          328 899           7 700         336 599                    -   

S Stevens Maziya  *                  -                  -                   -               83 904 

ToTAL       6 907 475       432 955      7 340 430         5 429 700 

* former commissioners’ salary backpay arising from unpaid cost of living adjustment during their tenure at the 
Commission. Their respective contracts ended in the previous financial year.

        2015 2014

Management Office salaries Allowances Total Total

 K Anirudhra  HoD       672 064         146 108            818 172           752 354 

 J De Klerk  HoD       749 084           78 000            827 084           805 628 

 K Maema  CEO    1 102 677           90 000         1 192 677           995 899 

 P Moholola (resigned Dec 2014)  HoD       681 764                 -              681 764           806 324 

 M Putu  CFO       789 692           60 000            849 692           849 788 

 TJ Rapoo  HoD       789 194           39 000            828 194           805 628 

 MM Van Niekerk  HoD       828 271                 -              828 271           385 653 

ToTAL      5 612 746         413 108         6 025 854        5 401 274 
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18.2. Related party transactions with government institutions

Listed below are public sector entities which the Commission transacted with during the reporting period:
1. The Department for Women in the Presidency
2. The National Department of Public Works
3. Telkom South Africa Ltd.
4. South African Broadcasting Corporation
5. South African Revenue Services
6. Unemployment Insurance Fund
7. Compensation Fund
8. Services Sector, Education and Training Authority
9. Government Printing Works
10. The South African School of Government

The transactions occurred in accordance with the established government-wide operating parameters

19. irregular, fruitless and Wasteful expenditure

19.1. irregular expenditure

During the Financial year 2008/09, 2009/10 the CGE did not have supply chain management unit as required 
by PFMA Act and Treasury Regulations, as a result Irregular expenditure was incurred. An SCM unit was 
duly established during the 2010/11 year. At the time of reporting the irregular expenditure cumulatively 
amounting to R33 765 345 
(2014/2015) was still to be regularised by the Relevant Authority. In this case, National Treasury is being 
consulted to grant approval for an application for condonation.

              2015   2014

              R   R
Reconciliation irregular expenditure          

                   
  opening balance:                  32 723 675     30 869 084 
                   
  Transactions deemed irregularly incurred durig the year            1 041 669      1 854 591 
                   
  Total irregular expenditure incurred                33 765 345     32 723 675 
                   
19.2. fruitless and wasteful expenditure          
                   
  Interest and penalties paid                     134 654         195 606 
  Restatements as per note 15.1. above                           -        1 041 291 
                            134 654      1 236 897 

In accordance with provisions of the Public Finance Management Act, in particular sections 84 of the Act, 
disciplinary proceedings were taken against officials on grounds of financial misconduct. Furthermore, 
additional measures were undertaken to strengthen systems of internal controls in a manner enabling the 
Commission to fulfil its obligations whilst fully complying with applicable laws and regulation. The amounts 
herein are not recoverable from employees, whomsoever and as a matter of course the figures were not 
recognised as revenue and receivable in the financial statements of any of the reporting periods.
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20. budget information 

20.1. Reconciliation of the budget with surplus in the statement of financial performance.

Income or 
Expenditure line

Budget Adjustment to 
budget

Available budget Actual 
expenditure

Under / (over) 
expenditure

Non-exchange 
revenue (67 235 000)                     -   (67 235 000) (72 013 925)          4 778 925 

Other income                       -   (2 700 000) (2 700 000) (2 652 980) (47 020)

Total (67 235 000) (2 700 000) (69 935 000) (74 666 905)          4 731 905 
Operating expenditure          20 205 000                     -            20 205 000          24 125 399 (3 920 399)

Other administrative 
expenses            2 078 000                     -              2 078 000            1 893 332             184 668 

Personnel costs          46 371 800                     -            46 371 800          46 554 852 (183 052)

Finance costs                       -                       -                         -                 134 654 (134 654)

Assets written off                       -                       -                         -                  53 259 (53 259)

Depreciation            1 280 200                     -              1 280 200               937 342             342 858 

Total          69 935 000                     -            69 935 000          73 698 838 (3 763 838)

      

Operating surplus for the period to 31 March 2015  (968 067)             968 067 
      

summary results

For the period under review, the Commission recorded a surplus of R968, 067. This was a net result of 
additional non-exchange revenue recognised at a total amount of R4, 8 million which was however offset by 
spending overrun at a total amount of R3, 9 million for the full twelve month period.

Included in revenue and income is donations made in kind by the South African Broadcasting Corporation 
(SABC) for the Gender Summit and Human Rights month, respectively fair valued at R250, 000 and R600, 
000. Furthermore, Cash donations were received for the summit, where in the main UNDP (United Nations 
agency) contributed R529, 500 and the Department of Enterprise made a contribution of R200, 000 towards 
the realisation of the Summit as well. The sources of income were not budgeted for but were used to fund 
ordinary operating activities of the Commission during the financial year under review.

Additionally for the reporting period, the Commission also recorded interest income for R764, 854 and 
other sundry income at R86, 712. 

Against an allocation of R67, 2 million from National Treasury, R2, 7 million additional income was received, 
in the main from Donors as well as interest income earned from excess cash in the bank. Furthermore, the 
R4, 8 million in conditional grant increased the recorded revenue and income for the year to R74, 7 million 
as at 31 March 2015.  On the other hand, expenditure concomitantly realized at R73, 9 million. In comparison 
to the annual adjusted budget, spending reflected in the aggregate an unfavourable R 3, 7 million variance 
and is explained as follows;
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Operating expenditure 

During the reporting period, the Commission planned a Gender Summit which was held in April of 2014 
where the budget from internal sources were set at R1 million whereas the actual spending stood at R R2, 4 
million. The additional expenses incurred in this regard were however co-funded by donors to the amount of 
R1, 2 million and correspondingly, donor income was recognised in the statement of financial performance 
for the period. There was a further incurrence of expenditure from donated services for Advertorials for 
the Human Rights months, covered on the SABC channel during the latter part of the financial period. The 
corresponding expenditure was recorded, showing additional spending not budgeted for, and however, 
similar to the former donation, income of R600, 000 was recognised in the 2015 period statement of financial 
performance. A further unbudgeted spending was for professional services incurred in pursuance of the 
ICT infrastructure implementation. To this end, R500, 000 was recorded and the conditional grant income 
raised in the statement of financial performance for the period. In total, spending recorded, not budget 
for but financed from other sources (Donor and/or special grant income) came to R2, 4 million. Although 
these transactions indicates spending in excess of the budget, their effect in the statement of financial 
performance were fully countered by a corresponding recording of income for R2, 4 million.

The residue of the unfavourable spending variance was driven by expenditure on travel and accommodation 
which for the reporting period, realised at R8, 2 million whilst budgeted for at R5 million.

personnel costs and other Administrative expenses remained within budget respectively at R46, 6 million 
and R1, 9 million. In comparison to prior period, the increase is attributable to the filling of formerly vacant 
critical positions within the establishment as well as the effect of a 7% cost of living adjustment made to the 
salaries of staff, management and commissioners with effect from 1 April 2014. 

20.2. Analysis of the Actual and Budget information on the financial position as at 31 March 2015

Against the funding allocation from National Treasury, the spending and Investment plans budgeted were 
carried out successfully but for the variances indicated in the statement of financial performance and 
position comparative to the budget. The exceptions arising from financial performance were elucidated in 
the latter analysis whilst variances resulting from the statement of financial position are as follows;

Current assets and current liabilities - cash balance was anticipated to close at around R5 million, however 
the balance held in the bank as at 31 March 2015 was R13, million. This is primarily due to under-servicing of 
current liabilities by R2, 4 million mainly because of delayed disbursement of a conditional grant earmarked 
for ICT infrastructure.

non-current assets  - the changes anticipated at budgeting involved in the main the acquisition and 
recapitalisation of fleet and ICT equipment & intangible asset as well as retirement of old equipment 
resulting in a net recapitalised balance sheet to R6 million. The delays in these projects resulted in excess 
cash (R8, 2 million) in the bank and an increase in current liabilities (R2, 7 million). This mainly bolstered 
liquidity and did not impact the net asset situation whatsoever.
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21. operating leases

The CGE leases twelve (12) photocopier machines from  Konica Minolta and ITEC for a period of 36 months, 
reprectively effective from 1 June 2012 and 1 August 2012. The lease payements for 4 differentiated 
copiers from Minolta  are fixed at an average rental of R3,407 per machine, per month whilst the 8 
standard copiers from ITEC are charged at a fixed instalment of R1491 per copier per month. 

Future minimum lease payments at 31 March 2015

Not later than one year     70 000 

Later than one year and not later than five years               -   

Later than five years               -   

22. Risk Management of financial Assets and Liabilities

In ordinary course of operations, an entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk 
(including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk 
and liquidity risk. It is therefore a policy of CGE to disclose information that enables the user of its financial 
statements to evaluate the nature and extent of risk arising from financial instruments to which the CGE is 
exposed on the reporting date.

interest rate risk

The CGE’s exposure to the interest rate is limited, as the CGE has no significant interest bearing liabilities. 
Furthermore, other than cash held in the bank account, the CGE has no significant interest-bearing assets, 
the entity’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest 
rates.

Liquidity risk

The CGE’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The CGE manages 
the liquidity risk through an on-going review of future commitments and the cash flows arising from 
allocations by National Treasury

The financial liabilities maturity analysis of the CGE, for the reporting period shows contractual cash outflows 
on an undiscounted basis as below. The balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the 
impact of discounting is not significant.
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2015

financial 
instrument

Current 
interest rate

Due in less than 
a year

Due in two to 
five years

Trade 
and other 
payables

9% R 3 220 087 -

Other 
payables

0%
R 7 942 295 -

2014

financial 
instrument

Current 
interest rate

Due in less 
than a year

Due in two to 
five years

Trade 
and other 
payables

8.5% R 2 163 868 -

Other 
payables

0%
R 12 856 248 -

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and other receivables. The CGE only deposits 
cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any other counter party. The 
CGE banker’s credit rating was listed as F3 for short term and BBB for long term as was affirmed by Fitch 
Rating Ltd again during June of 2014.

Currency risk

Foreign exchange rate risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and 
net investments in foreign operations. The CGE is not exposed to any material foreign exchange risk arising 
from various currency exposures. The CGE does not hedge foreign exchange fluctuations.

price Risk

The Commission is not exposed to equity securities price risk because there are no investments held by the 
CGE and classified as either for sale or at fair value through surplus or deficit.
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23. events after the reporting date

At the time of reporting, there were no favourable or unfavourable events, known by management to have 
an actual or potential effect on the financial statements. 

24. Accumulated surplus 

The Commission has reported surplus funds resulting from under -spending on the government grant 
received from National Treasury. The surplus were generated from the 2010/2011 reporting period and 
accumulated to R11, 1 million by the end of 2012/2013 Financial year. The public sector prescripts to which 
the Commission must comply requires a surrender of the surplus back to National Treasury unless permission 
is granted to retain and use by the reporting entity. The Commission duly made applications to retain these 
funds and the applications were granted for the retention of R8, 5 million subject to conditions that the 
money be spent solely for the procurement of the IT infrastructure and investment in the motor vehicle 
fleet. An obligation to surrender the value of the full grant shall arise if the conditions set out above are not 
fully met by the Commission. Similarly, the Commission shall be required to surrender surpluses generated 
during succeeding financial years since the 2012/2013 period unless a corresponding application is granted 
for the retention by National Treasury. As of reporting date, the Commission reports an accumulated surplus 
of R5 million. From this surplus, the Commission is entitled by operation of the regulations to automatically 
retain the interest and other sundry income portion of these surplus funds, recorded at a cumulative figure 
of R 2, 5 million. This renders a net balance of R2, 5 million susceptible to surrender at reporting date. 



170

ANNUAL REPORT  2014-2015 Commission for Gender EqualityCommission for Gender Equality
A society free from gender oppression and inequality

Notes to the annual financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

25. financial instruments

Categories of financial instruments

Except as detailed in the following table, CGE management considers that the 
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised 
cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values:

          2015   2014

          R   R

        notes      

financial assets at amortised cost        

               

Carrying amount       R 13 272 227   R 19 464 133

               

Cash and cash equivalents   9 13 237 070   19 364 997

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 10 35 156   99 136

               

financial liabilities at amortised cost        

               

Carrying amount            

               

Trade and other payables   12&13 R 11 162 382   R 15 020 116

               

               

               
               

Current financial assets          

               

Fair value       R 13 272 227   R 19 464 133

               

Cash and cash equivalents   9 13 237 070   19 364 997

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 10 35 156   99 136

               

Current financial liabilities          

               

Fair value            

               

Trade and other payables   12&13 11 162 382   15 020 116



Abbreviations               
AnD ACRonYMs
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AG Auditor General 

AGDI African Gender Development Index

APP Annual Performance Plan

CANISA Community of African Nations in South Africa

CGICT Corporate Governance of ICT

COGTA Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs

CEDAW Convention on Elimination of all forms Discrimination against Women

CSW Commission on the status of women

DOJCD Department of Justice and Constitutional Development

DPE Department of Public Enterprises

DPSA Department of Public Service and Administration

EE Employment Equity

FISD Forum of Institutions Supporting Democracy

GBV Gender Based Violence

IEC Independent Electoral Commission

LAMOSA Land Movement of South Africa

LGBTI Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender and Intersexed (LGBTI)

LLPO

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

NCGBV National Council on Gender Based Violence

NCFR National Ceommunity Radio Forum

NEMISA National Electronic Media Institute of South Africa

NHTL National House of the Traditional Leaders

Abbreviations and Acronyms

16
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NICSA National Interfaith Council of South Africa

NPA National Prosecuting Authority

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

POA Programme of Action

PSA Public Service Announcements

PSC Public Service Commission

SABC South African Broadcasting Corporation

SACC South African Council of Churches

SADC South African Development Community

SAHRC South African Human Rights Commission

SALGA South African Local Government Association

SALRC South African Law Reform Commission

SAPS South African Police Services

TOR Terms of Reference

UNDP United Nations Development Programme

UNFPA United Nations Population Fund Programme

VEP Victim Empowerment Programme
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